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SdunAUNazwusn9

Vision & Mission

sdeneu
Vision
IsTwSeuliusSnsSuUs:nuNurafUBINRdonAZEINUAIUFINISVOIaNAN

ogwidUs:anSNIwiazsonISo
Being unique life reinsurance solutions provider, efficient and fast services.

Wusn?
Mission
ISTITUTRUSNNSHAoBAUBHIBINYSSNRUSAUEIMIUUSINARDBUMSZIUAINE

We ensure that our international standard domestic approach is conduct to our
long relationship clients.

IS15NYIS:AUAIUITUAINWNISIIUDENsBITDY la:aswanaulnulus:AuNKUIzEy
TAInyiiorRu

We continue to maintain our financial strength and create fair return to our
shareholders.

ISTITUWAILNANSNTWUAAINSIWasausUsRonsIVABUINaIfURANVaISSAD
We aim to optimize our resources and platforms to cope with business
environment changes.




Vouad1Arynwn1sivu

Financial Highlights (iow: &ruunn)
(Unit: THB Million)

waus:znaunns dnsannsildsunlaq (Sowas)
Operating Results Change (Percent)

2559 2560 2561 2560/2559 | 2561/2560
2016 2017 2018 2017/2016 | 2018/2017

108Us:NUAROSU Gross written premium 1,975 2,157 2,400 11.3
IUEJLJS:nunEJmEJSUE!ns Net written premium 1,950 2,137 2,381 9.6 11.4
nnlsnaunn@ Profit before tax 390 542 310 39.0 (42.8)
nnlsans Net profit 322 436 253 35.4 (42.0)
nnlsanssoru (Un) Net profit per share (THB) 0.54 0.73 0.42 35.2 (42.5)
|ﬁaUs:ﬁuﬁm'ia§uqn§ (32uun) filsans (d1uun)
Net Written Premiums (THB Million) Net profit (THB Million)
2,381
2,137 436
1,950 389
1,828 372
322
I 253
2557 2558 2559 2560 2561 2557 2558 2559 2560 2561
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

(HUog: duunn)
(Unit: THB Million)

gU=N1sIU ru Suzud dnsannsilasunlaq (Sowa:)
Financial Position at the End of Year Change (Percent)

2559 2560 2561 2560/2559 2561/2560

2016 2017 2018 | 2017/2016 2018/2017
aunSweisou Total assets 2,063 2,397 2,358 16.8 (1.6)
hlausoU Total liabilities 740 854 919 15.4 7.6
NUISENE1S:1I30 Share capital issued and paid-up 600 600 600 - -
douveugifiioAu Shareholders’ equity 1,313 1,543 1,439 17.5 (6.7)
JaAMrunIuUY3 (UINMOAU) Book Value per Share (THB) 2.19 2.57  2.40 17.4 (6.6)
nNuduwa (UNFdKU) Dividend per Share (THB) 040 050 0.35 25.0 (30.0)

Funswdsou (druun) douvaugifiofiu (dauuin)
Total Assets (THB Million) Shareholder’s Equity (THB Million)

2,397 2,358

2,053
2,025 ’
1,979 1,543 1,439
1,313
I I 1,190 i I I I
2557 2558 2559 2560 2561 2557 2558 2559 2560 2561
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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anisennssunasiazgorussnasing

Letter to Shareholders
158U ghoARu

Tud w.A. 2561 10uBNUARMNNEAUEIASHTUNSIFUTR
vouiAsugialng 9andadusinge Auns:nusonsTuInGouNnIs
ImulnvouIASYINY 91NIBU 8IASIUNISANS:MOWENSTY lla:
Ju PoWAVIASEANNINISITavlukatey Us:inARduwasnondl
wuwounwAdIaviAsygnavadlnuiouidunu nnagWIsnNA il
Jedsuononissiiuindouvesnsidsnuiiaznisainuniasguna
Juduwali@oiav GDP iAulnlfSoua: 4.2 wuvuanUnountini
gnisimulnSosa: 3.9

pussnaUs:NUBINNaIsninuingonndoNUIASHIND
Bunu Ineipulneghdesa: 4.5 duiduibous:Aususounvau
627,387 &uunnTisuissruuvngusinafneuaussuloutens
anngouN1ENUs:NUBIMIAa:gVNIWVaINIASY soufivwusina
|o\ﬂﬁms:hunﬁ\1n:nuehﬁryvaan'\sﬁﬂmuﬁunsammu|§1:£J\1
12:N1S9NNWUNISNWIRULANTU TuvruziRgoAussAUs:ALEIR
IWBryriunoUiNEagsaItion Tg9:10UaN9:5MsIMONITY
A1 Nsidasunlasansimnisustuzng 2560 (TMO 2017) NS
Wagunladsinunnineurisingg Adnasus:nAlEandatinaunaru:
nssunsnnuia=aviasunisus:naussiads:=nune (AUn.)

AruwanisA1tuviussiosuds:nungsovoIusEnd
Tul 2561 USBNaliToUs=AuURBRoSUANSILOU 2,381 d1u
uan WuuINUniouSowa: 11.4 108Us:AUNYMAESUANSINNNS
Us:Aufiufomuial (Conventional Reinsurance) 97U0U
1,333 duuin wuvuanUniouSoua: 12.8 na: ||uusloum7mm
(Non-Conventional Relnsurance) 91UoU 1,048 a'lumn Wuvu
Sova: 9.7 Imuuamaouwads nunamosuansuuummuua vy
SouWRUNagN 56:44 IRvUNUARgouUReugn 55:45 KNUoY
Tuyuveuanuru=vedwanirurius=Augan Ul usBnaiRuinen
nauus: ﬁuavmwﬂunénaama’a\]ﬁuuuoh]uma'm Bawansiruri
mnmoaaﬂunauuamnmmunsaas g:4u (Short term product)
Tneiduibous: AunesasSugnNsduou 718 duunn IWUVUSoua:
53.6 UonNTWaNANUriUs:INNUs=AuAURSoIioRogjonAuRagTu
NAUWARATNUZIAUASEUS:8:810 (Long term product) AIAUIAIWL
VuSoua: 3.6 FudvwarionisiVasunlasvosdndouwansicuri
AUASaUs:8=u1oMos:U=duunegnSova: 49:51 INaIUSauIRBy

nuUnaunmnuamaou 56:44

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2018 was another challenging year for
Thai economic advancement. The country’s GDP growth
engines were stricken by, among others, the US-China
trade war and political tensions in several countries,
which led to fluctuations in Thai economic figures. Still,
encouraging factors such as the government sector’s
spending and investment helped to drive up the GDP
growth to 4.2 percent from 3.9 percent a year earlier.

Thai life insurance sector boasted an expansion rate
of 4.5 percent with total written premiums of THB 627,387
million which growing in the line with the national economy.
The business has been driven by consumers who respond
to the tax reduction the Government’s policy on tax
allowance for health insurance as well as the consumers
themselves realize the importance of having more risk
protection and financial planning. At the same time, the life
insurance business faces ongoing challenges, whether it
is a low interest rate condition, changes to Thai Mortality
Table 2017 (TMO 2017) and changes in rules which has
been promulgated by the Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC).

From our 2018 results, the Company’s revenue from
net reinsurance premiums amounted to THB 2,381
million, which grew by 11.4 percent from the previous
year. This could be broken down into the net reinsurance
premiums from conventional reinsurance of THB 1,333
million, rising year-on-year by 12.8 percent, and from
non-conventional reinsurance of THB 1,048 million, up
by 9.7 percent. The ratio of net reinsurance premiums
from conventional reinsurance versus non-conventional
reinsurance stood at 56:44, compared with 55:45 in
the previous year. Classified by type of products, the
Company’s growth was mainly contributed by the health
insurance product group, which was in sync with the
market trend. Health insurance, defined as a short term
product, could generate net reinsurance premiums of THB
718 million, soaring by 53.6 percent. At the same time,
housing credit insurance classified as a long term product,
grew by 3.6 percent. As such, the ratio of long term product
to short term product became 49:51, compared to 56:44
recorded in the preceding year.



TUUALULN USBNaguAILIItIUNNSMOUEUDIAIUADINS
vougnAdunan Nunswuwanaurisoufisusnissuls:au
AurofuBIn weununaosnlonnanissivasgusoltiod na:
JaluR9:Wauna:ususins:usunisinvulfgonndodnu
nsiJasudagennsaudiu Inslawrzegwdinisidasunlal
AsomiSovauinalulad 1a:Ao uRNMgFUNINCUZIFIY MR
watvAulERINMeluds:inFAnazs:Auanna suaTUAUNIS WAL
AneniwvadyAaINsia:NIwanuninAvesusEnd IHaImuTn
AoWaIUIsSNluNISINITUVOIUSENY 1a:a$19S1NFgIuvadINIs
iaulnRvUIRAoUTUTIKtNegWilUs:AnEnwaian

ueN9INU USGBNadulkAOUEAYAUNISANTUIUINOTHK
Twarhlsegwiugiu IngAndatunouaunalusuiIAsugno diAu
na:danondon wousousssuruia MIKIudd usen«lsisu
nasUs:IuUATUNISAINURAIIANINAS (Corporate Governance)
As:AU 5 Aosaitioviduliday Uufe 10UUSENAGNISAAU
AnananN1saglus:=AuAIaA 9NdUNIIUANUNSSUNISAINUKAN
nswenaznarnnannswenrkads:inAlneg (n.a.n.) nazauinuds
1asuan1gunssuNIsusEning (I0D)

msiAUlaveuusBnadu TisuN1satuauusuFvINGioRu
WusOnsNISSAY ArUzNSSUNISUSEN laznsnuinURUAKLNA
vouwundrunns:AurntiusEnadgau=RIvuITana:gulesne:
a§unouIRstyrinortinvavaurnsiKgdusiolu

wuvanaloveunarusennnufsouidudountyvey
A2IUIRSTYN10KUIVaIUSEINgIa:Us:aunouaSanoumaun
Inunaon U1 ru lonnad

In the past year, the Company remained steadfast in
responding to customer needs through both development of
products, including life reinsurance service, and seeking of
business opportunities. We also developed and streamlined
our business process to suit various changes around the
organization, notably the rapid changes in technology and
the challenge of changes in regulations to be enforced both
domestic and international level. This was carried out in
parallel with the development of employee capability and
formation of good corporate image in a bid to enhance the
Company’s competitiveness and build a foundation for
growth to move forward with the utmost efficiency.

Moreover, the Company gave priority to achieving
sustainable profits and, at the same time, creating a
balance between economy, society and environment
while upholding the good governance practices.
In 2018, therefore, the Company achieved the CG scores
of “Five Stars” or “Excellent” for the second consecutive
year from the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D).

With the support of shareholders and directors,
business partners, and hard-working employees at all
levels, the Company will continue to grow and maintain
a strong market position resulting in sustainable
prosperity.

| sincerely thank you everyone for being a part of
this special and accomplishment operation. On behalf
of everyone at Thaire Life, we are excited for the future
of the company and all of the possibilities it may hold.

==

(UNBENS SINSIESSH)
nssuNsiiazgarusunisiney
(Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson)
Director and President
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ANI=NSSUNISUSUN
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. ur9dum Kduna (019820
Us:zs1unssunns lla:NsSsun1sadnu

URTASUNISIEANITUNSSUNTS: S.A. 2542
dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.72

AIYAIZIFANINSANYN:
dAoNssuAEnSUrUnR (dFonssulwwn)
Northrop Institute of Technology an§goiusnn

n1sousu/duuuilneduinudaidasuaniiunssunN1IsusEn

Tne (10D):

¢ Chairman 2000/2544

* Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2544
» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2545
» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2556

N1SoUSL/AUUUBUY

- hangmsdngIMsUs:Nunes:AUEY (0U4.) Suf 2
nlnedrunuiu AUN.

*  MANgMNSWUSKISS:AUZINIUNISUSKHISIUWRAIUNITDY
“ununs” Ingan1TuwmuIigoy

* MaNgNSUSKHISS:AUGIAIUNISAMA:NISWITUBE
Inganiudngn1sAn

»  KHANGMNSWUSKISS:AUIANIUUdINYINISHAIANU (IMN.)
sun 9 Ingan1dudnganismainnu

Us:daunasninasnivau:
UsBnaAN:ITaU

8.A.2542 - J990u  Us=s1unssunis uue.Inesus:=Nnusdn

W.A.2559 - J99U0u  nssuN1sadnu uu9.Inesus:Nusdn

2544 - J930u Us=s1unssunis uu9.uanaUs:NUNY

2550 - Jaguu AUSNUNANUZNSSUNNSUSINS
AUSNWIArU=NSSUNNsadnu
uuR.udNIUSAUNY

2561 - Jaguu Js=s1unssunis
uu.9narnssuulan:ing

2553 - 2561 souUs:s1UNSSUNIS
uu.9ndrnssuulan:ing

2552 - J99Uu Us=s1unssun1smuunAInauIinu

llazassni uu9.onannssunulan:iny

2554 - J99Uu SOUUS:81UNSSUNIS UUR.IaSUEV
2553 - J99Uu NSSUNISD&S: UUR.1a5ugV

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee (Age 82)
Chairman and Director of Investment Committee

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: 0.72 percent

Education:
B.E. (Electrical),
Northrop Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

e Chairman 2000/2001

* Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2001

» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2002

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2013

Others Training Courses:
¢ Advanced Insurance Science, Class 2, by OIC.

¢ Executive Management “Urban development”, Urban
Green Development Institute.

e Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade by
University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce /
2015 By the University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

¢ Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital Market
Academy

Experience:

Listed Company

Dec 1999 - present Chairman, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2016 - present Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2001 - present Chairman, Navakij Insurance PCL.

2007 - present Advisor of the Executive Board,
Advisor of the Investment Committee,
Navakij Insurance PCL.

2018 - present Chairman,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.
2010 - 2018 Vice Chairman,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.
2009 - present Chairman of the Remuneration and

Nominating Committee,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.
2011 - present Vice Chairman, Sermsuk PCL.
2010 - present Independent Director, Sermsuk PCL.



2555 - Jaguu
2556 - Jaguu

2553 - Jaguu

2537 - Jaguu

1.9.2521 - N.w.2559

2512 - 2556

usunluln9aN:zITau

2560 - Jaguu
2560 - Jaguu
2560 - Jaguu
2557 - Jaguu

2550 - 2557

2550 - J9Uu
2525 - J9Uu
2534 - J930u
2548 - J930u

2511 - J9guu
2531 - Jaguu
2550 - Jaguu
2549 - JagUu

Us:81UAnUzNSSUNISWANSTUNAIMDUINU

UUR.1asu&v
NSSUNISASIVEOU UUA.IESUEV

NSSUNMSDES: NSSUNISASIVEOU
NSSUNISASSHIIa:NMHUAAINDUIINU
uu9.0nod ndU [oanud

NSSUNNSd&s: uu9.olsunsni
Us=s1unssuN1s NSsUN1Sdas:
nssun1sadnu uu.IngSuds:Aunusio

NSSUNNSo4as:
uu9.Ing-199sU 18S110A BUNENS

NSSUNIS U9. WWrJUgU
Us:zsunssuns U9.8.9.10d
NSSUNIS Uv.wawa

AUdnun uu9. Weoanouus:Ausy

Us:saunssuNIs uu. wWaanauus:nuny

Us:zsaunssunns ue. n.lo.le.
Us:zsunssuns U9. d18ss1i
Us:zsaunssuns U9, Sudnwansn
NSSUN1Sd&s: UUA. [Sulisus1BmnS

NSSUNIS UR. HOUKA
NSSUNAS UD. IND:IWN
NSSUNIS UR. 91A91 dUWDN
NSSUNAS U9. KIVHAWSIUN

2012 - present

2013 - present

2010 - present

1994 - present

Jun1978 - Feb 2016

1969 - 2013

Non-Listed Company

2018 - present
2018 - present
2018 - present
2014 - present

2007 - 2014

2007 - present
1982 - present
1991 - present
2005 - present

1968 - present
1988 - present
2007 - present
2006 - present

Chairman of the Compensation
Committee, Sermsuk PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Sermsuk PCL.

Independent Director, Director of the
Audit Committee and Director of the
Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, BTS Group Holdings PCL.

Independent Director, Varopakorn PCL.

Chairman, Independent Director,
Director of the Investment
Committee, Thai Reinsurance PCL.
Independent Director, Thai-German
Ceramic Industry PCL.

Director, Pipatanasin Co., Ltd.
Chairman, C.E.S. Co., Ltd.
Director, Poonphol Co., Ltd.
Management Advisor,

Falcon Insurance PCL.

Chairman, Falcon Insurance PCL.
Chairman, T.l.I Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Sathorn Thani Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Rangsit Plaza Co., Ltd.
Independent Director,

Rajadamri Hotel PCL.

Director, Wanglee Co., Ltd.
Director, The Pet Co., Ltd.

Aqua Infinite Co., Ltd.

Director, Wanglee Development Co.,Ltd.
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2. U194ns sInsuassa (0710

nssUNIS NSSUNNSaUNU NSSUNISUSHSAUIZEN lla:
wououn1sinny

URTESuNsisuaaidunssunas: &.n. 2555
dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.00

AIYAIZIFANINSANYN:
wArUsgAansSununn (a0m) Inoshtou
IWIAINSNILNIINYNEe

nasousu/duuuilnedauiaudaiasuan10unssuN1IsusEn
Tne (10D):
» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555

msausula‘luumz‘;uq

« Fellow (FLMI) 91n&an10un1s9anN1sAunIsUs:zAugInvoy
ansgoiusnn

. HANGNSHUSHNSSAUZIANUUINYINISAAIANU (9AN.) SUR
6 Inan10udnganisnainnu

Us:aunisninasiwnu:
usSunaAN:ITgU
U.A.2561 - J9UU  NSSUNISUSKHISADIGUY

d.n.2555 - J9g0u  NssuNs llazgouoenisinnd
uu9.IngSUs:=NuBIN
N.w.2557 - J9gUu  nssun1savnu uu.InosUs:=Nusdn

usBnlulAAN:ITaU

2556 - J990u nssun1s uv.Inesisosddrsa

2539 - J9Uu NssuN1s aunAuUs:Nuddning

2555 - JogUu NSSUNISUSKIS dunAuUs:nusdning
2553 - 2555 ungNauIAy aunAuUs:Augdning

2544 - J930u nssuns ue.n.1a.Te (@n10uds:nunalng)
2550 - 2555 Senior Vice President U9. 191010 911
2543 - 2554 General Manager U9.19[010 911

(Us=nudunrne) avads:inAlng

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

2. Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson (Age 71)

Director, Director of Investment Committee, Director of
Enterprise Risk Management Committee, and President
Date of Appointment: August 2012

Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education:
B.S. Honor (Statistics), Chulalongkorn University

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD):

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012

Others Training Courses:
¢ Fellow (FLMI) (LOMA'’s Life Management Institute), U.S.A.

e Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital Market
Academy

Experience:
Listed Company
Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee
Aug 2012 - present Director and President
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Feb 2014 - present Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company
2013 - present  Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.
1996 - present  Director,
the Thai Life Assurance Association
Executive Director
the Thai Life Assurance Association
President,
the Thai Life Assurance Association
Director, T.1.1. Co., Ltd.
Senior Vice President, AlA Co., Ltd.
General Manager, AIA Co., Ltd.
(Non-Life Insurance) Thailand Branch

2012 - present
2010 - 2012
2001 - present

2007 - 2012
2000 - 2011



3. ps.nauUs noneansu (019 79 U)
NSSUNISd4s: US:s1UNSSUNISASIv&oU

Us:=s1UNssuUN1sassmiliazNInunAINDUINU

URTESUNTsIsaAaIdunssuNS: s.A. 2542
dndounnsiionu: Sova: 0.00

ANIYAIZIFANNSANYN:
WandnunUru7nim Harvard University Us:InFianSgoiusna

n1sousu/duuuilneauiaududasuaniiunssun1susen
Tne (10D):

o Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2544

¢ Excellent Board Decision/2547

e Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2548

e DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2548

N1SOUSU/dUNUIdUg
o AUUUIALUNSSUNISMSOREOUVOIUSENUS:NUNY
“IT Governance” [ngd1Uniiu AUN./2558

Us:daunasninasnavau:
usBnaAN:ITaU
8.1.2542 - J990u  NssUNsdas: uu9.InesSUs:NUBIN

Js:s1unssunNIsnsovdou Us:su
NSSUNISASSHIIAzNTHUAAINDUIINU
uu9.IngsUs::NuBIMN

W.A.2557 - W.8.2559 NSSUN1SMSI980U Uu9.InesUs:NuBIn

W.8.2559 - Jaguu

N.W.2558 - W.8.2559 NSSUNISASSHIlIa:NIKUAAIRBUIINU
uu. TnedUs:NuddIn

IV.0.2532 - 1U.8.2556 NssUN1s uu9.IngSuds:=nungsio

2546 - 2555 NSSUNIS NSSUNISUSSBNAUNala:assha
uu9. Unuy

usenldlnvnn:zIGou

2543 - J9Uu AUSNW drdnauwsmunanerrans

nazinAlulagnrisin

3. Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana (Age 79)
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education:
Ph.D. (Physics), Harvard University, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2001

¢ Excellent Board Decision/2004

e Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2005

o DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2005

Others Training Courses:
e “IT Governance” by OIC /2015

Experience:

Listed Company

Dec 1999 - present Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Chairman of the Nominating and

Remuneration Committee

May 2014 -Nov2016 Director Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
of the Audit Committee,

Feb2015-Nov2016 Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Apr1989 - Apr2013 Director, Thai Reinsurance PCL.

2003 - 2012 Director, Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee, Banpu PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2000 - present Advisor to the National Science and
Technology Development Agency

Nov 2016 - present
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4. ps.onsSnd Inwaiuna (@19 757) 4. Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul (Age 75)

NSSUNISO4S: NSSIUNISMNSIVEDU 11a:NSSUNISASSHN Independent Director, Director of Audit Committee and
llazn1MuAAINOUINU Director of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Unlasunisisusaidunssunis: s.A. 2542 Date of Appointment: December 1999

dndounnsiioru: - TUu - Shareholding: - None -

AIYAIZIFANINSANYN: Education:

U§Bmﬂﬂuﬁﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁnﬁ an10uUnUfINWUUSKHISANEnS  Ph.D. (Hon), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

n1sousu/duuuilaeauinuduasuaniiunssunisusen Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Tne (10D): Association (I0D):

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555 » Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012
Us:zdunasninisnviu: Experience:

ussnaman:Idau Listed Company

8.A.2542 - J99U0u  NSsUN1sdds: uu9.IngsSUs:NuEdn Dec 1999 - present Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
M.A.2555 - J9UU  NSSUN1SMSovdou ulu9.Inesus:nuBdn Oct 2012 - present Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

N.w.2558 - J99U0u NSSUNSASSHllazNInuAAINBUIINU Feb 2015 - present Director of the Nominating and

uu9.IngsSUs:=NUTIN Remuneration Commitee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

usenlulnaan:z1Teu Non-Listed Company

2547 - JagUu nssUNIS Na:Us=sUIFIKUNAUSHIS 2004 - present Director and Chief Executive Officer,
uue.Ineds:NuBdn Thai Life Insurance PCL.

2533 - J90u Js:zsrunssunis uu.Inods:=nugvniw 1990 - present Chairman, Thai Health Insurance PCL.

2550 - J9Uu soJUs:snunssiuns ua.n.lo.lo. 2007 - present Vice Chairman, T.I.I. Co., Ltd.

2526 - J990u NSSUNAS 1a:NSSUNISUSKIS 1983 - present Director and Executive Director,
aunAuds:nugdning The Thai Life Assurance Association

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)



5. UNAUATY gdstuun 019670
NSsSUN1Sdds: Us:s1UNSSUNISUSHISADUIAUN NSSUNNS
MSI9E0U la:NSSUNISASSHIIIa:NIMUARINDUINU

UnRTEsSuNsisuaaidunssuNis: N.A. 2559
dndounsiioru: - Tud -

AIYAIGIFANINSANYN:
WHIUINISIASUINIURIUNUTA
anuuUUNNWAIUUSHISANENS

n1sousu/duuuilneduinuddiasuani0unssunN1IsusEn
Tne (10D):
» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2546

msausule‘iuumﬁ'uq

+ nangmsanganNsus:nunes:augy (oU4.) Ine d1dneiu
AUN. /2554

« MaNgmnsyusKIss:auguan1iudngnNIsnatnnu (9mn.) lne
an1uudnynismanaAnu /2550

« nangnsnisUaunusisainundnsninsgsouionsu (Use.) Ing
dng1asUounus1satunIns/2546

«  KaNgMSNISWRAIUNUNUSKHISS:AUEY (UU4.) [neaniguwsiun
V1s1snIswalsau

Us:zdunasninasniviu:

usBnaAn:ITaU

U.A.2561 - 090U Us:81UNSSUNISUSHISAUIADY
uu9. Inesus:=NuBImn

N.A.2559 - 090U NssuN1sdas: uu9. INesUs:Nusdn

W.9.2559 - J9UU  NSSUNISMSIE0U NSSUNSassKlia:
NIKUAAIRBUIINU UUY. TNosSUs:NUBInN

Us:81unssuN1susShs
UUR.NSIINWUS=AUEIM

NSSUNIS 11a:5NBYINISNSSUNISWINNIS
ThngnssunIsusKHas NssuN1sadnu
UUR.NSIINWUS=AUBIRN
Uszsunssumsrnugiianonsii
UUR.NSIINWUS=AUEIRM

w.A.2561 - U9gUu

N.n.2559 - JaUu

W.8.2556 - Uaguu

NSSUNISUSMISADWIFDY
UUR.NSIINWUS=AUEIM
NSSUNNSIES: NSSUNNISANSIVEOU
UU.NSIINWUS:NUBIM

1.8.2557 - J99Uu

I.8.2556 - 10.9.2559

usBnlulaoman:ITuu
-Tui -

5. Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon (Age 67)

Independent Director, Chairman of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, Director of the Audit Committee,
Director or the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
Date of Appointm ent: July 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education:
Master of Development Economics
National Institute of Development Administration

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0OD):
 Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2003

Others Training Courses:
e OIC Advance Insurance Program, Class of 1/2011 by OIC

» Certificate of Executive Program, Class of 7, by Capital
Market Academy

e Top Executive Program, Class of 34, Civil Service
Development Institute

e Certificate of National Defense Course, National Defense
College, Class of 17/2003

Experience:
Listed Company
Jan 2018 - present Chairman of Enterprise

Risk Management Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Director or the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Chairman of Executive Director,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Director, Acting President, Executive
Director / Member of the Investment
Committee, Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Chairman of the Good Corporate
Governance Committee,

Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Independent Director,

Director of the Audit Committee,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

- None -

Jul 2016 - present

Nov 2016 - present
May 2018 - present
Jul 2016 - present
Nov 2013 - present

Apr 2014 - present

Apr2013 - Jun 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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6. ms.g8 lunvzioa (019430)
NSSUNISDES: NSSUNISUSHISADUIAUY

URTESUNsIsaAaIduNssuNIS: W.8. 2559
dndounnsiionu: - Tuu -

AQFAIGIAANINISANYA:
PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial
College, London Us:InAdunnu

nasousy/duuuilneduiaudaidasuan1iunssunN1IsusEn

Tne (10D):

+ Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2559

N1SOUSU/dUUUIdUN
« KaNgNSUSHISSAUGUAIUNISANIIAzNISWTUBESUN 11

(TEPCoT)

» nangms Leadership Communication Certificate Program

. hangnsdnenisUs:NUus:AUEJ (0Ud.) SuR 2
Inedtinuu AUN./ 2555

. KANGNSINEINSMAIANU (9AN.) SUR 24
[nvaniuudngnismaianu / 2560

Us:zdunasninasnwau:

usBnaAN:ITaU
u.n.2561 - JagUu

W.8.2559 - J99Uu

2552 - Jaguu

2552 - Jaguu

usunlulavnn:zIdou
2560 - JogUu
2560 - Jaguu
2558 - JagUu
2559 - Jaguu

2552 - Jaguu

10

NSSUNISUSHASAOUIAEN
uu9.InesUs:NuBdIn
NSSUNSd4s: UUR.Inusus:NUBIM

NSSUNISUSHASAOUIAEY AUSNWA
NSSUNISYINNIS Ul9.Idoulnds:=Aune

NSSUNISUSMNSAWIFEY
NSSUNISUSHISNISadNU
AUSnuINssUNSLanNTs
NSSUNISIIUILNISUSHIS
nssuN1siuAru=NSSUNISUSKISIIa:ALU:
aunssuNswastulAIBINSweaU
UU9.ANSAEBY

ACUNSSUNNS81U2ENIS AU WIdu
IAAMUATURFANENS ANUzDNETANERNS
uKn1dNY1aguRNa

NSSUNISUSEN U9. Wiy 1ouvasiadna

SOINSSUNISWIANISON0lE
uu9.IdaulngUs:NuBIn

NSSUNIS ST-Muang Thai Insurance
Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR)
souUs:81UANUzOUNSSUNISUSHIS
JANSAOUIFEBY FUNISANLN
aunAuds:nusdnine

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

6. Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

(Age 43)

Independent Director, Director of Enterprise
Risk Management Committee

Date of Appointment: November 2016
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial
College, London, UK

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors

Association (I0D):

» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2016

Others Training Courses:
¢ Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade

(TEPCoT)/2018

Leadership Communication Certificate Program /2018

¢ Advance Insurance Program, Class of 2 by OIC/2012

e Capital Market Academy Program, Class of 24 by Capital
Market Academy/2017

Experience:
Listed Company
Jan 2018 - present

Director of Enterprise Risk Mamagement
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Nov 2016 - present Independent Director,

2009 - present

2009 - present

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Advisor of Managing
Director, Muang Thai Insurance PCL.
Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Member of the Investment
Management Committee,

Advisor of Managing Director,
Executive Director,

Member of Executive Committee and
leasing assets. Phatra Leasing PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2017 - present

2017 - present

2015 - present

2016 - present

2009 - present

Board of Directors, Centre of
Excellence in Mathematics,

Faculty of Science, Mahidol University
Director, Fuchsia Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd.

Senior Executive Vice President, Muang
Thai Life Assurance PCL.

Director, ST- Muang Thai Insurance Co.,
Ltd. (Lao PDR)

Vice President of Risk Management
Committee, Education,

The Thai Life Assurance Association.



AUSNuAOUIABIEUnaTAIa:EU
anTwnaoy
Aruzinunlagaunsweiduntiau
ANU:NIU Mortgage Insurance
ANUAIU ALM System
Implementation SUNANSOIANSAIIAS:A
nssuns IsuiSsuauunafinin
ANUANIUWRIUNIUONWNISAISIU
NOUNUMUS=AUADUIZSY (RBC)

szg:M 2 d1tingu AUN.

2549 - Jaguu

2550 - J9Uu
2556

7. UNa190UIA 1ISouSAUIUS (018 430) .
nssunsiia:yEoueusunslnnd NSSUNISUSHISADUIYY

URTASUNISIsaAIduNSSUNAS: N.A. 2559
dndounisiionu: - Tuu -

ANQAIGIIANINISANYA:
USHISSSNIUKIUNTIN UK1dNuNaedaausny

nasousy/duuuilneduinudaidasuan1iunssun1susEn
Tne (10D):
¢ Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

nasousu/duuundue

« nangms TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)
Suf 17 TaeaunAuSEneAN:IGeulng (TLCA) / 2560

»  KHangmsUNUSKISS:AUEN “sSSUANENSIWOSIAL” (UUS.)
TnoyalisanuusNeINssssUAansIiodunu / 2559

+ Kangms Senior Executive Program (SEP) Ingan1gultufin
USH1S8SNYARUNSIKIYWIAINSNIUKIINYNAY / 2556

Us:zdunasninasnviu:

usBnaman:IdaU

U.A.2561 - J99UU  NSSUNMSUSHISADWIAEY
uu9. Ingsds:=NuBin

N.A.2559 - J99U0u  NssUN1s ul9. IngsUs:NuBdn

2556 - J90u wgosgeusuNsirny uu9. IngsUs:NUBIN

2550 - 2556 WuoNISUEWMIUISSND1
uu9.InsUs:NuBdIN

2548 - 2550 souEaudENIsWY uu9. Tnesus:NuBIm

2547 - 2548 yyosgeuouNste uu9. IngSus:NuEIN

usBnluln9AN:ITau
-Tui -

Advisor to the Market Risk and
Liquidity Risk/ Mortgage Insurance
Committee/ ALM System
Implementation Committee,
Government Housing Bank

2006 - present

2007 - present
2013

Director, Kukai Kindergarten School.
Risk Based Capital Tier2 Development
Committee, OIC

7. Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee (Age 43)
Director and Senior Vice President,

Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee
Date of Appointment: July 2016
Shareholding: - None -

Education:
M.B.A., Assumption University of Thailand

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

» Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

Others Training Courses:
e TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP), Class of 17
by Thai Listed Company Association (TLCA) / 2017
» Executive Management “Thammasat for Social”
by Thammasat Science Institute Foundation / 2016
» Senior Executive Program (SEP) by Sasin
Graduate Institute of Business Administration
of Chulalongkorn University / 2013

Experience:

Listed Company

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Senior Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Jul 2016 - present
2013 - present

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business Development1,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2005 - 2007 Deputy Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2004 - 2005 Assistant Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company
- None -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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8. uNUNvNs gossruanng (g 44 ) .
NSSUNS lla:WEoaga1uouNIsiney NSSUNISUSHISAOUIGSY

UnRTEsSuNsisuAuidunssuNis: N.A. 2559
dndounisiionu: - Tl -

AIYAIZIFANINSANYN:
NISTANISUKIUNUTIR ETVINISTANISSSNY (NANTYISINNU)
JNY1auNISINNISUNIINYFuURNA

n1sousu/duuuilneduinuddiasuani0unssunN1IsusEn
Tne (10D):
« Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

msausu/él'uumé:uq

« nangms TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)
Suf 10 IngaunALUSBneANn:IDeulne (TLCA) /2555

« nangmsWuunlinusis (EDP) Suf 11 Ineyals an10udde
ulsungIAsyININISAAYT /2558

» nangms Senior Executive Program (SEP) Suﬁ 24
Inoan0ulnuninUSKHISsSNYFARUNSIKIIWIAINSU
UK1dNYNay / 2553

« nangms Academy of Business Creativity (ABC) Suﬁ 1
InsunidnendeAsunu

Us:zdunasninisnviu:

usBnaAN:Idau

u.A.2561 - JogUu NSSUNISUSKHISAOUIAEY
uu9. Inesus:=NuBIn

N.A.2559 - Ja0u  NssuNs Uud. IngSUs:NuBdn

2556 - JoUu Wyouauounsinny
uu9. InesUs:NuBddn
2550 - 2556 wduoun1surewmussnio2
uu9.IngsUs:=NuUBIN
2548 - 2550 sougauduNIsthe uue. Ingsus:=NuBdIn
2547 - 2548 wyougouounsuy

uu9. InesUs:NnuBIm
usBnluln9aN:zITau
-Tui -

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

8. Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit (Age 44)
Director and Senior Vice President ,

Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee
Date of Appointment: July 2016

Shareholding: - None -

Education:
M.M., (International Program), College of
Management Mahidol University (CMMU)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

¢ Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

Others Training Courses:

e TLCA Executive Development Program by Experience
Association: Thailand/2012

» Executive Development Program (EDP) by Fiscal Policy
Research Institute Foundation / 2015

» Senior Executive Program (SEP) by Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn
University / 2013

¢ Academy of Business Creativity program (ABC) Class of 1
by Sripatum University

Experience:

Listed Company

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Senior Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Jul 2016 - present
2013 - present

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business Development 2,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2005 - 2007 Deputy Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2004 - 2005 Assistant Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company
- None -



ANUZLWUSHIS
Management

1. uUNE19EaSUNS sssugunsni (019 41T)
1avIuNIsuUsEN a:gougonuounisinn
dndounnsiionu: - T -

ANQAIGIAANINISANYA:
INYFAEnSUKIUNUTR a1vINISNU ANU=WITUBYFAEansSIa:N1s
Ury8 ywiadnsniun1dngnas

Us:zdunasninasnviu:
usBnamAn:IdaU
2560 - J9Uu wyougououmsinny

« WgUnysna:n1sKu

« WhgnouAuNulunazguds:=ucu
« theushisdiniiu

« UhUSHISAOUIFEY
uu9.IngdUs:NuBIN
youounNste
 WgUnydna:n1sNu

« WhgnouAuNulunazguds:ucu
« theuskisdtinuiu
uu9.IngsUs:NuBInN
WyouausuNsWe Uy
uu9.Inesus:=nunero
usunlulnean:z0au
2558 - Jaguu

2560 - 2561

2553 - 2556

NSSUNISUSEN U9.10801S llonlosos

2. UNEIIAIUNT NIMYIUIIAIA (918 45 T)
woussnisuhadnu

dndounnsiionu: Sova: 0.00

ANYAIGIEANINISANYA:
USH1SSSNAUKIULUTIA d@1vINISNU
anMuuUUUAINWAIUNUSHISANENS

Us:aunisninasiwau:
uSEnanN:Idou
2555 - U9Uu  dguounisueadnu uue.Ingsus:nusdmn

2538 - 2555 wynnstheanu uue.Inesuds:=Nuneso

usBnluln9aN:zITau
-Tui -

1. Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn (Age 41)
Secretary and Senior Vice President

Shareholding: - None -

Education:
M.Sc., Finance, Chulalongkorn University

Experience:
Listed Company
2017 - present Senior Vice President

¢ Accounting and Finance,

¢ Operation Control & Budgeting,
e Administration

» Enterprise Risk Management
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2017 - 2018 Vice President

e Accounting and Finance,

¢ Operation Control & Budgeting,
¢ Administration

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2010 - 2013 Assistant Vice President — Accounting,
Thaire Insurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

2015 - Present Director, SR Advisory

2. Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut (Age 45)
Vice President - Investment

Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education:
M.B.A. (Finance), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

Experience:
Listed Company
2012 - present  Vice President - Investment,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Department Manager,

Thai Reinsurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

- None -

2002 - 2012

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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3. unewsde [ansnudla (01g610)
wouounIsthewasrursuds:=Nnune
dndounisiioru: Sova: - Tuid -

ANQFAIGIIANINISANYA:
USKIsssNaULUTiA @1vIN1snann
UK1INYIAUSWANINY

Us:dunasninasiauiu:
usEnYAN:IdYU
2558 — J9Uu wousunisthewastunsuds:=nuny
uu9.InesUs:NuBInN
usenlulavan:idau
2555 — 2556 wyougouosnsureds=nungu
usan 1Moo 911 A

4. UNE12dNTYrY1 BuISysun (019487
woruossnisuheinalulagansauind
dndounnsiioru: Sova: - Tuid -

ANQFAIGIAANINISANYA:
Jstyrynln AruzuSKIsssne dvanisiu
UK1INYIAUSANINY

Us:zaunasninisnwu:
usBnaman:Idau
2561 - J9Uu wousunistheinalulagansauine
uu9.IngsUs:NuBInN
usuenlulnean:=10au

2538 - 2560 UR.1I9a18uUd Us=nAungy

snevuUs:91U 2561
usun TnesUs:Auddn 911m (UH1BU)

3. Mr. Pornchai Loratanavilai (Age 61)
Vice President - Underwriting

Shareholding: - None -

Education:
B.B.A. Marketing
Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience:

Listed Company

2015 - present  Vice President - Underwriting
Department, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2012-2013 Assistant Vice President - Group
Operation AIA Company Limited

4. Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana (Age 48)
Vice President - Information Technology
Shareholding: - None -

Education:
M.B.A.Finance and Banking
Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience:
Listed Company
2018 - present Vice President - Information Technology,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Non-Listed Company

1995 - 2017 LMG Insurance PCL.
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ulourenaznawsounisus:noussne

Policy and Overview of Business Operation

USEN TnedUs:=AUT3m F9AR (UKBU) (“USEN”) THTRAIIU
Tu U 2543 Ingsuloussnanissuds:Nnunesonupuls:nudin
AINSWEAUNIa:KUFURINYITOIAUNIKUA RIFIALANTURINAS
Tne USEN TnesuUs:AuRYso F9AR (UML) (“THRE”) walkidu
TUmuws:=ssUryrynus:=Nnusdnia:ws:=s150ryrunus:NnudulAng
W.A. 2535 Arnunlifoulnisionnisus:noussiaus:UEIn
Ia:gsnoUs:=NUsUNANBoeNIINAUKAIINGUSSAvTNSIAULN
agroItion auFoUTUSUR 9 nanAL 2556 USBN<TFioAN:IDuulu
namnannswenruus:inAlne Inousen Inosuus:Nuneso 911n
(Umzsu)Iﬁu"'\ﬁumUryU'maiou|aua\rwﬁuﬁna\1r1uﬁ'olu Woasy
AowluAdlunsvenussieluaunaAn tuidurinodrAnydnnontiv
vounsivsryiAuTnogwgvEu

10nuelunisAnitussne

Thaire Life Assurance PCL. (“the Company” or “THREL”)
was established in 2000 by the transfer of the entire life
reinsurance business and related assets and liabilities from
Thai Reinsurance PCL. (“THRE”) to comply with the Life
Insurance Act and Non-Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535
which requires the separation of life and non-life insurance
business. The Company has since maintained continuous
growth. On October 9, 2013, it was listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, whereby THRE allocated a portion
of ordinary shares held in the Company for sale to general
investors to ensure stability for future business expansion.
This represented another major milestone on a path
towards sustainable growth.

Business Goals

UsBneidimunene:duunndngiusSnssuUs:Aune
FoNUUANIAUINEIOENIREO SuldRe:WiunodAns THauisn
[Ausn1sanA1usBnUs:NUBINlAASUIVYS wSaulAuSNIS
SuUs:nNuBdnmo InuNISINSOUWAIUISSNIY 2 NIWUNISRATA
Wisurwannurna:naruAluoN1INIswWaasu1Suds:Au
maonvuliAUSNuIMUINWWIIStUNGulnuNAINu

dnSunwudnunuNsSuUsAUNGFD IHUVENEN1ISSUIIU
Tunsa:wanArurionanAliAseuAaULINTU IIa:5NYISNSINS
iAulnogsaition IneldulounednnisfiunuvaINISVENINU
MIUHANNISANSINUNDINUY lazAtiiivwanauinusansidinu
NoINUAUS=AUAIFBIRALAN Wlunsshvliaonndaununs
Wagulagvoussneus:Auganiaznousiosnsvadgusing Anun
udnnssulue IWeunlElun1soNILUNISMaNA WalUWARTUT
TInuzaunUBaININISVIBAKaINKaneAsaUAZUNNNEUANAN

Aspiriny to be more than just a conventional
reinsurance provider, the Company is committed to
developing the organization to provide customers
with a comprehensive range of insurance services
by collaborating in business development, marketing,
planning, product development, formulation of
underwriting and claim guidelines.

The Company’s reinsurance plan will be focused
on expansion of each product’s coverage as well as
maintaining of continuous growth. The guided policies for
this are based on management of expansion cost under
the principles of Risk Based Capital and consideration
of return on the use of capital at an acceptable level of
risk. Business development will be aligned with changes
in life insurance business and consumer needs. Modern
innovations will be explored for further planning on

marketing and product development to fit with the
diverse sales channels that could reach all customer
segments.
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The Company has expanded its reinsurance service
and provided recommendations on new products
and additional underwriting guidelines. In addition,
the Company has continuously studied the trend of
consumer behaviors and market conditions in order
to develop the types of business that respond to
customers’ real needs as well as select appropriate
media, including Bancassurance, for some types of
insurance such as credit insurance, life and accident
insurance, and health insurance. In the previous year,
the Company cooperated with many life insurance
companies, which are the business partners of leading
banks in Thailand, in expanding these types of
business and launched investments in ASEAN Economic
Community (AEC) countries. The Company also devised
a plan on formation of corporate image and has
implemented the plan since 2015.

For operation Support Program, the Company has
invested in technological systems, i.e. reinsurance and
other services such as accounting finance and investment
systems that help increase efficiency and effectiveness
of the work. Besides, the Company also organizes
Employee Development Project to support the organization
to enter into Office Innovation by preparing the employees
to be conscious of and ready for rapid change of insurance
business; and being able to cope with future crisis as
well. As such, it seeks employees with experience and
new ideas to join the Company to help improve the work
and develop a quality team; aiming at building sustainable
growth of the business.

Significant Developments in the Past Five Years
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2) dnassAuadyiwunudruoulinu 10 du
#u TRnUs=srsunaldidunsaisn (Initial Public
Offering)

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

July
2013

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2013 on July 19, 2013 resolved to approve an
amendment to allocation of newly issued ordinary
shares, as follows :

1) Allocation of not more than 90 million new
ordinary shares with a par value of THB 1 per
share by rights offering to the Company’s
existing shareholders.

2) Allocation of not more than 10 million new
ordinary shares for an initial public offering.



Aun1Au
2556

nanA
2556

dun1Au
2557

ustna IasuouryInlkiunnadeluidysii
Ine (mwAdeuluws:s1sUyngAUs:AuZ3n
W.A.2535 (souﬁaﬁlﬁﬁmsuﬁlvnl_\imﬁu))
fioAusounulsnundndosa: 49 vavdauou
KuhDanseonidoanazg1nuelandonnun
vouusun«idus:g:19a1 10 U 1eindauns
Wndunannswdanan:zidoulunatanannswe
nnads:inAlne usendia: THRE TAadAuaOny
voyusy¥ndd1uou 295 d1uAuoonIdaudVIY
Tiiduanalagiawz191:9v801dugdoRuvey
THRE miudndounisiiofungfiofunsiazsie
fioognaziauavigus:=srsunaldidunsinsn
TusnAKua: 9.50 uan IngRuflineaniauo
V1eUs:NoUADUNU 2 d0U Ao

1) RuaJryiAuA THRE fieagluustng utvdou
91u9u 285 a1uAu dvwalhdndounisiioAu
vod THRE anaJ9niAuseosa: 100 1ndo
sova: 50.8

2) KUAJYIWUNUIIUOU 10 aTUKU

usSBnainann:zidoulunatnrannsweruds:inAlne
nazianinisBovigdunsn (First Trading Day) Tu
dun 9 manAu 2556

AUs:sudadnygfioundun 1/2557 1Gosun 4
AumAL 2557 DuRoudANSIATVIFUIRLTEUIAUVDY
usEn Viof 10 1Ju “Vie 10. AuveuusBnloulalneTid
Vo911 n” |v'\"ioiﬁaomna"o\1ﬁunJ\Jﬁaaqrmmmnnm:
nssuMsmnuIia:auiasunisus:noussnaus=Nune
o AUN. muntvdolavi 4220/2386 avdun 15
dunnAu 2556 TRDAUMTuANfioAUluuSEnglAInU
nd1Sewa: 49 veuRuNDANSooN NI IMLNGTE
IEONIAUAVEIUSENG

wnAIN18U THRE vigARuadryvadusuengaaniudou duwa

2557

jurAu
2558

unu1gu
2558
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August
2013

October
2013

August
2014

November
2014

March
2015

June
2015

Approval was granted, to allow the Company
to have non-Thai nationals (as defined in the
Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535 (and subsequent
amendments) holding an aggregate of more than
49 percent of the total number of voting shares
and paid-up shares of the Company for a period
of 10 years. For the preparation of listing Thaire
Life on the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the
Company and THRE offered 295 million shares
for Private Placement, by offering rights to the
Company’s existing shareholders. The first pub-
lic offering price was THB 9.50 per share. The
offered shares were as follows:

1) The existing shares held by THRE in the
Company being 285 million shares, thereby
leading to THRE’s holding in the Company
to reduce from 100 percent to 50.8 percent

2) An offering of 10 million newly issued shares

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
Exchange of Thailand, with the first trading day
on October 9, 2013

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 1/2014 on August 4,
approval for the amendment of Clause 10.
of the Article of Association to “Clause 10.
The Company’s shares can be transferred
without any restriction”, in order to comply
with the Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC) letter No. 4220/2386 dated August 15,
20183, stating that foreigners can hold more
than 49 percent of the total voting and
paid-up shares of the Company.

THRE partly sold the Company’s ordinary shares.
Thus, THRE’s shareholding decreased from 50.8
percent to 41.5 percent.

THRE decreased its shareholding in the Company
from 41.5 percent to 24.3 percent leading to a
change in the Company’s statusfrom a subsidiary
to an associated company of THRE.

The Company obtained financial strength rating
of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), awarded
on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best.
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October
2015

April
2016

June
2016

October
2016

May
2017

June
2017

October
2017

June
2018

October
2018

December
2018

The Company was rated “Very Good” (4 stars) in
the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies (CGR) in 2009 published by the Thai
Institute of Directors (IOD).

THRE decreased its shareholding in the Company
from 24.3 percent to 17.5 percent leading to a
change in the status of their relationship from an
associated company to a market investment.

The Company obtained financial strength rating
of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), awarded
on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Very Good”(4 stars) in
the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies in 2015 published by the Thai Institute
of Directors (IOD).

The Company already registered the revision of
its regulation on the proportion of shareholding
that the number of non-Thai national shareholders
should not exceed 49 percent of the total number
of voting and paid-up shares.

The Company obtained financial strength rating
of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), awarded
on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Excellent”(5 stars) in
the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies in 2016 published by the Thai
Institute of Directors (I0D).

The Company obtained financial strength rating
of Best’s Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), awarded
on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Excellent”(5 stars) in
the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies in 2017 published by the Thai
Institute of Directors (I0OD).

THRE partly sold the Company’s ordinary shares.
Thus, THRE’s shareholding decreased from 14.82
percent to 10.10 percent.
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Apart from the core business in providing all types of
life reinsurance, the Company sets aside part of the written
premiums as reserves and invests such reserves to generate
returns to cover its contingent liabilities. Therefore, investment
also plays a crucial part in the Company’s core activity.

The Company diversifies its investment in a variety of
short-term and long-term securities, both debt and equity
instruments, and complies with regulations under the OIC’s
Notification Re: Investment in Other Businesses of Life
Insurance Companies.

Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies
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The Company has a clear shareholding structure and
there is no cross-shareholding or pyramid structure in its
group of companies, thus creating no conflict of interest. In
entering into related party transactions, the Company has
complied with the policy on interest and conflict of interest
and the measures or procedures for approval of related party
transactions.

THREL has one associated company, TKI Life Insurance
Company Limited, established in Lao PDR in late 2016 to
perform all types of life insurance business. Its total paid-up
registered capitals are LAK 16,000 million or approximately
THB 66 million of which the Company holds 32.5 percent
shares.

Shareholding in the Associated Company by Other Parties

Apart from the Company, other shareholders of TKI
Life Insurance Company Limited include Navakij Insurance
Public Company Limited., holding 32.5 percent and TK Group
Sole Company Limited., holding 35.0 percent. None of those
other shareholders of the associated company are THREL’s
related parties.

Relationship with Major Shareholder’s Business
Group

uSBN4dN1IsSUUSNISAMUNSWEINSUAAaIa:NISSUUSNIS
fnuinalulagansauinAenusen Tnes rsesdarsa $nn AIG
usenaiinoudIndundeinisaduayus:nannu 1Weidu
n1sushsInnsidaudunuliiinUs:ansnwaidn

The Company uses human resource services and IT
system provided by Thaire Services Co., Ltd. The operational
support is deemed essential so as to ensure the most efficient
of cost between them.
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Type of Products or Services

The Company’s core business is to reinsure all types of
life insurance. Presently, there are 22 life insurance companies,
of which their objectives are to provide services for individuals
and group of corporate customers for the coverage of death
and illness. Examples are whole life insurance, credit life
insurance, accident and health insurance and critical illness life
insurance. In addition, one more objective is for saving benefit
such as endowment insurance, investment-linked insurance,
annuity life insurance, and life insurance with return/dividend.
As life Insurance that covers death and illness causes risks to
a life insurance company more than saving insurance does;
the Company, therefore, has to manage its risk by reinsuring
the assured, in the case that the total sum insured exceeds
the amount determined by the Company; by evaluating the
amount of the sum insured that are exposed to risk of total
claim payment against and reinsurance’s total capital required
in order to reduce the impact of risk that may arise in the future.
The life insurance company, however, selects a reinsurance
company by considering

¢ Reputation, financial status and credit rating of A or higher;

¢ Advantages of the reinsurance terms and conditions that
meet the insurance companies’ requirements including
underwriting, reinsurance agreement, reinsurance pricing
and commission.
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(1) NAUWANAU7dYrynan (Basic plan) HowanArurings:o:

» Various service factors that support the business operations,
for example, product consult, underwriting etc.

e Satisfactory and timely service

Types of Life Insurance Reinsured by the Company

The types of life insurance reinsured by the Company
include:

(1) Basic Plan or long term products with a protection period

19a7AuASaILINNGT 1 TVUIU (Long term products) Usznou

of more than one year, consisting of:

108
o Us:NuBdnsreanlny (Ordinary Life)
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. msUs:NuBIMIioAuAsauaude (Credit Life)
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(2) NAUWARANUAdNYYIUUANg/ Yoy IWUIRU (Supplementary

¢ Ordinary Life Insurance

This is a life insurance which pays the insured amount
to the beneficiary at the death of the insured or pays the
insured amount to the living insured upon expiry of the policy.
In general, the policy is set to expire on the date the insured
reaches the age of 90 or 99. Premium is paid throughout
the insured’s lifetime. However, the premium payment
period for some types of insurance may be shortened to
meet policyholders’ requirements, for example, a term of
15 or 20 years or the age of 60.

e Credit Life Insurance

This insurance plan provides protection against death
or against death and total permanent disablement of a borrower
of a bank loan. Banks need risk insurance in the event that
their borrowers are dead or become totally and permanently
disabled. Under this policy, the insured amount and coverage
period will be reduced according to the outstanding balance
and period of the relevant loan. The example of loan products
under insurance protection include home loan, business loan,
car loan and credit loan, etc.

(2) Supplementary Plan or short term products with a yearly

Plan) n8owanfruzinds:o:10a1dunsadsiol (Short term

protection period, consisting of:

products) Us:nounoy

 NsUs:=NuUBdIANEU (Group Life)
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AUSENKEISIU 1az0uANSFNY NUNIASTUNA lazlonsudAlKAU
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giouifuiDeUs:Aunnl snidunsusssifeoniiVulIALEIoNEns:
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e Group Life Insurance

Under group life insurance, it provides coverage for
five persons or more, mostly a group of corporate employees.
This is a type of staff welfare provided by private organizations
and state agencies for their employees. This type of insurance
is normally renewed, and premium paid, on a yearly basis.
There is also a tailor-made policy where premium is paid in
one lump sum for the entire coverage period.
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¢ Accident & Health Insurance

This is an insurance that provides coverage against
death and loss of body part caused by an accident and also
provides compensation for medical expenses incurred from
either an illness or an accident.

Types of Reinsurance Agreement

Reinsurance agreements are divided into two types as follows:

(1) Treaty Reinsurance

This is a form of reinsurance made between an
insurance company and a reinsurer subject to pre-agreed
terms and conditions. The insurance company sets the
retention limit based on its financial capability and then
cedes the excess of the retention to the reinsurer. The
agreement, in general, establishes a broad framework
for reinsurance terms and conditions with respect to, for
instance, coverage, reinsured amount, etc. Any policy that
meets such pre-determined conditions can therefore be
instantly reinsured by the Company.

(2) Facultative Reinsurance

Facultative reinsurance is made in the case where
a life insurance company does not take out Treaty Reinsurance
with the Company or where the insurance is not qualified under
the Treaty Reinsurance. The offered terms and conditions,
coverage and premium rate for facultative reinsurance are
granted and approved on a case by case basis.

Facultative reinsurance contracts are automatically
renewed on a yearly basis, unless any of the contract parties
give a notice of cancellation three months ahead of the
year-end. These contracts allow time for both parties to
reconsider the conditions before confirming such cancellation
if they cannot reach a mutually agreed solution. In case
a facultative reinsurance contract is canceled, the Company
will terminate coverage under new policies, while reinsurance
coverage under renewed policies will remain valid until the
policies expire.

Characteristics of Reinsurance Business under
Marketing Policy

The Company reinsures life insurance for domestic
insurance companies and is unable to directly provide life
insurance services. Its business can be categorized into two
main types:
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(1) Conventional Reinsurance

Conventional reinsurance is reinsurance provided
for life insurance companies which make all arrangements
by themselves, ranging from policy format to marketing and
sales of products. Risks associated with the sum insured
are transferred to several reinsurers at home and overseas.
Conventional reinsurance features two types of reinsurance
contracts: Treaty and Facultative reinsurance.

The Company has developed the conventional
reinsurance business and maintained its growth rate by
rendering services in product advice, underwriting
guidelines, and the provision of facultative reinsurance
of varied types such as credit life insurance, life and
accident insurance, group insurance and critical illness
insurance.

(2) Non-conventional Reinsurance

Since domestic reinsurance market is an open market
where international reinsurers can enter at any time and
volume of business is limited, the Company cannot be very
selective about reinsurance cases to accept. THREL serves
as an active reinsurer by participating in all activities with
life insurance companies, ranging from new product launch
and development to meet market demand, marketing and
planning to the acquisition of new distribution channels. By
doing so, the Company can design appropriate policies and
determine appropriate pricing as well as achieving a higher
underwriting sharing ratios. Its income earned in the form
of reinsurance premium is a greater proportion than that of
conventional reinsurance. Non-conventional reinsurance
also features the two types of reinsurance contracts: Treaty
and Facultative reinsurance.

In its non-conventional reinsurance business, the
Company has implemented projects in joint development and
offered products through various media such as online media,
telemarketing and sales via agents. Also, innovative niche
accident and health insurance products have been developed
with good success rates. It also writes facultative reinsurance
for credit life insurance and ordinary life insurance from
bancassurance and agents.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



Insvasusieln
Revenue Structure

s1eln

Revenue

2561 2560
2018 2017

amuuan| Sewa: | dquuan | Sowa: | dquuan| Sowa:
Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent

108Us:AUNERasURTtadusls
Net earned premiums income

- n1sUs:AUBIAUSINNAVIAL
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Non-conventional reinsurance

snelAvnNnNiIsasnuans
Investments income

snelaAdna:AInGL
Commission and brokerage income
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Others income
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Total
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1,306.8 539 1,149.4 526 1,853  57.6
1,040.7 429 9471 433 7805  37.9
74.1 3.0 82.4 3.8 86.7 4.2
2.9 0.1 3.5 0.1 2.3 0.1
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Procurement of Products or Services
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Sources of Funds

Our sources of funds come from shareholders, net written
premium and net profit from investments. As of December 31,
2018, the Company recorded total shareholders’ equity of THB
1,438.9 million, net earned premium of THB 2,347.5 million and
net profit from investments of THB 74.1 million.

In the future, the Company may raise funds in other
ways, such as issuance of new shares for rights offering or
offering to specific investors on a private placement basis,
issuance of warrants, etc. The company does not have a policy
to mobilize funds from borrowing or any other external sources.
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Investment Policy

The Company adopts a conservative investment
policy to ensure stable long-term income earnings that are
adequate and consistent with its obligations. Importance
is given to the quality of securities for the safety of our
investments. Investment risk management is carried out
in all respects to avert any damage that could hurt the
Company’s financial status and performance and, yet,
to be able to generate returns on investment. Portfolio
management is implemented under the risk-based capital
framework to optimize the use of limited capital fund, while
adhering to the OIC’s regulations. The investment policy
is reviewed regularly. The investment strategy is readily
changeable to always be in sync with the ever-changing
market environment and ensure the maximum long-term
benefit.

Recognizing the importance of upholding the Investment
Governance Code (I Code), the Company in 2017 announced
its acceptance to pursue the | Code under the guidelines of
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
for management of investments of institutional investors up to
international standards to ensure good corporate governance,
and posted the said announcement on the websites of the
Company and the SEC. In 2018, the Company launched the
Investment Governance Policy (I Policy), which was already
approved by the Board of Directors.

Lending

Credits extended by the Company include loans under
the staff welfare scheme, such as an emergency loan, a
housing loan, and a car loan. These loans are intended to
help relieve employees’ difficulties, where necessary, and
enable them to have their own house or residence of their
own. Interest is charged at either a fixed or a floating rate,
depending on type of the loan.

Policy on Investment in Subsidiary Company and
Associated Company

The Board of Directors approves the policy on investment
in an associated company, as recommended by the Investment
Committee, based on the criteria determined by the Office of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Office of Insurance Commission.

The Company, as a control mechanism over an
associated company, appoints the Directors and Executives
of THREL to serve as Directors and Executives of the
associated company in order to oversee, control and
monitor its performance for the benefits of itself and THREL.
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Ability in Maintaining Capital Funds

It is our policy to maintain all key ratios at not less
than the minimum legal requirements and comparable with
international standards. Any ratio deemed crucial to our
position and stability will be maintained at a high level,
including the capital adequacy ratio as required by law.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s equity
stood at THB 1,548.5 million and the Company could
maintain capital funds at THB 1,323.0 million, which equal
to CAR at the rate of 485 percent, higher than the OIC’s
minimum requirement of 140 percent. As at December 31,
2018, the Company’s CAR is higher than 380 percent, which
is in the process of auditing from auditor

Policy on Liquidity Management

Our policy aims to maintain liquidity at an appropriate
level by making available sources of funds, whether from cash
receivable or from liquid assets, to be able to meet our funding
needs in any situations.
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Situation of life insurance and life reinsurance
business in 2018
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The year 2018 was another challenging year for life
insurance companies in terms of ability to carry on and
grow their business.The overall industry faced some
threats from external factorssuch as Thai GDP growth of just
4.2 percent, which had an effect on premium growth rate,
and internal factors from the change of mortality rate in the
Thai Mortality Table 2017 (TMO 2017), which relatively led to
a downward revision of the premium rates and commission
fees for brokers, as well as the amendment to regulations
announced by theOffice of Insurance Commission (OIC) such
as the increase of intensity of sales of insurance policy to
improve market conduct in insurance system, the framework
for risk based capital adequacy (RBC2), and so on. Despite
that, there still were factors contributing to the premium
growth such as the government sector’s stimulus measures
for Thai peopleto prepare for their post-retirement living
and financialplanning as Thailand is entering an aging
society, together with measures for personal income tax
deduction for life and health insurance premiums.
At the same time, companies in the business sector had
fine-tuned their selling policy to fit with the prevailing
circumstances, while also implementing product
development, increasing opportunities through new sales
channels, and employing technology for service
development and business process improvement to
align with the digital economy and reach all target
groups. As a result, total life insurance premiums
written continued to grow from the foregoing year by 4.5
percent to approximately THB 627,387 million, and the
number of in-force life insurance policies at the end of 2018
reached about 25.3 million policies, of which 4.3 million
were new policies taken out during the year. The ratio of
life insurance spending to GDP remained at 3.9 percent,
suggesting that Thai people spent only 3.9 percent of
their revenues on insurance premium and that there
is still room for life insurance growth in Thailand when
compared with 10 percent spent by people in other
countries that are more educated in life insurance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



IoUs:Aunosu na:ansinasiiuln U 2557 - 2561
Gross Written Premium per GDP in Thailand during 2014 — 2018
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Life insurance business statistics data for 2014 - 2018
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Items

1DoUs:AuRBsU

Gross written permiums
10p1oUs:AUNYRosSA9
Reinsurance ceded permiums
10uUs=AunesosUVaIUSEN
THREL’s gross written premiums

dounugnisnatnvedusen (Sooa:)

THREL’s market share from reinsurance ceded permium (percent)

The company forecasts that Net premiums for
reinsurance in 2018 reached THB 12,159 million at an
annual growth rate of 9.9 percent, which was in tandem
with the insurance premium growth although the ratio
of reinsurance remained close to the preceding year.
Most of the reinsurance premiums stemmed from the
health insurance product group. Despite the marginal
reinsurance ratio compared with the overseas experience,
reinsurance is a key strategy adopted by life insurers
in their insurance risk management and, as such,
reinsurance premium growth usually mirrors growth
in the direct insurance sector. Over the past 5 years
reinsurance premiums have grown at annual average
rate of 11.1 percent.

2561 2560 2559
2018 2017 2016

awuuvin  1nuln awuuvin  1Ruln awuuvin  1auln
Amount So®a: | Amount $So9va: | Amount Sosa:
Percent Percent Percent
627,387 4.5 600,303 5.7 568,002 5.8
12,159" 9.9 11,063 16.7 9,479 6.4
2,400 11.3 2,157 9.2 1,975 6.7
19.7 19.5 20.8

Aiun: dtinuupcuznssunsrAUIia:aviasunisUs:neussious:Auie/aunAuUs=AUEIATNG laznnsUs:UruN1sveausEn«
Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts

waviuAIuNIsnaInvaduu.Inesus:nusin
U 2561

The Marketing of the Thaire Life Assurance PCL
in 2018

dmsuuue.InedUs=Augsnluld TideUs:nunesasy
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IWUIAU (Supplementary Plan) 10unan rinlAINANISvee/o
vouﬁmdouwémﬁmﬁﬂowuﬁunsaos-a-ﬁu (Short term product)
AOWANAIUTIAUASDIS:E:81D (Long term product) 10u 50:50
ifoifsunuandoulnountinogh 44:56 9nIudItiuvaInan
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Service) la:soUIdUAANAUUSENUS=AUZIMNNUSEN Ialiounty
1JuusnsAdtussA9lUFouiU

In 2018, THREL’s reinsurance premiums totaled THB
2,400 million achieving an annual growth rate of 11.3 percent,
which was in line with growth in the industry’s life insurance
and reinsurance premiums, and a market share of 19.7 percent.
Growth in the Company’s reinsurance premiums stemmed
mainly from the health insurance product group or the
supplementary plan group. Therefore, the ratio of short term
product to long term product became 50:50, versus 2017’s
ratio of 44:56, as spurred by positive market response to the
government’s policy on tax allowance for health insurance
premiums and the public’s greater health consciousness. The
Company still focused its marketing policy on development of
products and value-added services and creation of business
partnership with all insurers to conduct business together.
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s199uUs:=91U 2561
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As its distribution channel, the Company transacted
business directly with all 22 domestic life insurance
companies in Thailand so as to develop and launch
products through all types of media such as television,
radio, on-line media, telemarketing, agents, and
financial institutions. Future product trends include
Insurance Products for Seniors and Accident & Health
Insurance. The Company’s reinsurance contracts
signed with insurance companies allow for an active
role to be taken to jointly manage underwriting and
monitor claims to strive for good underwriting
results. The Company also supportsthe technical
considerations that accompany the acceptance and
payment of claims.

Compliance with all the regulatory requirements and
high standards of corporate governance have built up a
level of trust with customers that strengthens its ability
to be a leading player in the life insurance market. The
Company’s CAR Ratio at the pre audit CAR at the end
of 2018 was higher than 380 percent, considerable,
exceeding 300 percent, the credit risk that life insurers
carry in their CAR calculations is at the lowest possible
level when reinsuring to THREL, equivalent to a AAA
rating for a foreign reinsurer and in 2018, the Company
obtained a financial strength rating of A- (Excellent) Stable,
from AM Best.
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The Trend of Life Insurance Business in 2019
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It is expected that life insurance business will likely
continue to follow a rising trend and is expected to grow in
a range of 4.0 percent to 6.0 percent in 2019 based on the
following factors:

1. The recognition of preparedness to enter an aging society
and cope with the environment-related health threat or
iliness risk, which will increase the opportunity of life
insurance products that cover both financial planning and
health protection/medical expenses; and

2. The rapid technological development, which leads to
digitalization of sales and marketing systems to suit the
lifestyle in the digital era and provide quick and easy services
through all distribution channels for life insurance.

Nonetheless, in 2019, the business will also experience
numerous challenges such as a stricter control from the rules
and procedures for domestic sales of life insurance products,
tough competition in health insurance which is exposed to
risk of loss, changes in the international financial reporting
standards through the upcoming enforcement of IFRS9 and
IFRS17, the entrance into the digital world which will induce
a greater number of competitors to switch away from other
businesses to the insurance industry, and a timely adjustment
to modern technology.

In view of both the encouraging factors and the
challenges discussed above, the Company accordingly
places great importance on personnel skill and knowledge
enhancement, seeking of new professionals or partners
to work with the Company, digitalization of service and
operation systems, and exploration of new investment
opportunities in a bid to increase the Company’s
competitiveness and ensure consistent and sustainable
growth.
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Risk Factors
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1 >300 1.6
2200 AA+ Aat AA+
2 na: AA Aa2 AA A+ 2.8
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2150 A+ A1 A+ A
3 lia= A A2 A A 4
<200 A- A3 A- ]
BBB+ Baa1 BBB+
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4 <150 BBB Baa2 BBB 5 8
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s BB+ Bal BB+ B i
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Risk Factors
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1. Risk Based Capital

The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has implemented Risk Based Capital (RBC) regulations to ensure
that the insurance company has sufficient capital to cover risks arising from the business which varied by character,
size and complexity of the company. The adequacy of capital measured by the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR),
calculated as below;

Capital Adequacy Ratio: CAR

Total Capital Available : TCA
Total Capital Required : TCR

Capital Adequacy Ratio : CAR =

* Total Capital Available (TCA) represents the fair value adjusted of shareholders’ equity corresponding to the OIC’s
requirements.

* Total Capital Required (TCR) represents the amount of capital required in order to cover risks arising from business
activities, consisting of 5 key risks;

1. Insurance risk 2. Market risk 3. Credit risk

4. Concentration risk 5. Surrender risk S

The OIC required the insurance company to maintain CAR not lower than 140%. The Company has policy to maintain
CAR above 300% to take competitive advantage from reinsurance credit risk charge as RBC model required the insurance
company to hold the capital to cover reinsurance credit risk. Considering to this requirement, if the insurance company make
outward reinsurance with the domestic reinsurer that has CAR above 300%, the insurance company will be allowed to hold the
capital at the lowest level of risk charge 1.6%, equal to making outward reinsurance with the AAA rated off-shore reinsurer.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s CAR is higher than 380% which is in the process of auditing from Auditor.

Reinsurance Credit Risk Charge

Counter party
Domestic Off-Shore (Credit Rating) Risk Charge

0 (%)

1 >300% 1.6%
> 200% AA+ Aai AA+
2 and AA Aa2 AA A+ 2.8%
< 300% AA- Aa3 AA-
> 150% A+ A1l A+ A
3 and A A2 A A 4%
< 200% A- A3 A-
BBB+ Baa1 BBB+
B++
4 <150% BBB Baa2 BBB 5 8%
BBB- Baa3 BBB- +
5 BB+ Ba1 BB+ B 97
or Below or Below or Below or Below ?
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In conducting business, The company has to face changes of internal and external factors that may affect its
business. Hence, the Company develops risk management framework to help accomplish its vision, mission, short and
long-term goals as well as maintain its financial stability, reputation, image, competitive advantage and sustainability. This
framework is developed from Insurance Core Principles (ICP) of the International Association of Insurance Supervisors (IAIS)
and corresponds to the OIC’s. risk management requirements.

The Company determines Risk Appetite and applies in the formulation of strategy and operational policy as well as
the establishment of enterprise risk management guidelines. In the process of risk management, key risks that may affect
capital fund, financial stability and reputation of the Company are identified, assessed and analyzed their
interrelation. In addition, the Company also sets key risk indicators, appropriate thresholds and risk measures to
manage these risks to be within acceptance level; and continuously monitor the effectiveness of these measures.
The Company also focus on learning from actual loss experience and then revises both risk measures and key risk
indicators to cope with changing environment. Moreover, the company regularly monitors key risks and reports the
results of risk management to both Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors every quarter.
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Risk Management Process

Key Risks of the Company are classified as follows:

1. Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk is caused by inappropriate formulation and execution of policies, strategic plan and operational plans;
or their inconsistency with external and internal factors including social, economic and technological changes.

Risks Risk Management Measures

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk arises from formulation of strategic plans, The Company takes into account all factors affecting

policies and operational plans that are inappropriate or
inconsistent with external and internal factors, especially
capital fund which is crucial to the Company’s stability.

Strategic plans must be formulated based on return,
risk and capital fund. The Company is required to maintain
the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) according to the Risk
Based Capital (RBC) regulations prescribed by the Office
of Insurance Commission (OIC) and also in alignment with
the company’s risk appetite.

Total Capital Available (TCA) and Total Capital Required
(TCR) to cover insurance risk, market risk, credit risk and
concentration risk. It integrates these factors into business
planning and core business activities, including product design
and development, pricing, underwriting, claims management,
reinsurance and investment, to ensure that the Company
is financially secure and has sufficient capital for its risk
appetite.
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Risks
Change Management and Innovation Risk

Risk is that employees lag on creativity which an
essential factor in the development of products, services,
programs, processes, operation and business models
of a company to use innovation, for example online
media, Internet of Things (loT) or Digitalization. As a
result, The Company may lose a competitive advantage
because employees could not handle changes in
environment and could not apply new Innovation into
organization.

Risks

Customer Concentration Risk

The concentration of premiums or profits on a customer
or a group of customers may cause severe fluctuation in the
Company'’s performance in terms of revenue and profit when
it loses business from these customers.

Risks

New Competitors Risk

There is risk of new competitor entering the life
reinsurance business which will further intensify competition
in this industry. The ongoing growth in Thai life insurance
market will likely attract international reinsurers who are
seeking new investment opportunities.

2. Operational Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company has worked with employees to raise
awareness in the importance of creativity and innovation
via the 3D&l (Digital, Diversity, Deregulation and Innovation)
Project. There are many activities organized to promote
creativity and encourage innovation for example, talk
sessions from external innovator, knowledge sharing
activities and 3D&l project, 1 department 1 project.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has a business expansion plan to jointly
develop new products with potential insurance companies
and launches into the market in order to diversify income
sources and reduce over income dependency on a particular
company or a group of customers.

Risk Management Measures

The Company recognizes and gives importance to
development of its capacity in all aspects to gear up for the
more competitive environment. It has launched an internal
capacity identification and assessment project that will pave
the way for strategic planning and long-term competitive
advantage.

Operational Risk is the risk caused by mistake, lack and delay arising from disqualified employees, inappropriate work
processes and work systems as well as external factors; including lack of internal control and good corporate governance that

have an impact on its performance and financial status.

Risks

Information Technology Risk

This is risk of the Company’s information technology
system facing cyber threats, including the system being
damaged and malfunctioned which could disrupt its business
continuity.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has established an information security
system that safeguards essential business operations and
data. Back-up systems and a Back-up Data Center are in
place to support the business in the event of an emergency.
Regulations and procedures in connection with the Company’s
policy on information security and information system
security to prevent loss and leakage are also in place.
Knowledge sharing activities are arranged to educate
employees on how to prevent cyber-attacks.

The Company has established the business continuity
plan for its information technology system and ensures the
plan is tested twice a year. The testing results could meet both
Recovery Point Objective (RPO) and Recovery Time Objective
(RTO).
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Risks
Legal and Regulation Risk

The change or the new laws, rules and regulations,
including financial reporting standard, may be the threat to
business strategies implementation and causing operating
expenses increased as the Company complies with those
laws, rules and regulations.

Risks

Reputation Risk

Business behavior and services that are below
standard, lack of Good Corporate Governance, poor
performance and continuous decrease in Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) may cause bad reputation of
the Company.

Risks
Human Capital Risk

Risk is that the company lag or lose knowledgeable
and qualified employees who are key factors that support
efficient and effective performance of the Company.
The lack of knowledgeable, skilled and experienced
management and employees may cause the Company to
lose its competitiveness ability and may have an impact in
its performance.

3. Insurance Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company closely monitors the laws, rules and
regulations that are changed or increased; such as
International Financial Reporting Standard 9 and 17 (IFRS
9 & IFRS 17), Risk-Based Capital framework Phase 2
(RBC 2) and assess their impact on business strategies,
expenses and performance in order to prepare and seek
appropriate measures to manage itself prior to
enforcement of regulations.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has followed up the satisfaction and
expectation of key stakeholders on the Company in order
to improve corporate performance and image such as
conducting survey on satisfaction of employees and
participating in survey project on corporate governance
of Thai listed companies organized by the Institute of
Directors (IOD). In the year 2018, the Company got 90
per cent points, rated as “Excellent”.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has trained all levels of employees to
develop their knowledge, specific skill required for the work,
capacity and competence. In addition, the Company also has
additional risk management measures as follows:

1. The Company has formulated the Succession Plan
to prepare potential employees to succeed the top
executive positions.

2. The Company has implemented Talent Development
Project by organizing individual development program
for middle management and continuously monitors the
progress of the Project.

Insurance risk is associated with performing insurance activities, 1.Product Design and Development, 2.Pricing,
3.Underwriting, 4.Claims Management, 5.Reinsurance and 6.Reserving, due to deviation of frequency and severity of actual
experience deviate from assumptions used in actuarial calculation and affect underwriting profit.

Risks
Product Design and Pricing Risk

This is risk from inappropriate assumption and model
for product design, development and pricing, which could
result in insufficient premium income to cover all incurred
expenses.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has set up the Product Design and
Development Committee to consider crucial issues
that may affect its financial position. After products are
launched, the underwriting results are monitored for
further product improvement and development. A
sensitivity analysis is conducted to identify the effect from
changes in the assumptions on the underwriting results
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Risks
Underwriting Risk

This risk is associated with inappropriate underwriting
criteria, outdated statistical data, incorrect and inadequate
information of the insured, and improper underwriting
process, thus leading the Company to take higher risk than
expected.

Risks

Claims Management Risk

This risk arises from claims payment which is
non-compliant with contractual terms and conditions.

Risks

Reinsurance Risk

Reinsurance risk occurs from reinsurance
arrangement that is inappropriate and inadequate to
cover any possible major losses, including
risk from failure by the retrocessionaire to fulfill the
agreed contractual obligations and risk of the
retrocessionaire’s credit rating being downgraded.

Risks

Reserve Risk

This risk is involved with a deviation or fluctuation
between the actual experience and the assumption
used for reserve valuation, including a reserve valuation
model that does not cover all components or conditions
which generate cash flow of such product, this leading to
inadequacy of reserves for the actual obligations.

4. Market Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company has standardized and updated its
underwriting manual based on technical knowledge and
statistical data. Training is provided for underwriting staff
to improve their knowledge and discipline. Compliance with
the guidelines in the manual is also monitored.

Risk Management Measures

The Company has prepared and updated the claims
management manual, specifying therein the rules and
procedures for, and the persons authorized to approve, claims
payment. Compliance with the guidelines in the manual is
also monitored.

Risk Management Measures

The Company implements an excess of loss
retrocession program that is compatible with the

company’s risk profile. The company has only used
an approved reinsurance broker from Lloyd’s, which
is a world’s leading reinsurance broker. In addition,
the Company has a policy to retrocede its business only
to retrocessionaires that have credit rating of at least “A-.”

Risk Management Measures

The Company’s loss reserves are examined and certified
by independent (Fellow to Society Actuaries) FSA actuary.
Moreover, factors that might affect the Company’s loss reserve
estimates are analyzed and monitored periodically to ensure
they adequately cover its obligations.

The Risk cause of changes in marketing factors such as interest rates, exchange rates, debt instrument prices and
equity instrument prices may affect investment income, value of assets and liabilities and capital fund.

Risks

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is posed by assets and liabilities
mismatch and changes of interest rates, which could
affect the Company’s performance and capital. Interest
rate risk is considered as a major risk facing life
insurance business.

Risk Management Measures

The Company’s Interest rate risk exposure is differs
from other life insurance companies because reinsurance
premiums are mostly collected on a yearly basis and its
premium rates are determined according to current age
of the insured, thus resulting in a low level of the assets
and liabilities mismatch. However, the Company always
keeps abreast of the relevant information and periodically
conducts an interest rate trend analysis so as to adjust and
align its investment plan with the prevailing circumstances.
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Risks

Equity Securities Price Risk

This risk is incurred from equity market price fluctuation
caused by economic and political uncertainties either at
domestic or overseas and, hence, affecting the Company’s
investment income and capital.

5. Credit Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company has a policy to avoid speculative investment
in high risk securities and to focus on securities with strong
fundamentals. Economic conditions are regularly monitored
to be a basis for proper investment decisions. The Company
also controls its exposure through investment ratios such as
product limit and counterparty limit to control any losses that
may occur.

Risks
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterpart may not fulfill
its obligations, delay in payment or credit downgrade,
which resulted in unpaid debts or bad debts; and may
affect the Company’s cash flow and overall performance.

6. Liquidity Risk

Risk Management Measures

The Company’s credit risk arises from investment in
debt instrument and retrocession. However, the Company
has regularly analyzed its counterparty ability to repay
debt and financial status. Besides, there is a policy to
retrocede to reinsurance companies and invest only in
private bonds of the companies with at least “A-" credit
rating for their financial stability.

Risks
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company fail to pay
debt and financial obligations upon due; caused by inability
to liquidate assets or the assets can be liquidated but at the

costs too high to be accepted, may affect the Company’s
revenue from investment.

Risk Management Measures

The Company manages its liquidity by diversifying assets
and matching with liabilities as well as matching investment in
liquid assets with its liabilities and obligations. In addition, it
manages to have sufficient liquid assets when cash is needed.
Furthermore, the Company also focuses on maintaining its
liquidity at a higher level than that stated in the OIC’s regulation.
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Structure of Shareholders and Management

whonu Shareholders
sredogiioRusnelnn Major Shareholders List

5 S'wﬁ'anejupjﬁoﬁua\lam 10 s1e1sn U dulnayan:ideu Ten major shareholders as at the latest registration book
ASIKAYER ru dun 4 NUYBU 2561 closing date of September 4, 2018 are as follows:

s1uBotNoRu s1uBounonRu dndou (Sova:)

Shareholders’Name No. of Shares Percentage

1. USBN TngSuUs:Aungsio 910/ (UKIBU) 88,897,430 14.8
Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited

2. NauNUIUAUONAdIRUS=8:819 34,030,500 5.7
Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund

3. BNP Paribas Securities Services, London Branch 23,200,000 3.9
BNP Paribas Securities Services, London Branch

4. naunuidnoluasAuauDalAW 21,649,329 3.6
Aberdeen Small Cap Fund

5. navnuinoluasiulnsn 21,255,313 3.5
Aberdeen Growth Fund

6. NaVNUIUAIVOSAUARUS:E:819 18,340,103 3.1
Aberdeen Long-Term Equity Fund

7. N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 1 15,797,300 2.6
N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 1

8. NaINUIUAUONAdIAUS:8:819 75/25 13,250,100 2.2
Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund 75/25

9. usENn TneiBudADMS 91MA 11,110,051 1.9
Thai NVDR Co., Ltd

10. USBN NSUINWUSAUANY 971R (UKIBU) 10,404,800 1.7
Bangkok Insurance PCL.
Sou 257,934,926 43.0
Total

1. gfloriudu 342,065,074 57.0
Other shareholders
sounvau 600,000,000 100.0
Grand Total

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)
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Among the shareholders listed above, Thai NVDR Co.,
Ltd., which is an issuer of non-voting depository receipts
(NVDR), held 11,110,051 shares or 1.9 percent in the Company
as of the latest closing date of the shareholders registration
book on September 4, 2018. Normally, the voting rights on
these shares are not exercised at the shareholders’ meeting.
For the latest update on number of shares held by Thai NVDR
Co., Ltd., please visit website of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand at www.set.or.th.

For the latest update on the top ten major shareholders,
please visit website of the Company at www.thairelife.co.th
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand at www.set.or.th after the
closing of the shareholders registration book.

The major shareholder who, by actions, has a significant
influence over the determination of policy or the management
or control of operations of the Company.

- None -

Major Shareholders’ Agreement
- None -
Issue of Other Securities

The Company has not issued any preferred shares,
debt securities or convertible securities that may affect rights
of the shareholders.

Dividend Policy

We have a policy to pay dividends at not less than
40percent of net profit from the separate financial statement
after corporate income tax and all types of reserves as
required by law and as specified in the Company’s Articles
of Association. However, the dividend payment is subject to
change as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Board
of Directors. The Company’s dividend payment must be
approved by OIC pursuant to Section 32 of the Life Insurance
Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments).
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Shareholding of Director and Management

J1uouruiiie | <dauourufiio $1usuAui dndounns
tu 5uf fu 5ufi Wasunlay fiorufuusen
31 5uo1AU 31 5uo1AU IWuiu (anav) (Sowa:)
2561’ 2560’ Tud 2561 Percentage
No. of Shares No. of Shares Change
as of Dec 31, as of Dec 31, Increase
2018’ 2017 (Decrease)
in 2018
AUNSSUNIS
Director
1. uwa&‘;ur;i HAUKA 1,341,471 1,341,471 - 0.22
Fjausaua:qmsr‘iﬁﬂdussaﬁﬁmo: 3,000,000 = 3,000,000 0.50

Mr. Suchin Wanglee
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

2. unedns sInSuassA 3,360 3,360 - 0.00
Aausalia:unshgdliiussalinnio: - - -
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

3. ns.naus NNMENSU 8,018 8,018 - 0.00
Aausana:ynsnadliiussalanio: 672 672 - 0.00
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

4. ns.onsny Inwsuna - - - -
Aausana:ynshadiiussalanno: - - - -
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

5. uNAUAY Sasuun - - - -
Aausalia:unshaaliiussalnnio: - - - -
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

6. ns.g8 Tunv:1od - - - -
Aausana:unshgdiiussalianno: - - - -
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

snovauUs:91U 2561
usun TnesUs:Auddn 911m (UH1BU)



7. UNE00UIR ISDISHAUILS
Aausaiia:unsnadliiussatinno:
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

8. uUNUNBNS Fossruanng
Aausana:ynshgdliiussatanio:
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

WUSHIS
Management

9. uN&E0asuNs sssuounsni
Aausala:unshgaliussalnnio:
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

10. UNE1DNNUNT NITYIUIIFIA
Aausala:unshgaliussatnnio:
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

1. ungwssy [arsnudla
Aausaia:unshauliussalinnio:
Mr. Pornchai Loratanavilai
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

12.  uN&&ENtyry BII9STYsUN
Aausana:-unshgdliiussalanio:
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana
their spouses and children who have
not reached maturity

JusuAu
fio ru 3uf 31
Suo1Au 2561
No. of Shares
as of Dec 31,

2018

1,500

Jusuui
fio ru 3uf 31
Suo1A 2560
No. of Shares
as of Dec 31,

2017

1,500

Jusurui
Wasunday
IWuiu (anav)
TuU 2561

Change
Increase
(Decrease)
in 2018

dndounas
fioAuluusen
(Sova:)
Percentage

0.00

KUBIKA  : '9usurUAIYRoeNIa:Es:Ia0 600,000,000 HU

Remark : 'Number of common stock issued and paid-up 600,000,000 shares
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Management Structure

TASUESNISTANISVOIUSEN|US:NOUADYANINSSUNIS
USBN lIa:ANUNSSUNISEAEY SOU 4 Aru: TANIN ArUNSSUNTS
MSOEDU ANUNSSUNISASSHIAzNMKUAARDUINU ANUzNSSUNIS
adnu 1a:AnUNSSUNISUSHISAOUIFEY

ANIZNSSUNISUSEN

Jo90uAfuzNsSSUNISUSEN Us:NaumdunNssuN1sIuou
8 riu Us:=naugiounssunishluidugusiisgruou 5 ru ia:
nssumshIdugiusnissuou 3 inu dnssunishiiaruautmidu
NssUN1sdas=AUTYVOILEENY udonndouunaninouri
AN N.a.0. AKUATUSIUOU 4 MU 91s:MsANSIFIKLIVoY
nssuN1IsnIUTaUVAUVaIUSENYnInunldnsi1oa: 3 U Inglui
NMSAMMUAFIUOUINSAR:=ASIFIIMUIUNURGAVOINSSUNTS
nssun1sdas:ia:nssunisgngosl’ idosnussnasulusios
nssunisgountivRiutjinougnoueosirysiunisus=Au
AoRdogduouTA

$S19BOANIZNSSUNISUSEN 1U Sun 31 SuoAu 2561 Uavsoldl

The Company’s management structure is composed
of the Board of Directors and four subcommittees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, Investment Committee, the Risk Management
Committee.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of eight members
of whom five are non-executive directors and three
are executive directors. Four of them are qualified as
independent directors, as defined by the Company
based on the SEC’s guideline. Each term of directorship
is three years, as stipulated in the Company’s Articles of
Association. However, there is no limitation on the number
of terms of office of the directors, independent directors
and members of subcommittees because the Company
needs to especially retain some board members who are
knowledgeable and specialized in insurance business and
are scarce. Profile of each director is presented in Board
Members.

As of December 31, 2018, the Board of Director are listed below:

AN

Position

1. IN9EIUF HIINE
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. UYdns sINSIASSA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

Us:saunssunis lla=nssun1savnu
Chairman and Director of the Investment Committee

NSSUNTS GouseNsliny NssNNsadnU I1a:NSSUNSUSHISAOUIE
Director, President, Director of the Investment Committee and Director of Enterprise

Risk Management Committee

3. ms.nous nnnansmu

Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana lla:nHUARINDUIINU

NSSUN1Sdds: Us:s1UNSSUNISASIEdU l1a:Us=s1UNSSUNISASSHA

Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration

and Nominating Committee

4. ps.onNsny Inweuuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

5. UNAUATY sasuun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

NSSUNNSAES: NSSUNISASIEOU lla=NSSUNISASsHIllazNIKnuAAINoUIINU
Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee

NSSUNSDAS: NSSUNISASIEOU NSSUNISASSHIIIA:NTHUARIADUINU
lla:Us:sUNSSUNISUSKHISADIAEY

Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee, Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)
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Position

6. ms.g8 lunv:iod
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

7. UNEOMUOR ISOISAUILS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

8. UWUNBNS osstuanme
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

NSSUNMSAEs: 1a:NSSUNNSUSHSADIZEN
Independent Director and Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSKHNSADWIADN laziigosiisnuosnisivng
Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Senior Vice President

NSSUNISUSMNSAWIASN lla:gjgosiieuosnsinny
Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Senior Vice President

KUEIng - Us:dnvednssunasiisiazniunanvogiuioio AruNssuNIsIazgusHisvoaussn
- ANUNSSUNISUSKISADIASIAISIAIIKUIAIAIUN 1 UNSTIA 2561
Note - Profile of each Director is listed on the board and company management.

- The Risk Management Committee held positions from January 1, 2018.
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The authorized directors on behalf of the Company
are Mr. Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson, Miss
Navadee Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn
Suwansathit whereby any two of them shall co-sign
with the Company’s seal affixed, except Miss Navadee
Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
are unable to co-sign. Miss Sirin Dhumma-upakorn
acts as the Company Secretary.

Term of Office

At every annual general meeting of shareholders,
one-third of the total number of directors shall vacate office.
If the number of directors is not divisible into a multiple of
three, the number of directors nearest to one-third shall retire
from office. The directors to retire from office in the first and
second years following the registration of the Company shall
be drawn by lots. In subsequent years, the directors who have
remained in office for the longest time shall vacate office.
A vacating director may be eligible for re-election.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of
the Board of Directors

1. Perform a duty and oversee the Company to ensure
compliance with the laws, objectives and Articles of
Association of the Company, resolutions of the Board
of Directors and resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting,
by upholding accountability with due care and integrity.
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10.

11.

12.

Formulate and approve the vision, strategy, business
direction, policy, goal, guideline, action plans and
budgets of the Company and its subsidiary, prepared
and proposed by the management, and supervise
the business administration and performance of the
management or the persons designated to handle
such task to ensure compliance with the policy outlined
by the Board of Directors.

Follow up on the performance of duty, on a continuous
basis, to ensure it meets with the action plans and budgets.

Ensure that the Company and its subsidiary have in place a
sound and efficient accounting system, a reliable financial
reporting and auditing system, and an adequate and proper
internal control and audit system.

Review the risk management process and policy and
follow up on the performance of risk management in level
of risk appetite.

Ensure that there is no conflict of interest between
stakeholders of the Company and its subsidiary.

Establish a policy on good corporate governance and
ensure an efficient use of such policy. Including a review
of policy on corporate governance at least 1 time per year.

Appoint subcommittees such as the Audit Committee or
any other committees to assist in and support the Board
of Directors’ discharge of duty, as deemed fit.

Appoint the Company secretary to assist the Board of
Directors in performing of duty to make certain that the
Company’s business operation conforms to the applicable
laws and regulations.

Seek professional advice from external organizations,
where necessary, toformabasis for proper decision-making.

Prepare an annual report and assume responsibility for
the preparation and disclosure of financial statements to
present financial position and working results in the past
year to the annual shareholders’ meeting.

Arrange for an annual general meeting of shareholders to
be held within four months after the end of each fiscal year
of the Company.

13. Conduct performance evaluation of the Board of Directors

14.

and the subcommittees on a yearly basis.

Approve the criteria for special compensation for employees
from the yearly performance.
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The delegation of power, duties and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors excludes the authorization or
sub-authorization of the directors or their appointees in the
approval of transactions in which they or persons with potential
conflict of interest (as defined in notification of the Securities
and Exchange Commission or notification of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board) may have a vested interest or may
obtain benefits in any form or may have any other conflict of
interest with the Company or its subsidiary, unless it is the
approval of transactions that are in line with the policy and
guideline approved by the shareholders’ meeting or the Board
of Directors of the Company.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of
the Chairman

1. The Board Chairman or person designated by the Board
Chairman has a duty to call for a meeting of the Board of
Directors by submitting an invitation letter at least 7 days
before the meeting date allowing directors adequate time
to fully consider board matters to be raised at the meeting.

2. The Board Chairman determines the meeting agenda jointly
with the President.

3. The Board Chairman chairs meetings ensuring that it is
efficiently run with sufficient time for the presentation of
information and participation of all directors from the raising
of questions and opinions to the controlling of discussions
and the summation of the meeting’s resolutions.

4. The Board Chairman plays a key role in encouraging all
directors to comply with corporate governance principles.

5. The Board Chairman communicates all essential
informationto directors.

6. The Board Chairman encourages directors’ participation in
shareholders’ meetings and acts as chairman of the meeting
to control and ensure that the meeting is efficient and to
respond to all questions raised by shareholders.

7. The Board Chairman requires the Board of Directors to
perform their duties in compliance with the laws and the
corporate governance principles of the Company.
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According to the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Board of Directors shall be composed of at least five, but
not more than fifteen members.

1. The board members are categorized into two types:

Type 1. classified by management into
e Executive director

¢ Non-executive director

Type 2. classified by independence into
¢ Independent director

¢ Non-independent director

2. The directors’ term of office shall be three years at a
time. At every annual general meeting of shareholders,
one-third of the total number of directors shall vacate office.
If the number of directors is not divisible into a multiple of
three, the number of directors nearest to one-third shall
retire from office. The directors to retire from office in the
first and second years following the transformation of the
Company shall be drawn by lots. In subsequent years, the
directors who have remained in office for the longest time
shall vacate office. A vacating director may be eligible for
re-election at a shareholders’ meeting.

Apart from retiring by rotation, a director shall vacate
office upon his

(1) Death;
(2) Resignation;

(3) Disqualification or possession of legally prohibited
characteristics;

(4) Being retired by resolution of a shareholders’ meeting
with votes not less than three-fourths of total number of
shareholders attending the meeting and having voting
rights, provided that their aggregate shareholding is
not less than half of total number of shares held by the
shareholders attending the meeting and having voting
rights;

(5) Being retired by a court order.

3. The independent directors shall have the qualifications as

regulated by the SEC and the SET.
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. The Board of Directors shall be composed of independent

directors in the number not less than one-third of total
number of the board members, but not fewer than three
persons

. The Board Chairman and the President shall be elected by

the Board of Directors. It has been made a policy to elect the
Board Chairman on a yearly basis at the first board meeting
held after every annual general meeting of shareholders.

. The directors and executives are allowed to assume the

position of director and executive of affiliated companies
or other companies, which shall comply with regulations of
the SEC, the SET and concerned authorities and shall be
informed to the Board of Directors’ meeting.

. The Board of Directors shall designate a Company secretary,

whose duties are to give advice on legal issues and all
rules and regulations necessary for the Board of Directors,
support the board activities, to coordinate and ensure that
the board resolutions are implemented, and liaise with the
shareholders, the SEC, the SET and all regulatory bodies
concerned.

Board of Directors and Subcommittee’ meeting
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1. Board of Directors Meeting

(1) The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates of
the meeting to be held at least four times a year (once
every three months) and shall clearly specify regular
items on the meeting agenda such as consideration
and approval of reviewed/audited financial statements,
etc. The agenda other than such regular items shall be
jointly determined by the Board Chairman, Chairman
of the Executive Board and the President as deemed
crucial and necessary. In 2018, the Board of Directors
held a total of six meeting, in the event that the meeting
is not held monthly, the Company shall prepare and
submit a performance report to the Board of Directors
on a monthly basis to enable the Board of Directors
to continuously monitor, control and supervise the
management’s operation.

(2) The Board of Directors stipulates that the directors
should attend at least 75% of all board meetings in a
year. Any director who is unable to attend any of the
board meetings must inform his/her reason for such
absence to the Board Chairman at the first opportunity
and before any such meeting.
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(8) Other Subcommittees may hold a meeting to consider

the issues under their power and duties delegated by
the Board of Directors, with the Company secretary to
coordinate the meeting.

(4) The Company Secretary has duty to prepare and

submit a letter of meeting invitation together with
meeting documents to the Board of Directors at least
seven days in advance, except for an urgent meeting.
Such documents shall only contain a summary of the
proposed issues, whereas the confidential issue which
is not to be disclosed in writing shall be presented for
discussion only at the meeting.

(5) The non-executive directors may, as deemed fit and

necessary, arrange a meeting without presence of the
management, with the Company secretary to coordinate
the meeting, and shall report results of such meeting to
the executive directors.

(6) The directors may additionally request essential

information directly from the President and the Company
secretary, including the executives assigned to handle
such matter.

(7) Atevery meeting, the executives and concerned parties

should be invited to join the meeting in order to provide
information and details as a basis for making the right
and timely decision.

(8) A self-evaluation is conducted on a yearly basis and

the evaluation results are proposed for discussion at
the Board of Directors’ meeting.

2. Audit Committee Meeting

In 2018, the Audit committee members held four

meetings; their main duties can be summarized as follows:

(1) Approved quarterly financial statements and review

annual financial statements of the Company prior to
disclosure to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
Securities Exchange Commission.

(2) Nominated and recommended an appointment of

auditor and fixing of auditor’s remuneration, with EY
Office Limited being nominated and appointed as
auditor of the Company for another year (for the year
2018).

(3) Attended two joint meetings with the auditor, one of

which was organized without the attendance of the
Management to consider the guideline and scope of
auditing and review the audit plan, results and
recommendations to ensure that the audit of financial
statements was carried out properly and completely in
accordance with the auditing standards.
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(4) Oversaw internal audit, approved the annual internal
audit plan based on the Company’s material risks,
reviewed the audit reports to ensure that the audit was
carried out properly and completely in accordance
with the internal auditing standards, and followed up
on the recommended corrective actions to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control
system.

(5) Reviewed the report on compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on a quarterly basis.

(6) Reviewed the report on related party transactions on a
quarterly basis.

(7) Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk
management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with the
global standard, obtained the audit report on the
enterprise wide risk management process from
Internal Audit Department at least annually, and
provided recommendation for the effectiveness of
the risk management process.

(8) Arranged for the annual self-assessment of the Audit
Committee as a Whole and discussed the assessment
results at Audit Committee meeting.

(9) Arranged for the annual evaluation of internal control
adequacy and proposed the evaluation results to Board
of Directors for consideration and approval.

3. Remuneration and Nominating Committee’s Meeting

In2018, the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to select and nominate qualified candidates
to serve as directors, committee members and top executives.
It also encouraged and ensured that the Company embraced
good corporate governance in compliance with the rules,
regulations and notifications of the regulatory authorities.

4. Investment Committee’s Meeting

In 2018, there was an Investment Committee’s
meeting held two meeting to consider annual investment plan
Investment Policy Framework and Investment Governance
Policy.

5. Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s Meeting

In 2018, The Enterprise Risk Management Committee
had four meetings. The committee reported risk management
progress to the Board of Directors Committee on a quarterly
basis.
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The names of the Board of Directors, including their meeting attendance in 2018 are given below.

No. of meetings attended / No. of meetings held in 2018

The The Enterprise The
Board of Directors

. Mr. Suchin Wanglee

. Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

. Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

. Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

. Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

. Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

. Ms. Navadee
Ruangrattanametee

. Mrs. Nutchakorn
Suwansathit

Chairman and Director of
the Investment Committee

Independent Director,
Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Chairman
of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

Director, Director of the
Investment Committee,
Directoe of the Enterprise
Risk Management com-
mitte

and President

Independent Director,
Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of
the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

Independent Director,
Directorof the Audit
Committee, Director of
the Remuneration
Nominating Committee
and Chairman of the
Enterprise Risk
Management committee

Independent Director and
Director of the Enterprise
Rick Management
committee

Director and Director of
the Enterprise Risk
Management

Director and Director of
the Enterprise Risk
Management

6/6

6/6

6/6

5/6

6/6

5/6

6/6

6/6

4/4

4/4

4/4

2/2

2/2

2/2

Remuneration | Investment | Risk Management| Annual
Directors| Committee |and Nominating| Committee
Committee

General
Meeting

Committee

2/2 - 1/1

- - 1/1

2/2 4/4 11

. . 1/1

- 4/4 11

= 3/4 11

= 4/4 11

- 4/4 11

Executive office who served as director in the committees

. Ms.Duangnaporn
Kanchanawongwut

Director of the Investment
Committee

2/2 = 11
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£u 3UR 31 SUSTIAU 2561 WUSHISVaJIUSBN4iigIuoU 7 nu MUl As of December 31, 2018, the management of the Company
are listed below:

ATMKUY

Position

1. UNYaNS sINSuassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

wousunsinmy
President

wyougorusunslnnithewmunssno 1
Senior Vice President - Business Development 1

2. U&E190U9R 180uSHUIUS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

3. uUnyns gossruanne
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

wyouwausunsinnithewmunssne 2
Senior Vice President - Business Development 2

4. UE19asuns sssuaunsni
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn

wiosduosnstnnyiedrydiia:nisiu / WhensuAuneluna:ouds:uinu / theusmns
ddnunu na:zueusSHIsAOIASY

Senior Vice President —Accounting and Finance / Operation Control & Budgeting /
Administration / Enterprise Risk Management

wousunsuwasnu
Vice President — Investment

5. UWadmndguNI ﬂ']fUQUO\]Fi(‘)b'U
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

wWousuNsugWstuISuUs:NUNY
Vice President - Underwriting

6. unawssy larnSnudla
Mr. Pornchai Loratanavilai

7. UNEEAYrYT BUIRSIYSUN
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana

wouosnisueinAlulad
Vice President — Information Technology

HUNEIKG @ 7. UNENENTYTYD BUI195rysun Iﬁs‘umsl|r;iur§umuﬁmuuju§ms 4 s191ISN SUR 16 NsNNIA 2561

Note 1 7. Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana was appointed in accordance with the definitions of the first four top-ranking executives on July
16, 2018.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of
President
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1. SUlIABOU AIia USKIS NIsAIUUIIUNEA:/KEONISUSKHISITU 1. Be responsible for, supervise and manage the Company’s
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day-to-day operation and/or administration, including
overall operational monitoring, to be in line with the policy,
business strategy, operational goal and action plans,
financial targets, and budgets of the Company as
approved by the Board of Directors and/or resolved
by the shareholders’ meeting.

. Map out business plans, define the administration authority

and prepare the yearly budgets for business operation and
capital expenditure for the Board of Directors’ approval,
and report the actual performance against such approved
business plans and budgets to the Board of Directors.
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10.

11.

Set out the organization structure, management approach,
and employee recruitment, training, employment and
termination of employment, and determine employees’
wage rate, salary rate, compensation, bonus and fringe
benefits under the framework and budgets approved
by the Board of Directors (except for the remuneration,
salary, compensation, bonus and fringe benefits for the
President and the Senior Executive Vice President which
shall be determined by the Board of Directors).

Follow up on and report the Company’s status and
position and recommend alternatives and strategies
that fit with the policy and market environment.

Supervise and control the Company’s operations in
the areas of, among others, finance, risk management,
internal control, back-office operation, and resources.

Act as representative of the Company and have authority
to contact government agencies and other regulatory
bodies.

Communicate with the public, shareholders, customers
and employees to promote a good reputation and image
of the Company.

Ensure that good corporate governance practices are
in place.

Have power to issue, amend, add and revise rules, orders
and regulations pertaining to the Company’s operations
such as employment, appointment, removal and discipline
of staff and employees, fixing of salary and other monies
including aids and welfare provision.

Consider, negotiate and approve the entering into
agreements and/or any other acts relating to the
Company’s day-to-day operation and/or administration
under the delegation of power framework approved by
the Board of Directors.

Assume any power, duty and responsibility as
assigned or under the policy designated by the Board
of Directors.
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12.Have power to sub-authorize and/or assign other person
to perform any particular act on his behalf, whereby
any such sub-authorization and/or assignment shall be
within the scope of authorization specified in the letter
of attorney and/or shall conform to the rules, regulations
or orders set forth by the Board of Directors. The said
delegation of power, duties and responsibilities of the
President excludes the authorization or sub-authorization
of the President or his appointees in the approval of
transactions in which he or persons with potential conflict
of interest (as defined in notification of the Securities
and Exchange Commission or notification of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board) may have a vested interest or
may obtain benefits in any form or may have any other
conflict of interest with the Company or its subsidiary,
unless it is the approval of transactions that are in line
with the policy and guideline approved by the
shareholders’meeting or the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The Company has documented the delegation of
power to serve as an operational handbook and a
reference and to follow the procedure in a systematic
manner. The Company determines and approve the yearly
udgets which consist of the estimated underwriting income
and expenses, capital expenditure, operating expenses,
and purchase of fixed assets.

Company Secretary

ANINSSUNISUSEN TaduAnngavlnu1Ianoasuns
sssugunsru Asdsikudiduiaviunisusen AYINIUN 26
nsnN1AU 2560

laviun1susuniruninaniunisdanna:ifusnun
N:108UNSSUNIS KUVEOUAUS:BUATUNSSUNIS S18d1UNS
Js:guAnuznssun1s s1gviuUs:910vodusendg rnuvdoum
Us:yuyfionu snednunisus:guyiionu sounuifusnun
srevunsiaoulnidufsnedtulnunssunisnol UsHAs
ANGUNNSAUY MIUAANENSSUNISAIAUAAIANUUS:NTA
AakuA na:9naddrursngvrunisiaoulaiFoniuuinsn
89/14 $udmnnlnunssunisinUs:saunssunisiazus:siu
nssun1snsavaeuns1uNMeluiasuitNIsuUINIURUSENS
Tnsuseunudu
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The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Sirin Dhumma-
upakorn as Company secretary from July 26, 2017.

The Company secretary is responsible for all matters
relating to Board registration, meeting letters, Board
meeting reports, annual report, shareholders meeting
letters, shareholders meeting reports, including Profits
and Loss reports by the Board or management and other
transactions required by Capital Market Supervisory Board.
According to measure 89/14, the copy of the Profits and
Loss report should be presented to the Presidents of the
Board and Auditor within seven working days of receipt
of the report.



uen9Nd 1avIUNISUSEN §adKuRmIneTUT

1. TAmuzUN0ovsiuntnssunisiutonnriune s:deuvoUGuAu
F VOUUSENYAAUNSSUNISADINISNSUIAAARAIL
TROnsUfUARUegvgnfevaaue soufiunissiediu
nasilasundagiuiieniruangruiefddediAnyinacu:
NSSUNIS
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Additional duties and responsibilities include:

1. Provide regular advice to the Board of Directors in respect
of all legal and regulatory issues.

2. Organize shareholders and Board meetings in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

3. Record proceedings of shareholders and Board
meetings and ensure decisions agreed at the meetings
are implemented.

4. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in the control
and disclosure of corporate information.

5. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in respect of
Board decisions.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of
President

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for determining remuneration of directors
and top management before seeking approval from the
shareholders’ meeting for director remuneration and from
the Board of Directors for top management remuneration.
The rate of remuneration is comparable with those
offered in this business and is commensurate with their
duties and responsibilities and sufficient to stimulate and
retain the talented personnel. Directors who are assigned
to also serve on other subcommittees will receive extra
remuneration. The Board of Directors shall decide on the
remuneration of each top management member based on
a yearly evaluation of his/her performance.
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1. mmauunuﬁlﬂuﬁoﬁu 1. Monetary Remuneration

AIMOUIINUNSSUNS Directors' Remuneration

Tud 2561 Fiﬁmauununssun'lsmuuﬁﬁds:qumﬁry The remunerations in 2018 as the resolution of the
wiionuAsan 7 1Jadun 25 Iuwieu 2561 Inuids1eazidunmy  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 7 on April 25,
n1swmnaldi 2018 are listed below:

A1MaUIINUSI8IADU (Aanu) Fi'\lﬁuUs:qur-'iané"\l* (sioninu)
Monthly Remunerations Conference fee YeBr sG]
ANZNSSUNIS . AUINU(RBNU)
Board of Directors (per person) (per person) Gratuity(per person)
Us:saunssunis NSSUN1S Us:saunssunas NSSUN1S
Chairman Director Chairman Director
ANIZNSSUNISUSBEN -lu- -Tui- 30,000 20,000 TUINU3.75 A1uUIN ARESS
Board of Directors -None- -None- THUs=squnssunns 2 dou
nssunNIsniaudu nauas:
1 dou

No more than 3.75
million baht allocated
to the Chairman with 2
parts and The other
directors are allocated
one part per person.

ANU:NSSUNISASIEOU -Tui- -Tui- 30,000 20,000 -Tui-
Audit Committee -None- -None- -None-
ANU=NSSUNISASSHIlla=NIKUA -Tud- -Tuig- 30,000 20,000 -Tuig-
AMBDUIINU -None- -None- -None-

The Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

ArU=NSsSUNIsadnu -luid- -lui- 20,000 20,000 -lui-
Investment Committee -None- -None- -None-
ANUNSSUNISUSHISAOUIFEY -Tud- -Tuid- 20,000 20,000 -Tui-
Enterprise Risk -None- -None- -None-

Management Committee

KueIKR *ANdsUsyuRaASIronau 9:91eTInNssuNsAsouUsuINidu
Remark *Meeting allowance per person was paid to only the attendees of the meeting.

s199uUs:=91U 2561
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ArmouInunssunis’ I0UsteyAnalul 2561 asUldaai
in 2018, remuneration for the board of directors, details of which are shown in the below table:

AMU8Us=3uNssUNIS (U1n)
Remunerations (Baht)

AUINU9 | AfU:NSSUNAS| AMUNSSUNTS | AMUNSSUNIS|  AMU:NSSUNAS | AMINSSUNIS
s1udonssunis nssUN1s usen NSOV ainu assn USH1sAdY

Board of Directors Gratuity Board of Audit Investment na:nanun idov
Directors Committee | Committee Arnaulnu Enterprise Risk
Remuneration | Management
and Nominating| Committee
Committee

1. unegdus HIIKa 833,331 110,000 = 40,000 = = 983,331
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. ns.ndus NNREINSU 416,667 80,000 120,000 - 40,000 - 656,667
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

3. U1gans sINSJassA 416,667 80,000 - 40,000 - 80,000 616,667
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4. ns.ansnd Inwruuna 416,667 60,000 80,000 - 40,000 - 596,667
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

5. uwAUATY §as1uuri 416,667 80,000 80,000 - 40,000 80,000 696,667
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

6. ns.q§ Tunvziod 416,667 60,000 - - - 60,000 536,667
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

7. UNUNBNS qossruaﬁmai 416,667 80,000 - - - 80,000 576,667
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

8. UN&19nuoR 1IS0ISAUIUS 416,667 80,000 - - - 80,000 576,667
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

9. UN&10nIuUNI ﬂ’]fy?u()\]ﬁ(‘)ﬁfl - - - 40,000 - - 40,000
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

Sou 3,750,000 630,000 280,000 120,000 120,000 380,000 5,280,000

Total

HUNBIAR : AMREUINUNSSUNS TUusouATmaUIINUIUZU=GUSHISNSSUNMSENAUR 9 ITULUSMSARNSIAIKUINSsUNSsTUAIENSSUNTS
yndouduludAuKbanssunis

Note : The remuneration for committee did not include in the remuneration as the management. 9th directors were
executive who holds the position of director in the sub-committee so there is no gratuity.
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AIMOUIINUL USKNS
Tud 2561 USEN Tn918AMOUINUUS:NBUADY FUIFioU

na:ludalnAuL USKHISTIUOU 7 $18 SOUAVAU 29.5 a1uun
2. AmeuINUAU
AIMOUINUA UVOINSSUNAS
-Tui-
AMOUINUB UL USHIS

usBnaladnlndnednudisouidosdwininy usnising
gnslnaunulusmnsiaousesa: 5-10 vouduidiou Tud 2561

Bneln918TUAUNUNEINUANSUIA BIBWAINSULUSHS 7
$1¢ SOUMVEU 1.9 aauun

us
us

ynaINs

Executives’ Monetary Remuneration

In 2018, the Company paid the remuneration,
including salary and bonus, to the seven executives with
a total of 29.5 million baht.

2. Other Remunerations

Other remunerations for directors
- None -
Other remunerations for executives

The Company provided the provident fund for the
Company’s executives with 5-10 percent contribution on
their salary. In 2018, the Company totally contributed Baht
1.9 million for seven executives.

Human Resources

2ausuwlndau

g1ruouwUNVIUVaIUSEN TnysSUs:Auddm 911nm
UKIBU) ru dui 31 SudiAU 2561 J91UuduNVduU 46 AU
ngnidugruouwinurulunusedunan Avl

nwun

Department

Number of Employees

The total number of employees as at December 31,
2018 was 46, employees working on each core business
line is listed below:

91usuwliniau
No. of Employees

WuUSKH1s Management

WsJU18SN9 Business Development
9WIWUNayNs Strategic Planning
dluauuvoya Data Support
Wa1snuaSuUs:Nung Underwriting
UtyBIla:n1siiu Accounting & Finance
nouaumUTuua:uuUs:U'w Operation Control & Budgeting
ushasdinuu Administration

avnu Investment

USH1SA2WIFBN Enterprise Risk Management
InAlulagansauine Information Technology
USHISIIa:WAJUNUUUYE Human Resource
nsovdouNulu Internal Audit
AranisunuAnIuNnruig Compliance
sounvAu Total

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)
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AnNdUIINUWUNYIU

USBNaiulvuIEIYAIMOUINUWLINIIUNNSAUDET
IKUNzaunazidusssy MUAIYA ADIUS ADIUEIUISA lla:
Uszaunasnilunasrinau IngienstuanissngAinauinuniiu
s:g:dU 1a:s:9:019 IngAmauinulus:g:dudiu USENARTKUA
RN sWoasrurldSuInudansIiudouds:910vodawdnaau
nuns:uounsigau [Usla na:1dusssu anannisIngmn
MOUIINUIILU Pay for Performance Ingddnuwanisuqumiiu
voywunduidusigunna wiunisUs:idu Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) uningnoniiuuuuaan [ngisuains:AuusEn
auuIS:AUEINIU WIE  Iwun 1a:wanuaumIuanau 1a:n1s
Us:1Ju Competency RaonAdodiuImUSSSUKaNVaIUsEnd
dourmauinulus:e:g190U USENGIEWANSUNTNANENTWYY
wUnuuwunsUs:I0u Competency AUSENaUUNTETUNIS
fruARoUNoKLnTuaIseNBWYIWINIIU UBNIINTUSENT
guldirnnsdisovAmeuInuAUUSEnduqlunguUs:Auneidus:
gz IWOSNWN I1az1a5UEaSAIIUEUSOTUNISINUTUSTUUSHAS
nuuyuglAnuusEng

AMOUINUSIUVaIWLINIUUDNIKGoNIFUIFOUAT
Uninas gudadannisdusuds:noundes Tula Fusosindo
WiAY Fudununadnuansadiasswieruaunulusnsisos
a: 5 - 10 VU9gUo8IIU ASNUIWEIUIA Fuaunuus=Au
duAu Wuaunulasiniswads:lesuwdniu n1sUs:=AUEIn
aURAIMANa=avNIW soufivAnTs9eluniswauununains Tud
2561 USBN4lA9IAMBUINUTKINWUNIUTIUOUNIFU 41.5
auunn lnedveyaniunisaanolud

Employees’ Remuneration

The Company has reasonable and fair remuneration
policy for every level of employees, based on their
educational background, knowledge, skill, and work
experience and pays them both short and long term
remuneration. For short term one, the Company has
clear and transparent process to determine yearly salary
increase, based on Pay per Performance principle; which
takes each employee’s performance evaluation, through
Key Performance Indicator (KPI), into consideration.
The KPI is transferred from top to bottom, starting from
corporate level down to division, department, section
and employee. In addition, competency is also assessed
in accordance with the Company’s core culture.
For long term remuneration, the Company considers
each employee’s potentiality through competency
assessment, which is used in determining advancement
in career path. Apart from this, the Company periodically
surveys the remuneration of other companies in the
insurance group in order to maintain and strengthen its
competitiveness in managing human capital.

Apart from salaries, the remuneration package
includes bonuses, financial aids, employee provident fund
to which the Company contributes five to ten percent of
the individual employees’ salary depending on years of
service, healthcare, social security fund, employee benefit
program, life, accident & health insurance, and personnel
development. In 2018, The Company paid Baht 41.5 million
for employee remuneration, details of which are as follows:

AMOUIINUVOIWUINIIU aauuin

Employees expenses THB Million
NuIBiduNazAIISY Salary and wage 36.7
NuUs:Nu&unu Social security fund 0.3
|T1uaunun7'mo\1r1uﬁﬂsoolﬁauﬁw (ludouveuusisn) Contribution to provident fund 2.2
waus:lgsunasoanandnu Defined benefit plans 0.4
AMOUINUBUY Other benefits 1.9
Sou Total 41.5
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ulgureniswsiurunans

U§Gnqms:hu“nua:Tﬁnmuehﬁrgﬁu@oamsvﬁmm
unansiJueguuIn FIATANINISEISO9AWNDINISAS
Weauuuaansveawdnuuina:Auvuoedidususssu o
yuiuuwauntawaneulawmuainu:Asudulunisingiu
soufluN1sINEBUAIIUWSaUIW ORI WUNIOKUNTUANEDEW
5nnoy IneusEnalnwnIuIANRILUS:8:819lUNISWAIUN
IUUS'wU‘ﬂFIa (Individual Development Plan) IngwUnJau
WUIAUUNYBY KUOBINUUSHISIAXWAIUANUUULE  9:50UAU
MsAHUASUILUNISWAIUNAIKUN=EU Uan9Ind USENEY
TalinunisAnuis:AuUStyryrIntunangnsavidsingndu
ThInwanuuAoY

Tud 2561 wanuulasunasidnousulugauou 46 Au
91UdU 62 KaNgMs dUSUNINUA 883.5 3oy Boluvousu
1039 19.20 goluvmowunvrunlnsSunisausuntvAu

uanindoannwudruluniswamurypainsniudni
Anatofiaviununas Tud 2561 usundla9alndnonssy
Knowledge Sharmg IWoThwun‘]’]umU'lsnSUV\T\] naznan
IWagunoWS KUY 91NIWoUWINIIU 1A:3N8INSNIBUDN
TuussenARas1uassA NIA2USAIABIAUSSAYUS:AU
§9m 18U A9IWSI00uAU Reinsurance IWalnwanyiunn
nuosdunns:auIvalessiouaniu, inaluladlusunnn
voussiaUs:fu, Innovation Thinking 1Juau WoiJunis
i0nlannssrAu uﬂUamsaswomusssu Digital Learning
Organization suJuadoundevesnagns 3D&l 1Wo
nasidagundaswnAnssunasnaguvedwliniau Tne
G3nnUs:adA I ods195MUSSSUOIANSEOJANSIIKY
udnnssuR gudu
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Human Resource Development Policy

The Company attaches a high level of importance
to human resource development and has conducted
training needs surveys of all employees to enable them to
develop essential skills that are appropriate to their role
and career advancement. The Company encourages the
employees to develop long term Individual Development
Plan and; with the support of each employee’s boss
together with the division responsible for human
capital development and management, incorporates it
into a proper type of development. In addition, the
Company also provides scholarship for employees

to pursue their master degree in relevant fields.

In 2018, the Company assigned 46 employees to
attend 62 training courses, 883.5 all training hours, 19.20
average training hours per employee on training,

Apart from general human development plan as
above mentioned; in 2018, the Company had initiated
Knowledge Sharing activities. These activities are
enable the employees to listen to new knowledge,
exchanges their views with colleagues and external
instructors in a creative atmosphere. The subjects are
such as introduction to Reinsurance in order to drive
employee at all levels understand clearly about company’s
business, Technology for the future of the insurance
sector, and Innovation Thinking; aiming at broadening
their perspectives and consequently leading to innovation
and Digital Learning Organization. This is part of 3D&l
strategies to change the way employees behave at work
with the purpose of building corporate culture that leads
to an organization of sustainable innovation.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

1. asUnoUIRUVEIANUINSSUNISUSENIREOAUS:UUNISAOUAL
n1eluvagustn

TunsUs:¥UANINSSUNISVOIUSEN ASIA 1/2562
IGoduR 20 NnUNIWUS 2562 FulnssuN1IsAsovEOUNY
3 NuIVIsouUs:5UAY ArUNssuNislaUs:ITUS:UUNTS
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1. NMsAouAUNEluaIAns

2. N1sUs:10UADWIEEN

3. MsAdUAUNMSURUAIU

4. s=uuansauinfila=nsdoansioya
5. s:uUNISANMIY

ANUENSSUNISTA2WIRUDY USENGTS:UUNISAOUAL
neluf Weawana: HHUN: auef'ms“u|§'oan'|sri"|ssnssuﬁuw"ﬁa
huswihry IESVIYE uusms na: unnanmuovoanuunna
AuNand 8Ny usBnads:uunisnouAuNeluluiovedus A
Weogwalla:auisnnalrnisaduianisvasusnaiduluniu
hahnmsﬁ'lﬁuallaﬁomsﬁ'ﬁ (Good Corporate Governance)
na:gnoulusula

uaN9INT AUNSSUNISUSENAIMUATHAIZNSSUNIS
ns99aoUlsUN9HUAdoUNIUTHUSENATS:UUNISADUAL
nneluna:nisnsovaounisluninur:auna:gus:answa nas
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aauam\luounrﬂmsma |woaoumuThusunqumssw\nu
NNSIULYNNNADY 1A:W1STUISI8N1SAIR BoloIurdo
shenishonelinouTalgInwwaUs:lusulninougnaadia:
1JUTURIUANAKUIY US:NIANA:VORIHUAVOIAUZNSSUNIS
A1AuUKaNNSweIa:naIAKANNSWY ATUZNSSUNISAIAU
naIANU ArzNssuNIsmatanannswenkaus:inAlng na:
namKannSwolkUs:INATNg soufivruoeuUBuR IR govay

nsUsz1dus:uunsnouAuMeTUlUBodv1unU ARIzNSSUNTS

MSo9d0UlAdINIKUADAAADIAUANIINSSUNISUSENIA:Y
douurys

1. Summary of the Board of Directors’ Opinion Regarding
Internal Control System

At the Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2019 on
February 20, 2019 in which the three Audit Committee
members also participated, the Board of Directors
assessed the Company’s internal control system
and inquired the management, staff members and
concerned units about various pillars of the internal
control system, including

1. Control Environment

2. Risk Assessment

3. Control Activities

4. Information & communication
5. Monitoring Activities

The Board of Directors deemed that the Company’s
internal control system was adequate and appropriate for
entering into transactions with the major shareholders,
directors, executives and related persons of the foregoing
persons. As well, other pillars of the internal control system
were adequate and could allow for the Company to operate
business under good corporate governance principles and
with transparency.

In addition, the Board of Directors has entrusted
the Audit Committee with power and duties to review
and ensure that the Company has a sound and
effective internal control and internal audit system
and abides by the law governing securities and exchange,
the SET’s regulations or the laws applicable to the
Company’s business. The Audit Committee must
hold a meeting at least once a quarter to review and
ensure correctness of the Company’s financial reporting
and to consider and make certain that the Company’s
connected transactions or transactions with potential
conflict of interest are correct and compliant with the
applicable laws and the notifications and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Capital
Market Supervisory Board, the Board of Governors
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and other concerned authorities. Audit
committee agreed with the Company’s board of directors
and auditor.
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2. AoWIKUVaYANUNSSUNISASovaaulunsiRgADWIKUIAN

2. Opinion of the Audit Committee that Is Different from the

AIU9INADIUIKUVOIATU:NSSUNISUSEN KiouaouUnyBi

Board of Directors or the Auditor’s Observation Regarding

VodunaifuonunsAouAuNEiu

ARUENSSUNISASI9deUlAdIRUADRAADIAUALU:
nssuN1sUsEN Inedno1uIkuUSENTs:uuNIsnaUAUNIETU
S$:UUNMSUSHISADWIA Y s:uuN1sAOUAUNISURUAVIUVOY
weushIsiazs:uun1sinauR DUs:anSwaloawe

3. rontviumsoaounisiu

uSBn4lndnATHUSBINUNSIYERUNIETU Buognieln

N1SANURIIAVOVALUNSSUNISASIADU ANUZNSSUNISASID
doudonunalunsinisy nennau la:lonunuy ANSIAIKUY
AonuNIUMNSI9doUNTETU

ArUzNssuUNIsnsavaeulanAupalnusEnalronUA
1unsaEeuUNElUAGoMinIsANYY Us:aunisnl N1sousy
AlrunauWoawonunisUguankuin  TnedagUubdunuano
wiinM 9IN1ASIULY AMMUNAKOMUNIURSI9deuUNETU

Tnolus:rordurensovaounielulaUfgufvIunso9
JOUMTUIWUNISASIVEOUATASUOUTAYINANIENSSUNIS
nsovdou wsounaTnmLanU'nnaonumsnounumsﬂu
N1SUSHISADUIAEY Nla: msmnumuaunnuoumumw 9
TuUSENY 18:UN1EUDSIYINUNDATUNSSUNISNSIVEOUDEYT
aunavennlnsuna

4. Bonltwauninualanisufumaviuvouussn

u§Ganﬁ5mﬁ\1dhamlmmsdﬁﬁﬁmumqnma (Compliance)
(Compliance) W ImuImsuouummuuans YUADUNSSUNNS 01S:
Wik 1Jo3Uf 10 manAu 2557 zsaL.humuamsdgummunnhmuaﬂ
nelAnismAugIaveuAruNssuNIsRsavaou JgUuid uwand
3ady1 9158IUSNA MAtiAKortvUIIANISURURMUNAKUNY

Tus: ho"mU[J'wm||amsUﬁJﬁmunrJthIﬁﬁmsmsoo
aeun'\sUﬂummuvamhumua nmhmumoq Alfwovauia:
U118U9S19ITUNDANINSSUNISASIAEOUIW 9 IN1SaouUNIU
1JuUs:91lunnlnsuna
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Internal Control

The Audit Committee provided opinion consistent
with that of the Board of Directors and the auditor.

3. Head of Internal Audit Unit

The Company has established Department of Internal
Audit which is under the direct supervision of the Audit
Committee with full authority to appoint, dismiss and
transfer Head of Internal Audit Department.

The Audit Committee monitors the operational
activities of the Head of the Internal Audit Department.
The Committee supports training programme for the
Department’s Head to ensure that he or she obtains skills
and knowledge appropriate for the role of internal auditor.
Ms.Phanida Arkad-amnuay, is Head of the Internal Audit
Unit.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department
performed the audit according to the audit plan approved
by the Audit Committee and providing advice on internal
control, risk management and overseeing various
departments in the company and regularly report to the
Audit Committee every quarter.

4. Head of Compliance Unit

The Company has established a compliance
department, which was approved by the Board of
Directors on October 10, 2014. The Department will
be under supervision of the Audit Committee.
Ms.Cholthicha Arayamaytheekul, is the Head of
Compliance Unit.

During the year, the department performed
compliance monitoring and report to the audit
committee to review on a regular basis every quarter.
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The Board of Directors of Thaire Life Public Company
Limited is aware of its role and responsibility as leader of the
organization and remains steadfast in conducting business
under the corporate governance principles. The Company
itself encourages the creation of innovation that can add value
for shareholders, employees, customers, business partners
and all groups of stakeholders. This is for the stakeholders
to rest assured that the Company has the ability to compete
and adapt to changes, while taking account of code of ethics
and long-term social and environmental impacts to ultimately
create sustainable value for the organization.

The Board of Directors has established the corporate
governance policy for the directors, executives and employees
to adhere to in performing their duties, as follows:

1. The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in defining
objectives which could lead to sustainable value
creation including business, customer, stakeholders,
and sustainable society by setting the Company strategy
and policies to attain the objectives and goals as well as
monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on performance.

2. The Board of Directors perform dedicated and responsibility,
independent and clearly define the roles and responsibilities
of chairman and chief executive officer and monitor
management’s proper performance of its duties.

3. The Board of Directors, executives and employees must
perform duties with commitment, responsibility and
integrity by upholding the corporate governance principles
and the code of ethics and conduct along with company
regulations in their work.

4. The Board of Directors must put in place a nomination
process to ensure that qualifications of nominated
directors ,executives and employees are sufficient to
drive the organization forward towards goals, as well as
set an effective compensation structure and performance
evaluation and provide skill and knowledge development
for every departments in the company on a regular basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



5. ANUZNSSUNISUSEN naddnisninduanana:dnnistnusen
Gns:uouN1sUSKIsSAoUIFBua:N1sAoUALUNETU naon
UARRURIIAIE=IANTISAUTANE VauwaUs:TusuR 019
AV ulAs:nowUSENAUY Daoulnidonug sounadodniu
nslsUs:TosuTunswedu veya nazlonnavesusuniu
nATsouU

. nm-nssumsu§6nGnmus‘uﬂmuouiumsmuaiﬁﬁ
ns: uoumsmsvmn']sw\]'\un'wn'lsmuua msﬂmua
vauaa'mrymu 9 nnmaa Weuwe [uIoan nazundefio
1JulUmungineun UIRSFIU 1a:IUURURAR IR oV od

. ATUINSSUNISUSEN Advaluauunisiidousouveuyie
Au analAgiioAulnSunisufimaguiniiounu Uans
Tunasiinfivioyaansaunrna:igodnunisdoansiu
USBNoENINUN:AU soUMIdA TRTUNaINUALWUS 1Worin
ninAdeansAugtioAuna:zgidoulMidedu oguinun:zau
INIRgUAU 1a:NuIdan

. ANUENSSUNISUSEN WUSKAS la:wlininu noddnfioUfua
nuuloutenisnoniunassUsu Tnsuseninisdoans
ulvurgnismoniunassUBuluaAnsIa:noUARANIBUDN
WolkifinnasurUURUATA9SY

. ANUZNSSUNISUSYNAauatUaUUuTHINASAIUSSSUDIANS
Adnisuiudnnssuuids:gnalslunisanGuinuig o
ussadnnus:ava IUnuNgIazIwUS SA9 Nulus:e:duna:
$:9:910 nounIUnumsaswnmUs Iuvumoanmhsaw
A 1A goveula:inouSUIAsoUNodvALNAE:F JIonaoU

nisUfuantuulgurgnasninuanananiIsnAveay

5. The Board of Directors should ensure that the company
has risk management and internal control system and
monitor conflicts of interest that might occur between the
company and stakeholders. The board should also prevent
the inappropriate use of corporate assets, information
and opportunities

6. The Board of Directors must ensure the integrity of the
company’s financial reporting process to be timely,
accurate disclosure and trustworthy information
regarding to regulatory requirements, accounting
standard and the company procedure.

7. The Board of Director must encourage shareholders’
participation, ensure equitable treatment of shareholders
and shareholders’ rights to access information with
appropriate channels of communication with the
Company by providing the investor relations services
to facilitate proper, equal and timely communication
with shareholders and other stakeholders.

8. The Board of Directors, executives and employees must
adhere to the anti-corruption policy. The Company has
communicated this policy within the organization and the
outsiders to ensure it is translated into practice

9. The Board of Directors must encourage create a
corporate innovation culture that creates value for the
company and its shareholders together with benefits for
its customers, other stakeholders, society, and the
environment, in order to support sustainable growth
of the company.

Compliance with THREL’s corporate governance

usunioIJuAsdEsnn d1Arylunisus:ITuwanIsusHas policy is a key indicator to measure the business

JANTS8SAVaIANUINSSUNISUSYN uju§ms soufiun1s  management performance of the Board of Directors

Js:1uwanisUguiviuvaswundiunnau and executives and to evaluate the performance of all
employees.
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The Company encourages compliance with the
corporate governance principles and code of business ethics
and communicates with the directors, executives and
employees to ensure that they would realize and acknowledge
the significance of corporate governance and ethics and that
all employees have studied, familiarized themselves with, and
signed to acknowledge the corporate governance and ethics
as a guideline for their operation. Moreover, the Company
has to maintain corporate governance policies on its website
and regularly monitors the compliance program in general. An
assigned working party must report all updates and progresses
to the Board of Directors. For instance, the Audit Committee
has been entrusted with duties to monitor issues concerning a
conflict of interest, internal control and audit, and compliance
with laws and regulations prescribed by relevant authorities,
and to regularly report the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. The Company secretary is responsible for reporting on
securities holding by directors and executives and informing
the results thereof to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis; and so on.

Subcommittees
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1. The Board of Directors may form Subcommittees in various
aspects of concerns to assist in studying and scrutinizing
details of particular matters. Qualifications and scope of
duties and responsibilities of each committee shall be
clearly defined.

For each board-level committee, a meeting shall be
convened to assess the performance or review all policies
at least once a year.

2. The Board Chairman shall not act as either chairman or
member of the Subcommittees so as to ensure that each
committee can truly exercise their independent judgment.

List of Subcommittee Members and the Scope of Duties
and Authorities

To enhance efficiency in business administration and
supervision, the Board of Directors has appointed
subcommittees to specially oversee and follow up
on the routinely important activities or the activities that
need close attention. There are four subcommittees at
present, namely the Audit Committee, the Enterprise
Risk Management Committee, the Investment Committee
and the Remuneration and Nominating Committee.
Their structures and responsibilitiesare clearly identified
as follows:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on November 5,
2012, consisting of three independent directors. The Audit
Committee’s term is three years. As at December 31, 2018,
its existing members are listed below:
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» ns.nauUs NOrRensU .
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

. ms.an$ny Inweuna .
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

« UNAUATY sasIUUN .
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon
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NSSUN1Sdas:ia:us:s1unNsSsSuUNISASOv&oU
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

NSSUN1Sdds:lla:NSSUNISNSIvaaU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

NSSUN1Sdds:lla:NSSUNISASIvdoU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

There are two members of the Audit Committee, namely
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul and Dr.Kopr Kritayakirana, who has
accounting and financial knowledge, was assigned to examine
and oversee the Company’s operation, financial reporting,
internal control system, external auditor selection, and conflict
of interest.

Ms. Phanida Arkad-Amnuay, Internal Audit Manager,
serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

Term of Office

Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are in
office for a term of three years. The chairman and members
who retire by rotation upon the end of each term of office could
be reappointed to serve on the Audit Committee.

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Toreview and ensure the accuracy and adequate disclosure
of the Company'’s financial reports in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards by collaborating with
the Company’s external auditor and executives who are in
charge of financial reporting on a quarterly and yearly basis.

2. Torecommend the auditor, during the course of auditing the
Company’s accounts, to review or examine any transactions
deemed necessary and significant.
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3. To Review and assess to ensure the appropriateness,

effectiveness and accordance with international standards
of the Company’s internal control, internal audit systems,
and risk management systems, provide opinion on the
Company’s internal control assessment report to the Board
of Directors, assess the independence of the internal audit
unit, define the authority and responsibility of the internal
audit unit, recommend the appointment, rotation and
termination of employment of heads of the internal audit
unit or any other units in the Company involved with internal
audit functions, approve the internal audit charter, the audit
plans, budgets and resource plan for the internal audit unit
and consider the appropriate scope or resource limitations
and the remuneration of heads of the internal audit unit.

. To review and ensure the Company’s compliance with

the law governing securities and exchange, including
notifications of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board,
notifications of the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, the law governing life assurance,
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, regulations
of the office of insurance commission and any other laws
applicable to the Company’s business.

. To consider, select and recommend appointment of an

independent person to serve as the Company’s auditor,
propose remuneration for the Company’s auditor, and
participate in a meeting with the auditor, without presence
of the management, at least once a year.

. To consider the connected transactions, assets acquisition/

disposal transactions or transactions with potential conflict
of interest and ensure their correctness and compliance
with the laws, notifications and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand including
other concerned authorities, to make certain that these
transactions are reasonable and bring about the maximum
benefit to the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



7. 9ANIsS19dIUvavAnu=nssuUnN1snsovdaulnuidnmiwaldlu

s18vruUs:91U0vouusENY FusnguudInanofiodasunl
InoUs:s1UAUzNSSUNISASIREOUNIASI8ITUMINANIADY
Us=naunouvoyasgatioumnisalUl

(N) ADWIAUINEIAUADIUNNEDY ASULoU IJuniBatiolrvey
STYIIUNINISNUVOIUSENY

(V) n:muﬁwﬁ'uoﬁunmu|Wuawavoas:uumsnouqu
nigluvouusyng

(A) AOWIRUIRB9AUNISUZUAMIUNOKUNEIFOINANNSWE
I1a:nanAnannswe gusoufivus:naAnazvonirunvoy
ANIZNSSUNISNIAUKANNSWEla:NANTAKANNSWE AUz
NSSUNISAINUAAIANU AfUNSSUNISRaIArnanNNSwe
IkaUs:zInAlNg na:natanannsweiruds:inAlng soufiv
nnruredUlafIReovouUssavoIusin«g

() n:mnﬁwﬁ'aoﬁunmumm:auvo\ltg,aouﬁryﬁ

(®) AUIKUIA ¥9ATUSI8NISA 0190 AUV ANE INIWA
Js:Tesu

(@) 97UoUN1SUSBUATUNSSUNISASIVEOUIIA:NTSIVISOU
Us=guveunssunisnsovdoulifa:nu

®) AWIKuKSoToduINnInusoUNATUzNSSUNTISASIYEDUTA
SuannisuUAntNNAIUNNURS (Charter)

(®) snen1sdulnfiIRudniiioRuvesusdng nazgasnunoll
pasnstuMelAveulvartniia:AouSuUBRsaUNIRSUUBU
KU8INATUZNSSUNISUSEN

. UQUuAn1s3ulnnIuRnnu:NSSUNISVaIUSENEUDURUNER0Y
ADUIRUBOUVOIANU:NSSUNISASIEOU

9. TRValauanu:INWIgUSKISIA=S189IUFADANUZNSSUNISUSEN

nstuwundaidioavduanidsnunisndonisns:ninvsaldd

() sneMsAnAAUTANGINWaUs:Tosu

(V) NSNS, nossUBU IavEAUNA ndoinouunwsodRdAny
Tus:uunouAuNBlu

(n) msthtlungruneRineavounussiavaIusEn

TnernTusIGUNISIRTVNNeTUIDaIRANUNSSUNISASIY

7. To prepare the Audit Committee’s performance report,

duly signed by the Audit Committee Chairman, for
publishingin the Company’s annual report, including at
least the following information:

(@) Opinion on accuracy, completeness and reliability of the
Company’s financial reports;

(b) Opinion on adequacy of the Company’s internal control
system;

(c) Opinion on compliance with the law governing securities
and exchange, notifications and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Capital Market
Supervisory Board, the Board of Governors of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, including any other laws applicable to the
Company’s business;

(d) Opinion on appropriateness of the auditor;

(e) Opinion on transactions with possible conflict of
interest;

() Number of meetings convened by the Audit
Committee and meeting attendance by each Audit
Committee Member;

(9) Opinion or observation in overall received by the Audit
Committee from a discharge of duty under the charter;

(h) Any other transactions that should be disclosed to the
shareholders and general investors within the scope of
duties and responsibilities designated by the Board of
Directors.

8. To perform any other task as assigned by the Board of

Directors with the Audit Committee’s consent.

. Provide recommendation to management and report to the

Board of Directors in case of whether the following actions
will occur

(@) Transactions with possible conflict of interest;

(b) Fraud, corruption, strangeness or significant weakness
of internal control systems;

(c) Violation of laws applicable to the Company’s
business.

If the corrective action could not complete within

doulruaunos TRAUNSSUNISNSI9doUSI8VIURDEUNIIU
AUN. ndadrtnuiu n.a.n.lneludndn

Audit Committee deems appropriate. The Audit Committee
shall report to the Office of the Insurance Commission or
the SEC without delay.
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Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee was
established on December 1, 2012, consisting of Director,
independent directors and executive director. The Board of
Directors appoints the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee from among directors. The Enterprise Risk
Management’s term is three years. As at December 31, 2018,
existing members are listed below:
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Position

1. UNALANY sasuun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

2. ns.gs lunv=10d
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

3. U1gdns sInSvassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4. UNE190udR ISouSAUILS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

5. UUNBNS dossruanneg
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
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Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNISUSHISAUIALY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

ﬂSSUﬂ’]SU§h'18ﬂO’1UI§1=U\]
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSHASAOWIZEN
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSHISADIZEY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To formulate the risk management framework and
policy in alignment with the Company’s business
policy and goal as approved by the Board of Directors.

2. To monitor and evaluate risk management in terms

of risk identification and assessment, adequacy of
risk managementmeasures, and risk management
efficiency so as to control the Company’s risks at the
same level as its Risk Appetite.

3. To report to the Board of Directors the overall risk

exposure of the Company and the adequacy of its
internal control system for key risk management.

4. To render opinion and suggestion on development of

risk management efficiency to all departments and
revise the data relating to risk management system
development.

5. To report risk management performance to the Board of

Directors at least once a quarter and report the yearly risk
management performance for a review of the adequacy of
the risk management framework and policy at least once
ayear.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on
February 25, 2014, consisting of directors or executives
and personnel with knowledge, skill and experience in
investment management, risk management or securities
analysis. The Board of Directors appoints the Investment
Committee from among the directors, executives or
external personnel. The Investment Committee’s term is
three years. As at December 31, 2018, existing members
are listed below:

ATMNKLUY

Position

1. UNYEIUA KuNE
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. U1gans sInsvassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

3. UNE10AIUNT NIYIUIIAIF]
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut
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3. AnugIanisadnu nNasuskasiiuadnu IKIduluniunseu
ulgunrenisadnu ulguIuNISUSKISADUIAEBISOU S:IU8UDS
Jpumingonunisaunu llazvonrunvadnnriuignineavod
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5. AMAUANIAS:ULINU UAAINS Nla:valanlsUs:nounisadnu
vayusEnglniindUIWEIWonaNISATUIIU

6. s1evUWaNsadnulkAnuNSSUNISUSBNNS UL WAL IEUD

7. UGUmnu3UlnmIuRAfU:NSSUNISUSENUOUKLNY

s199uUs:=91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

nssuniIsavnu
Investment Committee

nssuniIsavnu

Investment Committee

nssuniIsavnu
Investment Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To formulate an investment policy framework, covering
investment and other business activities of life insurance
companies as stipulated in notification of the Insurance
Commission, and submit it to the Board of Directors for
approval.

2. To consider and approve the Company’s investment
plan that is aligned with the investment policy
framework and risk management policy framework.

3. To monitor and ensure that investments and investment
fund management are in conformity with the investment
policy framework, overall risk management policy,
rules and procedures for investment, and relevant
legal provisions.

4. To monitor corporate governance, transparency, and
prevention of conflict of interest associated with
investment transactions of the Company.

5. To monitor work systems, personnel and data used for
the Company’s investments and ensure that they are
adequate for the operation.

6. To report results of the investments to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

7. To perform any other task or the task under its authority
and responsibility as assigned by the Board of Directors.
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Remuneration and Nominating Committee

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee was
established on February 26, 2015, consisting of three members
of Independent Director. The Board of Directors appoints the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee from Independent
Directors. The Remuneration and Nominating Committee’s
term is three years. As at December 31, 2018, existing
members are listed below:

AMIIKUY

Position

1. As.naus nnrensnu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
2. ps.onsnd Inwsuuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

3. UNAUANY Sdsauun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon
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NSSUNSdas:Ia:Us=81UNSSUNISAaSsSHlIazNIKUAAIADUIINU
Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NSSUNSAas:IIa:NSSUNISassHillazNIKUAAIABUINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NSSUNISEs:Ia:NSsSUNISassHIllazNIKUARIADUINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Nomination

(@) To determine and recommend the structure, size,
composition, and qualification of the Board of Directors
and subcommittees.

(b) To determine policy, criterion, qualification, and
nominatingprocedures for appointing directors and
subcommittee members to replace the outgoing
members.

(c) Torecruitand nominate the directors and subcommittee
members from the qualified candidates and submit the
lists to the Board of Directors for approval and/or propose
them to the meeting of shareholders for approval, as
the case may be.

(d) To select, screen and propose a qualified person to
assume the position of President when it becomes
vacant, including succession plan and regulations for
the key top management positions, and submit these to
the Board of Directors for consideration. In this regard,

Top management means president, as well as any other
assigned positions in the future.
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2. Remuneration

(@) To determine a policy and structure of remuneration
and other benefits for directors, board advisors, and
subcommittee members of the Company that are
subject to transparent criteria and are commensurate
withtheir responsibilities, taking into account duties,
responsibilities and related risks and focusing on
increase in shareholder’s’ equity in the long term.

(b) To determine a policy on remuneration of top
management that is consistent with the Company’s
overall performance and the performance of that
executive.

(c) To determine annual remuneration of the Board of
Directors and subcommittee members and propose it
to the meeting of shareholders for approval.

(d) To determine annual remuneration of the individual top
management and propose it to the Board of Directors
for approval.

3. Others

(@) To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board
of Directors with the consent of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee.

Nomination and Appointment of Directors and Top
Management
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Nomination and Appointment of Independent Directors

The Company sets out criteria for selection process
of independent directors. A candidate must meet
the qualifications for director nomination of the Company as
well as the qualifications of ‘Independent Director’ as defined
by the SEC, SET and OIC, these qualifications are as follows;

Definition of Independent Director

“Independent Director” of the Company means a person
who possesses the complete qualifications and has the
minimum independency as required under the Notification of
the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
Office of Insurance Commission as follows:
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1. Anindependent director must not hold more than 1 percent
of the total number of shares with voting rights of the
Company, parent company, subsidiaries, associated
companies or any other juristic persons who may have a
conflict of interest, inclusive of number of shares held by
his/her related persons.

2. An independent director must not be a director who takes
part in management, an employee, a staff member or an
advisor who receives a regular salary, or a controlling
person of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or subsidiaries of the same rank or
juristic persons who may have a conflict of interest, unless
the foregoing relationship already ended for at least two
years before the date of appointment as the Company’s
independent director.

3. Anindependent director must not have relationship, whether
by blood or by legal registration, in the form of fatherhood,
motherhood, spouse, sibling and child as well as child’s
spouse of the executives, major shareholders, controlling
persons or persons to be nominated as executives or
controlling persons of the Company or its subsidiaries.

4. An independent director must not have nor have ever
had a business relationship with the Company, its parent
company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or
controlling person, in a manner that may interfere
with his/her independent judgment, and neither is nor
has ever been a significant shareholder or controlling
person of any person having a business relationship
with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary,
associate, major shareholder or controlling person,
unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less
than 2 years prior to the date of becoming an
independent director

The term ‘business relationship’ in the preceding
paragraph shall include any normal business transaction,
rental or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to
assets or services or granting or receipt of financial assistance
through receiving or extending loans, guarantees, providing
assets as collateral, and any other similar actions, which
result in the applicant or his/her counterparty being subject to
indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of 3%
or more of the net tangible assets of the applicant or twenty
million baht or more
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5. An independent director must not be or have been an
auditor of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who may have a
conflict of interest, and must not be a major shareholder,
non-independent director, executive or managing partner
of an audit firm which employs auditors of the Company,
parent company, subsidiaries, associated companies or
juristic persons who may have a conflict of interest, unless
the foregoing relationship already ended for at least two
years before the date of appointment as the Company’s
independent director

6. An independent director must not be or have been a
professional advisor including legal advisor or financial
advisor who receives an annual service fee exceeding THB
2 million from the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who may have a
conflict of interest, and, in case the professional advisor
is a juristic person, must not be or have been a major
shareholder, non-independent director, executive or
managing partner of the professional advisor, unless the
foregoing relationship already ended for at least two years
before the date of appointment as the Company’s
independent director.

7. An independent director must not be appointed as a
representative of the Company’s director, major
shareholder or shareholders who are related to the
Company’s major shareholder.

8. An independent director must not undertake any business
in the same nature and in competition with the business of
the Company or its subsidiary, nor be a significant partner
in a partnership or director with management authority,
employee, staff member or advisor who receives salary or
holds shares exceeding 1% of the total number of shares
with voting rights of another company which undertakes
business in the same nature and in competition with the
business of the Company or its subsidiary.

9. An independent director must not have any other
characteristics which make him/her incapable of
expressing independent opinions with regard to the
Company’s business affairs.

After being appointed an independent director
possessing the characteristics as defined in the first
paragraph, the independent directors may be assigned
by the Board of Directors to make a collective decision
on any activities of the Company, parent company, subsidiary
companies, associated companies, subsidiary companies
of the same rank, major shareholders or persons with
control power in the Company.
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In the case where the person appointed by the
Company as an independent director has or used to
have businessrelationship or provides or used to provide
professional service in the amount exceeding the value
specified in Clause 4 or Clause 6, the Company shall be granted
a waiver of the prohibition from such business relationship or
professional service which exceeds the specified value
after the Company has sought the Board of Directors’ opinion
which is expressed in such a way that the appointment
of such person has no impact on the discharge of his/her
duty and the rendering of his/her independent opinion, and
has disclosed the following information in the notice of the
shareholders’ meeting on the agenda item regarding the
consideration and appointment of independent directors:

1. Nature of the business relationship or professional service
which causes such person to fail to meet the specified
qualifications;

2. Reasons and necessity to allow such person to remain or
be appointed as the independent director; and

3. The Board of Directors’ opinion on the nomination of such
person for appointment as the independent director.

The Board of Directors has considered, with due care,
that all independent directors fully meet the qualifications set
forth by the Company and their resuming in such position for
several consecutive terms does not have any impact on the
discharge of their duty and provision of independent opinions.

Nomination of Directors and Executives

Criteria for Director Selection

The Company has set up the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee to be responsible for director
nomination. The Remuneration and Nominating Committee
determines qualifications of the required director positions
that fit in with the nature of business operations and strategies
of the Company. It also takes into account the needed skill
and the policy on board diversity in terms of professional skill
and specialized expertise, knowledge and talent, and work
experience. The qualified candidates who have amassed
professional experience, knowledge and capability that will be
useful to the Company will be selected and appointed as the
Company’s directors or executives. They must also completely
meet the qualifications specified in Section 68 of the Public
Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (and as amended) and the
Notification of the SEC and must not possess any prohibited
characteristics under the SEC Act (and as amended) and other
applicable laws and regulations.
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The existing THREL Board of Directors is composed
of eight members, the number of which is compatible with the
Company’s business operation. All of them have had work
experience or used to assume a top-ranking position in the
business and government sectors. In view of their educational
background, most of the directors finished their studies in the
field of business administration and economics and some of
them graduated in accounting and laws. As such, the Board of
Directors is composed of experts with skills and experience in
adiverse field of professions that can suitably cover all aspects
of the Company’s affairs.

Nomination and Appointment Process for Directors

In order to nominate a candidate for director position,
the Remuneration and Nominating Committee and shareholders’
consent is required. There is also no limit to how many
candidates a shareholder can nominate. The Company offers
an opportunity to each shareholder to propose appropriate
candidates through the Company’s website prior to the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which is usually held
3 months prior to the end of fiscal year. The candidates must
be competent and have a proficiency background in various
professional fields. Also, the candidates must have leadership
skills, vision, virtue and ethic, exceptional working history as
well as be able to express opinion freely. The shareholders may
cast their votes for each individual candidate in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the Company as follows:

1) Each shareholder casts a number of votes equal to the
number of the share units.

2) Each shareholder will cast the votes as stated in
rule number 1) and the votes can be for one or many
candidates. However, the vote must be evenly split. The
Company does not apply cumulative voting due to the
structure of the shareholders of the Company, which
does not have any absolute major shareholder who can
influence the Company or decide which candidate to
vote for.

3) Those who receive majority of votes from shareholders
will be elected as Directors of the Company.

Criteria for Executive Selection

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of
the Remuneration and Nominating Committee, considers an
appointment of top management at president level and higher
to be responsible for business operation, based on both the
candidate’s qualifications for an executive position and the
Company’s succession plan.
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Nomination and Appointment Process for Executives

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for nominating a qualified candidate for the
President position. At the same time, the President and the
Board of Directors are jointly responsible for nominating senior
executives in the first and second layers below the President.
Qualified candidates are screened based on their knowledge,
competence, skill and experience that will be useful for the
Company’s business operation, as well as their profound
understanding of the Company’s business and administrative
ability to achieve the Company’s goals and objectives. After
completion of the selection and nomination process, hames
of the qualified persons will be proposed to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Monitoring of Associated Companies

Under the Company’s mechanism for monitoring of
its associated companies, the Board of Directors and/or the
management are responsible for nominating and voting on
appointment of the Company’s directors and/or executives to
serve as directors of the associated companies. The appointed
persons shall be obligated to perform duties in the best
interest of the associated companies that they serve. Number
of director seats in the associated companies to which the
Company is entitled is allocated according to the Company’s
shareholding percentage in any such entities or as agreed
upon in the shareholders’ agreement.

However, there has been no agreement between the
Company and other shareholders with respect to the
management of the associated companies.

Internal Information Disclosure Policy

usBnaulouggUSKsIa:wineulunns:AUBUL
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VoUyAUNISHNULEBAI9U Busoufiunisikwingiunsias
Auavuwludryrynasdqunniuulouiresnueanoiulaonne
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The Company has a policy to prohibit executives and
employees at all levels from using internal information for
personal benefit. Apart from the data security measure that
limits number of personnel who could access confidential
information and the requirement for directors and executives
to comply with the SEC regulations, the Company has
incorporated best practices into its code of business ethics
and clearly stipulated disciplines and disciplinary actions in
the Company’s work regulations. In this respect, all employees
are to sign the data security policy compliance agreement in
a bid to prevent them from using the Company’s information
for personal benefit or to prevent unauthorized use of such
information. Moreover, the Company adopts the following
policy and measure to monitor the executives’ use of internal
information for personal benefit and for securities trading:
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1. Provide the directors and executives with knowledge about

their duty to report their securities holding and the holding
of securities by their spouse and minor children to the SEC
in accordance with Section 59 and penalty clauses in Section
275 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and
the subsequent amendments), and also to report their and
their spouse’s and minor children’s acquisition or disposal
of securities to the SEC in accordance with Section 246
and penalty clauses in Section 298 of the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments).

. Ensure that the directors and executives, including their

spouse and minor children, prepare and disclose reports
on their securities holding and the holding of securities by
their spouse and minor children of securities in the Company
including changes in such holdings to the SEC in accordance
with Section 59 and penalty clauses in Section 275 of the
Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent
amendments), and to submit a copy of such reports to the
Company on the same day that such reports are submitted
to the SEC.

. Ensure that the directors, executives, staff and employees

of the Company and its subsidiary who have known of the
material insider information that has an effect on prices of
the securities shall exercise caution in trading securities of
the Company during a 30-day period prior to the date on
which the financial statement or such insider information
is disclosed to the public and during a 24-hour period after
the disclosure of such information to the public. Those
concerned with the insider information shall not make it
available to other parties until the information is notified to
the SET. A violation of such rules and regulations shall be
deemed as a disciplinary offence pursuant to the Company’s
working regulations. Persons committing such offence shall
be penalized, according to the degree of its severity, ranging
from verbal warning to written warning, putting on probation
and termination of employment by way of dismissal, removal
or discharging, as the case may be.

. Prohibit the directors, executives, staff and employees
of the Company from using the insider information, which
has or may have an impact on changes in prices of the
Company’s securities and has not yet been disclosed
publicly and which they have derived from their position
or status, for selling or buying or for offering to sell and to
buy or for persuading other persons to sell or to buy or to
offer to sell or to buy shares or other securities (if any) of
the Company, directly or indirectly, in such a manner that
could cause damage to the Company, directly or indirectly,
irrespective of whether such transaction is performed for
personal benefit or for the other’s benefit or whether such
information is disclosed to allow for other person to perform
such transaction in exchange for a benefit for themselves.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
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Audit Fee

Remuneration for the external auditors payable by the
Company and associated companies is comprised of annual
audit fee, review audit fee for quarterly financial statements,
fee for review and assessment of internal control on
investments, and fee for audit of the risk-based capital report
of life reinsurance business under the OIC’s regulations. For
2018, a total of THB 2.33 million was paid to EY Office Ltd.

Non-Audit Fee

In the fiscal year 2018, the Company:

¢ Did not pay any audit fee to the auditors or to the person or
entity relating to the auditors and the audit firm with which
the auditors have worked;

¢ Did not pay any other service fees unrelated to the audit; and

¢ Did not bear any future expenses arising from unfinished
assignments.

Compliance with Good Corporate Governance
Principles by the Company in 2018

ANU=NSSUNISUSEN Tadnfiona:ufuaniuknannisninu
QuanvMsARdSUUSEN9AN:ITuULeEIsaItion Fuldinun
ulvuneiaznuoUfURlugdonisinAugIananIshn Ia-95usssU
ssfeldoddaiou IWeidunaninrurnaznuon1algoanielu
9JANS NSSUNIS USKIS llazwunvu TRdN1sANITUSSHvN0Y
AOUSUlRBaURDdIAL lazyiidoulnideotngiauaninnas
giAsssu LuitiunisadwAruATvedssivlus:e:e10 IelRINANNS
iAUlnegNENEU wEounvARMUANaNISURURVOIANUNSSUNS
UGN Na:EusSKSTKITUIUMUUTBUNBUSEN BausENTEUs=NATES
nazIweIWsRISUTEAVEIUSEN MUIILONIVOINAIAKANNSWEIIKY
Us:inAlng (man.) s:10sudfunveadditiniauAtuzNSsSUNISNINAU
nannSwelia:nanAKannSwe (N.a.,.) ANI:NSSUNISAINUAAIA
nu na:nuoJfiunanna ASEAN CG Scorecard

The Board of Directors continuously adheres to and
complies with the corporate governance principles for listed
companies and, thus, has clearly defined a policy and best
practice in the corporate governance and ethics handbook to
be a guideline for the directors, executives and employees to
operate business with responsibility to society and
stakeholders on a fair and equitable basis and to create
long-term business value for sustainable growth. Compliance
with the Company’s policy by the Board of Directors and
executives has also been monitored. The Company has
adopted and publicized the policy via its website in line with the
guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), the rules
and regulations of the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), the Capital Market Supervisory Board, and
the ASEAN CG Scorecard.
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Monitoring of Compliance with Corporate
Governance Principles
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The Company communicates with its employees at all
levels across the organization through e-mail, the Intranet
and new employee orientation program to enhance their
knowledge and understanding and ensure their compliance
with the corporate governance policy and the code of
ethics and business conduct. The directors, executives and
employees have consistently complied with the corporate
governance policy and monitored such policy compliance. No
non-compliance has been found. As a result, the Company
received the following corporate governance awards in 2018:

e The Company was rated “ Excellent ” in the Credit Rating
of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM
Check List) by Thai Investor Association, Thai Listed
Companies Association and The Securities and
Exchange Commission, Thailand which showing the
importance of the quality of shareholders meeting,
equitable treatment of Shareholders, protecting the rights
of shareholders and corporate information disclosure.

¢ From the 2018 Corporate Governance Assessment of Thai
Listed Companies, the Company was rated as one of the
142 SET-listed companies that achieved the CG scores
of “Excellent” or “Five Stars” out of the total 657 listed
companies which had an average score of 81%, and was
ranked among the 47 Top Quartile listed companies with
market cap of between Baht 3,000 million and Baht 9,999
million.

Source: www.thai-iod.com Special Project — Corporate
Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies

Adoption of the CG Code for Thai Listed
Companies 2017
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The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance policy at least once a year. In 2018, the policy was

reviewed and fine-tuned to align with the CG Code for Thai
Listed Companies 2017 so that it could be put into practice
and applied as deemed appropriate. The Board of Directors
has adopted the CG Code that fits with the nature of business
or, otherwise, applied other substitution measures. However,
the Company will use the principles that have not yet been
fulfilled as a guideline for further improvement.

In 2018, the principles that the Company had not yet
complied with and had replaced with appropriate measures
were as follows:
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1. Uszsnunssiunisveausennosidunssunis

ods:
The chairman of the board should be an
independent director.

. AUINSSUNISAISS:UIIS:NISAISIANIKUY
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nnuanananis lneaasninualdluinu 9
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The Board of Directors should clearly
specify in the corporate governance policy
the term of office of an independent
director to be not longer than nine years
and without any exception.

.ﬂm:ﬂSSUﬂ’]SﬂOSV_VOﬂSﬂJ’]IIGi\]IF‘I':\] CG
Committee

The Board of Directors should set up a
CG Committee.

Us:zsnunssunisusdniduyananlulfddousoulunisusnisinu
lnas |Guunnanua ﬂUf‘IUDJO’1UOUﬂ’]STHQ.J‘G\]USUI’ﬂﬂIIU\]IIUﬂHU’]nﬂO’]USU
wﬂBOU\IO\lﬂﬂJ nssunasia: thJUSh’]SOOﬂ’\')’mﬂUOEJ’NHGII’{)U IWOGS’N
qaumws:mwmsusmsua:msmnUqlllanoms

The Company’s Board Chairman is not involved in business
management and is not the same person as the President. The Company
has clearly divided the roles and duties between the Board of Directors
and the management in a bid to maintain a balance between managerial
task and supervisory task.

ArUzNssUNTSTUTNTSAMMUADIS=ARSIAIIKUIVEINSSUNTSBAS:
ItiovenusBnIFoiudinssunisdas:IJuyAino1u§ AdIUEIUISN
Uszaunasni dnoauiinleanuruznasaidussiaidueg1aa daouidu
as:TunisnangnoiuiRu Velauanu: Mduds:Tesunniusen Tuidunso
TuGdouneavovAugfiorusielnny néedsrurenouau Tugnltivuio
n8oAsoaui19INUI8USKHISTAUANUANSSUN1SDds:ATUTaNINUAVY
danviu nam. Us:naununisasshinssunisdas:snelnulussion
USENAMIUUNISOEABUT YN

The Board of Directors has not determined the term of office of
of an independent director because the Company is confident that
its independent directors have profound knowledge, competence,
experience and understanding of the nature of its business operation
and could independently provide their opinion and advice that are
useful to the Company. They are not, or have no connection with,
the Company’s major shareholders or persons with control power;
are not induced or manipulated by the management; and meet
theindependent director’s qualifications prescribed by the SEC.
Besides, it is somewhat difficult to find new independent directors
in the industry sector where the Company operates business.

J990u USBNSITLTNISIEIAY CG Committee IIFANINSSUNNS
990U USENgIlUTNISIAAY CG Committee IMANINSSUNISASSHI
Ia:NHUAATINDUINUIAUDIWOWISTUNMOALU: NSSUNISUSEN u‘juwmua
'[husunUgummunann'\sn'mumuanomsnmnmaovou FuRwIuLN
USBNEAUURY:=ANTUSSAIMIUKANNISAAUQIanaNIsAA auwalrnln
SunisUs:idunasnanugiananisusdnaan:ideulnglus:Au AIAA 2N
anadu 10D

At present, the Company has not yet appointed a CG
Committee. However, the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
has proposed this for the Board of Directors’ consideration and has
duty to monitor and ensure that the Company complies with the
relevant principles of corporate governance. The Company has
all along remained committedto conducting business under the
principles of corporate governance and has consequently been
rated “Excellent” in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai
Listed Companies by 10D.
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The Company has publicized the significant CG-
related policies in both Thai and English languages on its
website at www.thairelife.co.th under the topic of “Corporate
Governance” for the shareholders, investors and all groups
of stakeholders and also via the Intranet for its employees.

The Board of Directors is confident that adherence to
the principles of corporate governance, ethics and
righteousness will help to add value to the Company in the
long term. It is committed to upgrading the Company’s
corporate governance standard in accordance with the new
CG Code and ASEAN CG Scorecard. The Company’s
compliance with the principles of corporate governance in
2018 was as described below:

Chapter 1: Rights of Shareholders
1.1 Rights of Shareholders

The Company gives importance to and respects rights
to which the shareholders are entitled in their capacity as both
investors and owners of the Company, and accordingly
provides the shareholders with an opportunity to exercise their
basic rights under the laws.

In addition, the Company recognizes the shareholders’
rights beyond such basic rights, including right to have access
to crucial information sufficiently and timely via the Company’s
website, right to communicate with the Board of Directors
through the channels designated by the Company, etc.

1.2 Shareholders’ Meeting

The Company sets out that an annual general meeting
of shareholders is held within the first four months after the
end of an accounting year and that, where there is an urgent
need to consider any matter which could affect or is related
to the shareholders’ interest and is subject to the shareholders’
approval, the Board of Directors may then convene an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders case by case.
In 2018, the Company held the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 7 on April 25, 2018, which was attended by
eight out of the total eight directors.

For such meeting, the Company adopted the best
practices in accordance with the AGM Checklist project
carried out by the Thai Investors Association, which are:
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Treatment of shareholders before the meeting date

1. The Company provided the shareholders with an

opportunityto propose meeting agenda or submit
questions about he Company for the 2018 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholdersand to nominate
qualified persons for election as the Company’s
directors in advance during the period from October
2, 2017 until December31, 2017 through e-mails or
letters sent directly to the Company Secretary.
The result was that afterthe end of such period none
of the shareholdersproposed the meeting agenda
ornominated qualified persons as the Company’s
directors for the Board of Directors’ consideration.

. The notice of the meeting, meeting agenda with the Board

of Directors’ opinion, proxy forms prescribed by Ministry
of Commerce comprising Proxy Form A, Form B and Form
C, documents or evidence showing identification of the
shareholders or proxies entitled to attend the meeting,
and documents for all agenda items are publicized via the
Company’s website in both Thai and English languages at
least 30 days ahead of the meeting date and prior to the
delivery of those documents to the shareholders by mail. In
2018, the Company posted the notice of the shareholders’
meeting on its website 41 days prior to the meeting date.

.In 2018, the Company submitted the notice of the

shareholders’ meeting and relevant documents to the
shareholders 22 days in advance. The shareholders
would have sufficient time to study the meeting agenda in
advance. The Company delivers notice of the shareholders’
meeting, giving detailed information of the meeting date,
time and venue, meeting agenda, objectives and reasons,
opinion of the Board of Directors, minutes of the previous
meeting, annual report, proxy forms prescribed by Ministry
of Commerce with proxy-granting instructions that are clear
and easy for the shareholders to follow, list of independent
directors whom the shareholders can select and assign as
their proxy to attend the meeting on their behalf, details
of documents that the shareholders must bring on the
meeting date, the Company’s Articles of Association
pertinent to the shareholders’ meeting and method of
vote casting, and all other documents to preserve
shareholders’ right to attend the meeting.
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4. The Company facilitates and encourages all shareholders

and institutional investors, to participate in a shareholder
meeting in order to allow for all shareholders to equally
exercise their rights at the meeting, by setting the suitable
meeting time and date and arranging the meeting venue
that is conveniently accessible to all shareholders. The
Company also provides proxy forms, for all shareholders
who are unable to attend the meeting to assign a proxy to
attend the meeting on their behalf.

Treatment of shareholders before the meeting date

1. On the meeting date, the Company provides convenience

for the shareholders and proxies on an equitable basis,
whether individual, juristic or institutional investors, and
arranges for a sufficient number of reception staff,
document screening staff and computer equipment to
ensure the registration, the meeting and the vote counting
are carried out efficiently. English language interpreters
are available for foreign investors who wish to attend the
meeting.

. Registration begins one hour and a half before the start of

the meeting. The Company will not perform any act in such
a way that will restrict rights of the shareholders to attend
the meeting and all shareholders are entitled to register for
attending the meeting at any time throughout the meeting.

. The barcode system is used for meeting registration and

vote counting to ensure accuracy, convenience and rapidity.

. The meeting starts with introducing the Board of Directors,

the management, the auditors and legal advisors who have
been assigned as inspectors of the meeting, and will explain
to the shareholders about how to cast votes and use voting
ballots for each agenda item.

. The Company’s legal advisors are assigned to serve as

inspectors to independently monitor and ensure that
the registration, the meeting and the vote counting are
conducted transparently and accurately at every step in
accordance with the laws and the Company’s Articles of
Association, while the shareholders are given an opportunity
to volunteer to witness the vote counting and to raise any
questions regarding the vote counting.
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6. The Company conducts the meeting according to the
agenda and has no policy to add any new agenda items
or change material information without notifying the
shareholders in advance. During the meeting, the Chairman
gives the opportunity to the shareholders to raise questions
and express opinions on each agenda item and provides
clarifications to all queries to the shareholders’ satisfaction.
Atthe previous meeting of shareholders, the Board Chairman,
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee,
Director&President, top management, the auditors and the
legal advisors participated in the meeting to answer the
questions raised by the shareholders.

7. The shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting
has already been declared open are given the right to cast
votes on the agenda item that is still under consideration
and has not yet been voted on.

Treatment of shareholders after the meeting date

1. Forthe 2018 shareholders’ meeting, the Company disclosed
the meeting resolutions and voting results immediately after
the meeting date through a news release to the SET.

2. For the 2018 Annual General Meeting and the previous
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders, the
Company made the minutes containing all material
information available within 14 days after each meeting in
accordance with SET requirements and posted the minutes
on the Company’s website.

3. Audio and visual records of the meeting were also made
available in VCD format for interested shareholders who
did not attend the meeting.

The Company communicates with shareholders,
discloses corporate information and the shareholding structure
in its subsidiaries and associated companies clearly in its
annual report and on its website. Such disclosure is to assure
shareholders that the Company’s management structure is
effective, transparent and accountable and will lead to
sustainable growth and generate a fair rate of return for
shareholders.
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Chapter 2: Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
2.1 Treatment of Shareholders

All groups of shareholders, whether major shareholders,
minority shareholders, institutional investors or foreign
investors, are treated on a fair and non-discriminatory basis
with their rights being equally protected. The Company has
observed the following best practices:

1. All shareholders are given an equal right, regardless of their
shareholding percentage, to nominate persons for director-
ship and to propose agenda items in advance. The Company
has disclosed this information via the SET and posted on the
Company’s website the process for completion and sub-
mission to the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
and/or the Board of Directors for further consideration. In
the event that the Board of Directors resolves to reject the
agenda items proposed by the shareholders, the Company
will notify the shareholders
of the reasons for such rejection at the shareholders’
meeting. The shareholders who attend the annual general
meeting are also granted the right to nominate persons for
directorship directly to the meeting. At the 2018 Annual
General Meeting, no shareholders nominated qualified
persons for election as directors or proposed additional
agenda items.

2. The shareholders are allowed to forward their questions,
comments or suggestions in advance through e-mails
or letters directly to the Company Secretary prior to the
meeting date so that all questions could be gathered for
answering at the meeting. In 2018, none of the shareholders
submitted questions, comments or suggestions in advance
through the said channels.

3. Inorderto protect the interest of and facilitate communication
with all groups of shareholders, the notice of the meeting,
meeting materials, minutes of the previous meeting, and any
related information are posted on the Company’s website
and available in both Thai and English.

4. All shareholders have an equal access to the Company’s
information. Up-to-date information is always disclosed
via the Company’s website. Shareholders are properly and
equitably treated by having access to information disclosed
through the SET’s information disclosure system and the
Company’s website and investor relations unit.
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5. The Company formulates in writing a guideline on data

storage and control over the use of internal information to
ensure fairness to shareholders; notifies and prohibits the
directors, executives, employees and their related
persons such as spouse, minor children and nominee
from using internal information that is crucial to trading
of the Company’s shares and share price movement and
has not yet been disclosed publicly in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535; and stipulates that
the directors and executives must report to the SEC their
holding of securities of listed companies in which they hold
office within 30 business days after assuming the position
and within three business days after buying or selling the
securities and must always submit a copy of such report to
the Company Secretary.

2.2 Participation in Shareholders’ Meeting

1.

dudugifiofunuIRounUIoY

Number of Shareholders

Shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting by
themselves are encouraged to appoint other persons or
any of the independent directors as their proxy to attend the
meeting and cast votes on their behalf by using the proxy
form that allows the shareholders to determine their voting
direction. The Company posts the proxy forms including all
relevant details and procedures on its website at least 30
days in advance. The Shareholders’ Meeting in 2018 can
be summarize as follows:

dauougifiofunuaudun:1n
wduIv1souUs:=3unnu (s19)

(s19)

Number of Shareholders
who appoint other persons
as their proxy (persons)

attending the meeting
(persons)

58 301

2. Shareholders are encouraged to use ballots for voting on

each agenda item. Ballots are separately provided for each
agenda item. In particular, ballots for election of directors
are arranged on an individual basis so that the shareholders
can cast votes as they deem fit. The voted ballots are
collected in the meeting room and the total votes derived will
be aggregated with the votes pre-determined in the proxy
forms, the final voting result of which will be announced in
the meeting room.
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Chapter 3: Awareness of Stakeholders’ Roles
3.1 Non-Violation of Human Rights

The Company respects the stakeholders’ rights under
the laws or the obligations or agreements made between them
and shall not perform any act in violation of the rights of those
stakeholders. We have formulated a policy on human rights
for the Board of Directors, executives and all employees to
adhere to and have clearly defined the rights of all groups of
stakeholders in the code of ethics and business conduct. We
also make certain that all such rights are protected with fair
treatment and that the stakeholders receive a fair
compensation for any damage arising from violation by the
Company. The details are available and can be downloaded
from the Company’s website at www.thairelife.co.th and the
annual registration statement (Form 56-1)

3.2 Treatment of All Groups of Stakeholders

A guideline on treatment of all groups of stakeholders
has been devised for the Board of Directors, executives and
employees to observe, as follows:

Treatment of Shareholders

The Company respects the shareholders’ basic rights
under the laws and the Company’s Articles of Association,
including right to attend a shareholders’ meeting and to cast
votes, right to freely express opinion at the meeting, and right
to receive a fair return. Moreover, the Company recognizes
rights of the shareholders beyond their basic rights and strictly
protects the shareholders’ rights.

1. The Company ensures that the shareholders receive
adequate and appropriate information by disclosing
crucial information, both financial and non-financial,
to the shareholders in an accurate, complete and
timely manner through various channels such as the
SET’s electronic information disclosure system, the
Company’s website, newspaper, press release, or
written letter, etc.

2. The Company encourages the shareholders to exercise their
right to attend the shareholders’ meeting, right to cast votes
at the meeting, and other rights to which they are entitled,
and shall not perform any act that will infringe on or prejudice
the shareholders’ rights.
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3. The Company grants rights to the shareholders to express
their comments or lodge any complaints regarding the
Company’s business operation through channels indicated
on the Company’s website. All comments are screened and
forwarded to the Board of Directors or the concerned units
and any development thereof will be informed to the relevant
shareholders in due course. In 2018, no suggestions or
complaints were submitted to the Company and there were
only some phone contacts with our Investor Relations unit,
inquiring about the Company’s business operation.

Treatment of Employees

Employees are a key resource and critical to business
success. The Company would like all employees to take a pride
in the Company and experience good career opportunities.

1. The Company treats all staff members under the
principlesof human rights, dignity and equality and
does not perform any act that will infringe on or
prejudice rights of the employees.

2. The Company recruits suitable personnel at all levels
through a fair and transparent process, based on factors
such as qualification for each position, scholastic
requirement, work experience and other requirements
essential for such job, without discrimination on the
grounds of gender, age, race, religion or any other status
unrelated to the work.

3. The Company places importance on safety, sanitation
and a pleasant working environment. Once a year the
Company conducts a fire drill to remind everyone of
the dangers of events such as a fire and maintains and
repairs all equipment to ensure it is fully operational at
all times. In order to emphasize the importance of this
the Company incorporated the above guideline into the
code of ethics and business conduct. In 2018, no
employees suffered a work-related injury or illness.

4. The Company has formed a Welfare Committee to
represent employees in improving welfare in
conjunction with the management and in arranging
activities for employee participation.

5. The Company provides a compulsory annual health
check-up program, classified by age group, for all
employees. The Company also encourages
employees to exercise by providing a fully-equipped
standard gym,believing that employees in good
health help to decrease the illness rate and increase
their working efficiency.
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6. The Company adopts a policy and practice that ensures

employees’ remuneration and fringe benefits are at an
appropriate level and commensurate with their duty and
responsibility and are comparable with those of similar
businesses. To serve this purpose, salary and compensation
survey data in insurance and similar industries from
different sources and data on yearly performance evaluation
of the individual employees are used as a basis for such
consideration. In addition, the Company provides a provident
fund, so that employees can accumulate funds for their
future needs. Details of employee remuneration (including
contribution to the provident fund) are presented in “Human
Resources” section.

. Realizing that personnel are the organization’s most valued

resources, the Company implements a policy on personnel
development by encouraging employees to undergo training
and competence development in order to strengthen their
working efficiency and advance their career. All employees
are developed according to the training road map, career
path and career plan designed for the individual employees.
Number of employees’ training hours are described in ‘Hu-
man Resources’ Section.

8. The Company allows employees to always be updated on

relevant news and information through channels such as the
Company’s Intranet, internal news circular, e-mail, etc. in
a bid to promote communication between the organization
and employees and, hence, increase teamwork efficiency
and relation.

. Every year the Company conducts an employee attitude

and satisfaction survey in order to use the comments and
suggestions obtained from the survey for further corrective
action.

10.The Company also allows employees to convey their

opinionsand lodge complaints and any other issues
relating to their work either to their supervisors or directly
to top management. All comments and complaints are
considered in coformity with the policy on complaints
and whistleblowing management and whistleblower
protection.
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Treatment of Customers

The Company attaches importance to customer
satisfaction while upholding the code of best practices
towards customers, including, among others, fair and
non-discriminatory treatment of customers, promotion of
good and sustainable relationship, and others as specified in
the Company’s good management practices and anti-fraud
policy, which can be summed up as follows:

1. The Company treats customers on a fair and non-discriminatory
basis and avoids any unethical acts such as collusion in
price fixing or job allocation or use of customers’ confidential
information for the benefit of a third party.

2. The Company strictly honors undertakings made with
customers and delivers a quality and reliable service in
accordance with its business standards.

3. The Company provides services in a polite and respectful
manner and promotes a long lasting and sustainable
relationship with its customers to ensure friendliness
and satisfaction amongst all parties.

4. The Company will not disclose customers’ information
unless otherwise permitted by the customers or where
it has the duty or is required by law to make such
disclosure or where the disclosure will benefit insurance
business or the public as a whole.

5. The Company gives advice on and assistance only in
matters relevant to its business.

6. The Company maintains high service standards in order to
serve customers’ requirements.

Treatment of Business Partners, Competitors and Creditors

The Company treats business partners, competitors
and creditors under the rules for ethical, free and fair trade
competition and within the purview of the laws and their
mutual obligations. This has been incorporated into the code of
ethics and business conduct in order for all parties to abide by.

1. The Company sets out rules for evaluation and selection of
partners and counterparties who conduct business with a
high degree of accountability, follow codes of ethics and
display professional integrity and are not involved in any
form of fraud.
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. The Company treats all partners and counterparties on

an equitable and non-discriminatory basis and does
not take advantage of its partners and counterparties.

. The Company puts in place a management and follow-up

system to ensure the agreement conditions are completely
fulfilled, together with a fraud prevention process at all
steps of its operation.

. The Company does not perform any act that will tarnish

its competitors’ reputations through any allegation without
any reasonable grounds.

. The Company does not seek to obtain confidential

information of its competitors by any unethical or improper
method.

. The Company does not perform any act that will infringe

upon the intellectual property and invention under patent
of other parties or its competitors.

. The Company complies with all conditions under

agreements made with creditors in respect of
guarantees, fund management, payments and
any other matters agreed upon with such
creditors.

. In the event of failure to fulfill the conditions, the

Company will promptly notify creditors and provide
reasons and remedial measures for such failure in
order to jointly seek solutions to the problem.

. The Company abides by an anti-fraud policy and follows

the principles of integrity, and neither gives nor receives any
bribe whether in form of a gift or any other benefit. It will not
perform any act that is conducive to fraud and bribery. It will
not perform any act or assist in or support any act that is
deemed as misconduct according to the relevant laws and
notifications. It will not perform any act relating to property
in bad faith or any act that is detrimental to the national
economy or security, nor conceal or take part in a transfer
or sale of property obtained from such act.

10.The Company has a policy to abide by the laws governing

intellectual property or copyright and does not infringe on
intellectual property or copyright.
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In the past year, the Company had no disputes with its
customers, partners, competitors and creditors which could
cause a material impact.

Treatment of Regulatory Bodies and Government Agencies

The Company complies with all laws, notifications,
rules and regulations stipulated by regulatory bodies and
government agencies. The Company also cooperates and
collaborates in corporate governance and anti-corruption
measures that have been supported by regulatory bodies and
government agencies or other private agencies in order to
enhance management efficiency and ultimately achieve strong
and sustainable development.

Treatment of Society and Environment

In conducting business, the Company pays attention
to all concerned parties and acts as a good corporate citizen
contributing positively to the community and the environment.
The Company has incorporated into the code of ethics and
business conduct, to which all staff members must adhere, the
best practices towards our society and environment including
the promotion of an efficient use of resources.

1. The Company encourages all employees to join in CSR
activities and community development, and operates
business without causing any negative impact on society
and the environment. In 2018, the Company promoted the
creation of a pleasant workplace condition and improvement
of the surrounding environment.

2. The Company is determined to operate its business with
fairness and display responsibility for society in general and
the environment and all groups of stakeholders in its core
business processes. The Company assesses the impact of
its activities on society the economy and the environment.
The Company also identifies operational goals that cause
no impact on society and environment.

3. The Company encourages all employees to use natural
resources efficiently with the least possible waste, to
recycle all types of products and to conserve energy
through lower power usage.
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4. The workplace environment has been improved and
maintained and meets modern day health and safety
standards.

5. The Company is aware of the importance of a sound society.
As part of Thai society, the Company deems that it has
duty to support and operate CSR activities and community
development. This is complementary to the Company’s
main objective to operate a business for the benefit of the
insurance business and national economy as a whole.

3.3 Whistleblowing and Complaints Report

The Company, with the Board of Directors’ approval,
has adopted a policy on complaints and whistleblowing
management and whistleblower protection. Measures,
regulations, guidelines and procedures for dealing with this
have been communicated to all concerned parties to ensure
a full understanding and a method for handling each case
correctly and properly. The details are presented in the
Corporate Governance Handbook which can be downloaded
from the Company’s website at www.thairelife.co.th and
the annual registration statement (Form 56-1)

Chapter4:InformationDisclosureandTransparency
4.1 Disclosure of Information

It is important that the Company discloses all
significant information such as business activity and financial
reports to the public through various channels required by law
or by authorities in a strict, complete and timely manner, by
ensuring that the information disclosed is accurate, precise
and relevant. The Company also discloses the following
information to demonstrate its compliance in responsible
corporate governance and business transparency:

1. The Company has established the code of business
ethics and best practices for the Board of Directors, the
management and staff to adhere to since 2012., which
has reviewed and revised various policies annually. The
corporate governance policy, anti-corruption policy, and
handbook on corporate governance and business ethics
of the Company’s are posted on the Intranet and the
Company’s website, in order for all directors, executives
and staff members to familiarize themselves with,
acknowledge and abide by.

2. The Company’s information, both financial and non-financial,
is disclosed. The financial information is audited and
reviewed by the auditors and approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors.



3. Wawevoyaniq IngiwenwsTiuusulssusen Aunuilng
la:N1¥1SINOY 18U JuN1SIIU sredruUs=91U 10udiu

4. [Wniwgvoyalonaisv (Press Release) lla:Nanssuny
sshvndAry Ailduds:Tosuiniiioku Unainu Un3iAsn:KH
nannswe na:zgnaulenall Tisunsiuvoyavesussnuiiu
naI3ulsmusEn

5. 1UAIBUNUINKUIAVOIANIZNSSUNISIAZANIZNSSUNSYA
oy 91usuUASIVOINISUS A9 UOUASIANSSUNTSIIFa:
nusouUs=suluseuUAtNuL MUstea:BuanlfiUnIwe
[5TurovalAsuad1anisdnnis

6. 9NTRUS199IUADIUSUTNBOUVOIANUZNSSUNISADSIENIU
nwN1sIuldTustagtuds:=91U (IIUU 56-2)

7. IUnIwgvoyaAmaulnunssunisia:gusnasidlunuunany
snenisveyaus:91U (Iuu 56-1) lazs1egruus:=91U (IuU 56-2)
la:1UAIWeUlgUIgNISTIUAIMDUINUINNSSUNISIAzEUSHIS
S:AUEY SOUNISUIILU ANBrU: I1a:97USUANMOUINUANSSUNTS
isiazAulAsSuINNIsidunssunisiunnuznssunIsyAgosyn
FiNY a:nssunIsiuusngos musiga:iBennlfiunualsiu
HovalAsuasNISIANIS

8. DernunliinissneuiunisBovie/nsiionsaunannswe
vounssunisiia:guskas Ineliiavaunisusenaidugisousou
asUvoyandondvlinus=yunnuznssunisnsiuiduds:9nn
Insuna

4.2 Voyaunaynuduwus

usendlalAnowdATYFoNIsUSKHISAUWUSAUUNaINU
Foo:UaiiumsuRURAKLNAROsAMULIIU AN ADUSUEABOU
nowBodndaesn Inlivoyanonsod IWeawoe nazidofiols
Wolkunadnu UndiAs:K Ia:gAIRuaved THsuveyangnsiod
IWeuwe Asuniou IUsuld na:iningunu

usendlauaunu1elAuivanoasuns sssuadnsni
lavaunas usen 1luganasuinsou “Unavnuduwus” Ing
ausnnmaySuiinsaulnniruigiavinsAwn 02 666 9000
n8o e-mail address corpsecretary@thairelife.co.th &11Su
Aonssulut 2561 Tmswuu:TEveyanudousasu UndiAsT:K
nannswe Unadnuiia=ann1snadnusou 10 ASY

3. All information, including financial statements and annual
reports is made available on the Company’s website in both
Thai and English.

4. Press releases and significant business activities that
are useful to shareholders, investors, securities analysts
and general public are made available via the Company’s
website.

5. The Company discloses the roles and duties of the Board
of Directors and committees, the number of meetings and
attendance record of each member in the past year.

6. The Company publishes a report on the Board of Directors’
responsibility for the financial report in its annual report
(Form 56-2).

7. The Company discloses information on remuneration
for directors and management in the annual registration
statement (Form 56-1) and the annual report (Form 56-2)
and also discloses the policy on remuneration for directors
and top management, including type, nature and amount
of remuneration received by each member for serving on
committees and as a director in subsidiaries.

8. The Company has a requirement to report all trading
transactions of securities holdings of directors and
executives. The Company Secretary is assigned to collect
all of such information to report to the Board of Directors.

4.2 Investor Relations

The Company stresses the importance to investor
relations management by remaining committed to
performingduties with accountability and integrity and
providing accurate, adequate and reliable information to
ensure that investors, analysts and concerned parties
receive information in a correct, sufficient, complete,
transparent and equitable manner.

The Company has assigned Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn,
Company secretary, to be in charge of “Investor Relations” unit.
For enquiries, please call 02 666 9000 or e-mail to corpsec-
retary@thairelife.co.th. For activities in 2018, there were 10
meetings held with members of the media, securities analysts,
investors and fund managers.
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4.3 Report on Interest

The Company has established guidelines and rules
and procedures for reporting the interests of directors,
executives and their related persons, which were duly
approved by the Board of Directors. Such reports show
compliance with regulations for connected transactions and
monitoring the interest of directors, executives and their
related persons insofar as the said interest is relevant to the
Company’s business management.

1. The Company has a policy under which the directors
and executives are required to disclose their interest and
interest of their related persons in a form designated by the
Company on a yearly basis and when there is a change
in such information during the year. The directors and
executives who have interest in any transactions of the
Company shall not participate in decision-making on such
transactions, and the transactions shall be processed
according to the measures or procedures for approval of
related party transactions of the Company.

2. The Company has a policy on trading of the Company’s
securities and procedures for reporting of securities
holdings of directors, executives and employees who have
access to confidential internal information, and requires
that the directors and executives have a duty to report their
securities holding in accordance with SEC’s regulations.

Chapter 5: Board of Directors’ Responsibility

5.1 Responsibility of the Board of Directors

In addition to its power, duties and responsibilities
prescribed under the law and the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Board of Directors also has other
responsibilities:

1. The Board of Directors has duty to determine the Company’s
vision and mission so that the executives and employees
would perform their duties towards a common goal. In 2018,
the Board of Directors reviewed and approved the vision,
mission, strategy, target and direction for business
operation of the Company as well as reviewed the
significant policies to be in line with business operation
under corporate governance principles such as the policy
on corporate governance, the anti-corruption policy, etc.
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2. The Board of Directors monitors and ensures that the

Company’s strategies are put into practice. At every
quarterly meeting, the Board of Directors follows up on the
management’s performance and requires that there must
be a report on the Company’s operation and business
performance, especially the performance against financial
targets and action plans, to make sure that the established
strategies are accomplished.

. Determine the duties, authorities and responsibilities of

the Board of Directors in accordance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the power, duties and
responsibilities of all Subcommittees so as to enable the
Board of Directors and the Subcommittees to correctly
make consideration and render opinion within the scope
of their power, duties and responsibilities

The roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of

Directors are as follows:

(@) Thedirectors musthave knowledge, ability and experience
that are useful for business operation, be keen on
the activities of the Company of which they serve as
director, and have strong determination, honesty and
integrity in business operation.

(b) The directors must, in performing duties, comply with
the laws, objectives and Articles of Association of the
Company, resolutions of the Board of Directors and
resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting with honesty,
integrity, due care, protection of the Company’s
interest, and accountability to shareholders on a
continuous basis.

(C) The Board of Directors has duties to determine the
Company’s business policy and direction, including
action plans, budgets, etc., and to monitor and supervise
the management to implement the policy efficiently
and effectively so as to maximize economic value and
shareholders’ wealth.

(d) The Board of Directors should always follow up on
the Company’s operation and be kept informed of the
Company’s compliance with the laws and relevant
agreements and should see that the management
notifies all crucial issues of the Company to ensure
effective business operation.

(e) The Board of Directors should arrange for the Company
to have in place an effective internal control and internal
audit system under the Audit Committee’s advice.
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(f)

The independent directors and other third-party
directors should be prepared to exercise their
independent judgment with respect to strategy
formulation, business administration, resource
utilization, director appointment and determination of
operational standard procedures, and also be prepared
to object to any acts performed by other directors or
the management in the case where there is a conflict in
matters that will dampen the equality of all shareholders.

(9) Assess the Company’s compliance with corporate

governance policy and review the policy at least once a
year.

(h) Assess the Company’s compliance with corporate

governance policy and review the policy at least once
ayear.

Arrange for the Audit Committee to render opinion to the
Board of Directors regarding the transactions with conflict
of interest in material aspect between the Company and
persons with vested interest or related persons of the
directors or executives, whereby the directors or executives
with vested interest shall not be allowed to participate in
the meeting or cast votes on any such agenda item. The
nature of such relationship and definition of persons with
vested interest shall be as specified in regulations of the
SET and the SEC.

Arrange for the Company’s internal control system to
be reviewed by the internal unit and/or external agency
to reasonably ensure that, once this is fulfilled, the
Company will be able to achieve its goals in (a) efficient
and effective operations and worthwhile utilization of
resources; (b) accurate, reliable and timely accounting
and financial reporting; and (c) compliance with the
Company’s policies, rules and regulations and the laws.
Results of such internal control review shall be reported to
the Audit Committee, the Executive Board and the Board
of Directors in order to further develop and improve the
internal control system.



5.2 n1sUs:ITUAUIDIVOIANI:NSSUNS

nasUs:1duwan1suUAIIUVOIANIENSSUNISUSBNIIUUSI8ATU:

5.2 Self-Evaluation of Board of Directors

Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors as a Whole

AnuzNssuN1sIndnlAnssunasisa:nauninNisUs:iduwa
vuvavanuznssunisinesouiduds:g9ainnt Ingldnuuus:iduvey
AUSWAIUINISAINNUANIANINISUSENIAN:ITSU natnnannswe
IKIUs:inAlNelneisnnUs:auAIliosouAuWINSUINUNOUWA
11U UrynnaUdssasinug Tuseutiuuun na:lduwanisus:iou
NWwesruluRUs:suAnuznssumsiwotdidunuonistunsiTy
JSuussnisringuvevanuznssunistAil Us:ansniwds:answa
uNBuVu TunisUs:iouds:910 2561 TaTdnuuUs:iuvodrus
WaUINISANUANANINISUSENYAN:ITEU maIAnannSweliny
UszinAlneisuideanuliuiug un  nssunasldinounuuds:idu
Asunnrinu Inedins:usunistunisus:=iTuAud

1. 1avaunisusenidugdanianaznunounuuds:ioud KD
Js:ansnaw QnaAay ASUNOU muuoUUAveInUogIIU
nnnu

2. AfU=NSSUNIsUSENwo1sruads:iduwalunasaAtiduvau
ouwuoula: 1 ASY

3. 1avaunsusnasdwanisus:iou nazuniauasionus:yu
AfU:NSSUNISUSYN IWOW1STUNIUININISWIUNUSUUSY
Js=ansnawnisaniduvuliiids:ansnawuiniu

lnuuds:IdunuIoIVaIANIzNSSUNISUSENIILUSIUATU:
ndenasus:iguilu 6 Us:iiu Ao (1) Tnsvasana:aruauUsmvednnu:
NSSUNAS (2) UNUAN KUNAIAzAIUSUEABOUVOIALUENSSIUNIS (3)
n1sUs=yuATUNSSUNIS (4) nsrkLiaRveInssuUNIS (5) A9
AUWusSAUEhegIANIS 11a: (6) NMISWRJUNAUIDIVOINSSIUNASIIANIS
WauNgusnas damnsunisus:inunuIDIvaIAnUzNSSUNISUSEN
nuusneyAna lusnasusziguidu 3 Usziau Tann (1) Insvasnaia:
AUAUURAVaINSSUNIS (2) N1SUS=3UVaIANUZNSSUNIS (3) UNUIN
KUA 18:A01USUEINBOUVaINSSUNIS KanINurRIElunisUs:10u
ivoonidu 5 $ou Al

Annually, each member of the board is required to
evaluate the overall performance of the Board of Directors,
using an evaluation form determined by the SET Corporate
Governance Center. The purpose of this is to jointly review
performance, problems and obstacles in the past year. The
result will be used as a guideline to improve the work of
the Board of Directors to ensure greater effectiveness and
efficiency. In 2018, the SET Corporate Governance Center’s
evaluation form was used, similar to the past years. All
directors completed the evaluation and the result showed
that the Board of Directors expressed opinion on all of the
six main subjects of the evaluation as follows:

1. The Company Secretary prepares and reviews the
evaluationform to ensure it is efficient, correct and
complete according to the regulatory body’s practice
guideline.

2. The Board of Directors conducts the performance
evaluationat least once a year.

3. The Company Secretary concludes and proposes the
evaluation results to the Board of Directors’ meeting
so as to draw up a guideline on development and
improvement of operational efficiency.

All of Board of Directors ‘self-assessments are also
carried out on six topics: (1) Structure and qualification of
the Board of Directors, (2) Role, duties and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors, (3) Board meeting, (4) Performance
of directors, (5) Relation with the management, and
(6) Self — development of directors and development of
executives. Self-assessment of the Board of Directors is also
carried out by the individual directors on three topics: (1) board
structure and qualification, (2) board meeting, and (3) roles,
duties and responsibilities of the board. The scoring system
is divided into five levels as follows:
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The performance evaluation of the Board of Directors
as a whole in 2018 showed that the Board of Directors could
perform their duties in accordance with the principles of
corporate governance, achieving an average score of 3.85
Meanwhile, the performance evaluation of the individual
directors (self-assessment) resulted in an average score of
3.85%.

Performance Evaluation of Subcommittees as a Whole
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The Board of Directors also conducts performance
evaluation of all board-level committees, which are the Audit
Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, the
Nominating and Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee. Carried out once a year, the said performance
evaluation covers the following topics: (1) committee structure
and qualifications, (2) committee meeting, and (3) roles, duties
and responsibilities of the committee. The scoring system is
divided into five levels similar to the performance evaluation
of the Board of Directors. The evaluation results of the Audit
Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, the
Nominating and Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee were “Very Good,” with average scores of 3.98,
3.79, 3.89 and 3.96 respectively.

5.3 Performance Evaluation of Top Management

The Board of Directors sets out that there shall be
a performance evaluation of President and other executives
on an annual basis at the last meeting of the year to
be a basis for consideration on their compensation. In
this respect, the board of directors shall consider and
recommend compensation rate for President and
executives.
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5.4 Development of Directors and Executives

1. The Company encourages the directors, executives and
Company Secretary to attend seminars and training
programs organized by Thai Institute of Directors, the
SET, the SEC and the National Corporate Governance
Committee so that they could use the obtained knowledge
for operational improvement on a continuous basis. The
directors must at least undergo training and participate in
the continuing programs as required by the SET and the
SEC.

2. New directors shall be provided with basic information
about the Company, entailing a listed company director
handbook, annual registration statement (Form 56-1),
annual report (Form 56-2), minutes of the Board of
Directors’ meetings, minutes of the shareholders’ meetings,
the Company’s corporate governance policy, and others,
which will be helpful for the new directors in performing
their duties.

3. The executives and employees shall be rotated to assume
the tasks in which they are adept, based primarily on
suitability of work and timing. The President shall determine
such timing and consider their working performance as a
basis for drawing up a development and succession plan.
This is also aimed to enrich the executives and employees’
knowledge and competence and enable them to replace
each other.

5.5 Succession Plan for Top Management

The board of directors collaborates with the President
in preparing a succession plan and determining qualified
persons under the plan, as well as reporting the progress on
plan implementation to the Board of Directors at least once
ayear.
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5.6 Remuneration of Directors, Committee Members and
Executives

The policy and criteria for director remuneration are
consistent with the best practices. Since the Board of
Directors plays a vital role in directing the policy and
overseeing the operation of the Company, the remuneration
of directors and members of all committees should be
reasonable and commensurate with their respective
duties and responsibilities, including their role and
engagement, and should be comparable with similar
businesses.

The board of directors has duty to consider remuneration
of directors and top management. The director remuneration
is subject to approval from the shareholders’ meeting, whereby
approval shall be separately sought for remuneration of
directors and remuneration of committee members.
Meanwhile, the remuneration of President and top
management is subject to approval from the Board of
Directors’ meeting and is decided based on comparison with
similar businesses at the same level, considering that the
remuneration is commensurate with their duties and
responsibilities and sufficient to motivate and retain
quality personnel. The Board of Directors will conduct a
yearly performance evaluation and use the evaluation
result as a basis for determining the remuneration of
each member of the top management.
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THREL’s main objectives are to operate their business
to optimum levels to benefit the Thai insurance sector and the
country’s overall economy. The Company strongly adheres
to a good governance policy and social responsibility to
strengthen the insurance industry and the overall economy
of the country which supports the Company’s sustainability
into the future.

The commitment of the Company is to build a strong
society that leads to sustainable growth and long term
development through:

e Business partners, the insurance business sector and
Thai people in general by cooperatively developing and
building business with the Company’s counterparties and to
effectively respond to society’s current requirements.

¢ Benefits for shareholders through growth in revenue
and profits and maintaining sustainable growth and
development.

¢ Development of employees through skills improvement and
promotion of good quality of life for all personnel.

CSR Activities and Reports
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na:waus:losuveuyudoulmidunnche Ineluidonidoudinunas
Agnondow IWeuhlugnswiuunssivogdidu

In its core business processes, the Company is mindful
of the adverse impact on society, stakeholders and the
environment these may have. As a result, the Company
ensures that its business does not affect neighboring
communities and society in general, all of which is in line
with its policy on corporate, social and environmental
responsibilities. Sound corporate governance practices,
observance of the law and the rights of individuals are
all taking into consideration. The generations of financial
returns sustainable business development for shareholders
and stakeholders’ interests are sought without harming
society and the environment.
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In 2018, the Company produced its first Sustainable
Development Reportto publicize its CSR activities that support
sustainable development in tandem with the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) framework so that all stakeholders have access
to relevant information. The report is available in Thai and
English and can be downloaded from the Company’s website
at www.thairelife.co.th.

Anti-Corruption Activities
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The Company has a policy to act against corruption
and bribery for commercial benefit and established this in
2012 in its business ethics code in respect of best practices
towards customers, competitors and state agencies. The
Sustainable Development Report for 2018 is available
and can be downloaded from the Company’s website at
www.thairelife.co.th.

CSR Plan
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The Company is committed to operating its business
in a fair and responsible manner towards society, the
environment and all groups of stakeholders involved in
the core business processes of the Company.
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Nature of Related Transactions
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The Company has business transactions involving
related parties because shareholders and/or directors
participate in them, either because of personal relationships
or simply from taking part in the same transactions. In such
cases, the Company takes into account the true nature of
the relationships to a greater extent than the legal forms they
take or the contracts behind them. Most of these transactions
come about in the ordinary course of business, with prices at
the standard rates. These are disclosed in the list “Related
Transactions,” in the Notes to Financial Statements for 2018.

Necessity and Reasonableness of Related Transactions
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Such related transactions that the Company has with
the related parties are considered to be beneficial to the
business development and will enhance the business and
create stability for the company, which can be considered
a maximization of the existing resources together with the
company and also a cutting down on the expenses.

Policy on Interest and Conflict of Interest

ANIZNSSUNISUSEN ms:rnunfivnoudianylunistounu
nsdoulmiduna:nouinngavavwads:losu Inoninunuluuny
nsiddoulnidunaznouinnduvavwads:Tususmil

1. ARUENSSUNISUSEN TN1SAOUAU RllaegsaunauIboInA
s19nIsnoRidAUTANgINWwaUs:losu Tnoinisninuavu
mouniseulRsteNsiineolevnuldiluanganunionus

2. ATUZNSSUNISASIE0U:UINEUOMNOANNSSUNISUSEN
INgouUsS19NISNo1dAdUTANgINIIWaUs:Tosuna:
srenisnineolevnuagaunauanninsud

3.Tunsrﬁr‘{ﬁmsﬁ'\swmsﬁ|r‘{UoIU\Jﬁur‘f|\7'niwo nov
DEENENE nsovoouummnwnonumuvomhun
vounaranannswenrkals:inAlng noumsmswms
usSundladnisidaiwesiga:idon o1n o AWEUWUS
voyunnaninuoley uIsuwmsmnumsqmuamvou
S1UNISIKAWAVOINISHNSIUNIS SOUAYADIUIRUVOY
ACUZNSSUNMSUSBNIRBafus1enIsaunalalrifionunsiu
9YBAIU

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of
prevention of interest and conflict of interest and has
established a policy on interest and conflict of interest as
follows:

1. The Board of Directors shall prudently control and
monitor any transactions that are prone to a conflict
of interest by determining approval procedures for
connected transactions in writing.

2. The Audit Committee shall report transactions
with a possible conflict of interest and connected
transactions to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

3. If there are any connected transactions that are subject
to disclosure rules or approval from the shareholders
pursuant to the SET’s requirements, the Company shall,
before entering into the transactions, clearly disclose
to shareholders the information regarding relationship
of the connected persons, policy on determination of
transaction value, reasons for entry into the transactions,
and opinion of the Board of Directors on the transactions.
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4. The Board of Directors sets out that materials on related
party transactions shall be disclosed in the annual
registration statement (Form 56-1) and annual report
of the Company, with details about names of persons
who may have a conflict of interest, relationship, nature
of the transactions, conditions, policy on price determination
and value of the transactions, reasons and necessity of
the transactions.

Guidelines on Consideration of Transactions that
Have/May Have a Conflict of Interest
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Consideration of transactions that have/may have
a conflict of interest shall comply with the rules set forth by the
SEC and the SET. The Audit Committee has duty to monitor and
ensure that the rules are strictly adhered to, as well as duty to
compile and report transactions with related parties that may
lead to transactions with a possible conflict of interest to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

Measures or Procedures for Approval of Related
Party Transactions
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The Company abides by the law governing securities
and stock exchange and the regulations, notifications,
directives or requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The executives
or stakeholders who have a vested interest are not
allowed to participate in the approval of such transactions.

In the case where it is legally required to obtain
approval from the Board of Directors’ meeting, the Company
will arrange the Audit Committee to join the meeting to consider
and advice regarding necessity and reasonableness of
any such transactions. The principles for entering into the
arm’s-length transactions and the non-arm’s-length
transactions are as follows:

Arm’s-length transactions
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The Board of Directors gives approval in principle
for the management to approve the arm’s-length
transactions executed by the company and its subsidiaries
with the director, excutives or related person provided
that those tranactions are under the same trade terms and
conditions as those executed by persons of ordinary
common sense with general counterparties in the same
situation and the bargaining power thereof is free from
their influence in their capacity as directors, executives or
related persons.

The Company will present a summary report on the
said transactions to the Audit Committee’s meeting and the
Board of Directors’ meeting on a quarterly basis.
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Non-arm’s-length transactions

The non-arm’s-length transactions are to be

considered by the Audit Committee before proposing to
the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting
for further consideration and approval. In this respect, the
Company must observe the law governing securities and
exchange and the regulations, notifications, directives or
requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory Board and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including the disclosure
rules for connected transactions.

In the case where the Audit Committee has no

expertise in the consideration of any potential related
party transactions, the Company will appoint an
independent specialist or its auditor to render opinion
on such transactions to be a basis for decision making
by the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors
and/or the shareholders, as the case may be. This is
to ensure that such transactions are necessary and
reasonable and are executed in the interest of the
Company. The Company will disclose information on
the related party transactions in the annual registration
statement and notes to the financial statements that
have been audited by the Company’s auditor. Related
Party Transactions.

Policy or Trend of Related Party Transactions in
the Future

In enter into any related party transactions in the

future, the Board of Directors must comply with the law
governing securities and exchange and the regulations,
notifications, directives or requirements of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, including the disclosure rules for connect
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries, in
accordance with the accounting standards set out by
the Federation of Accounting Professions.

The current related party transactions with other life

insurance companies are the usualtransactions executed in
line with condition in general. The related party transactions
made with Thaire Services Co., Ltd. and Thaire Actuarial
Consulting Co., Ltd., include human resource management
service fee, IT consulting and service fee, and actuarial
consulting and service fee. all of which will continue to take
place. The human resource management service fee and
the IT consulting and service fee are made through existing
resource to ensure cost saving.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Operating Results
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Overview of Operating Performance
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Uszinnsouwsmuniddnsimsiaulngana:anidudndouriuiniu
vouibeus:AuiususouvasusEnitaifisunuluosn

dnSunisasnu USBNYIIdNSIWaNDUINUIINITUAINU
Tul 2559 ful 2561 ogiRs=AUUs=UNrUSoDa: 4-6 Inudouls:nou
nanvevaunsweainu Ao RuainuRe:=fioauAsurKUABITAIN
rannSwesgunala:sgdanie Kur IuunsuiAis idusiu Ing
Andudngouus:unrudosa: 40-60 VouaUNSWHaINUNIKUA
uenonduiduiiuasnuitiovis Salin msansnu la:kLiovanu
iJudndouus:unruSosa: 40-50 vouaunSweainu

wanasA1Ituvau

The Company has engaged in life reinsurance of all
classes. The reinsurance premium written are partially
appropriated for insurance reserve which is further invested
to bring in returns that could cover contingent liabilities.
Thus, in addition to life reinsurance, investment is extremely
crucial for our business operation.

Our major income source is net reinsurance premium
written which make up 96-99 percent of total income,
followed by investment income which is around 3-4 percent
of total income. The remainder includes commission and
brokerage income and other incomes. Such premium growth
was primarily caused by continuous expansion of Thailand’s
life insurance market.

The Company provided reinsurance for domestic life
insurance companies. The services are classified by
two main types of business, which are conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. Over the past 7-8 years,
non-conventional reinsurance has played a pivotal role in
growing the Company’s overall premiums. It has experienced
robust growth and contributed an increasing proportion in
the Company’s total reinsurance premium written when
compared with the past records.

On the investment side, the Company enjoyed an
average rate of return on investment of 4-6 percent in 2016
to 2018. The main investment assets are held-to-maturity
investments such as government and state enterprise
securities, debentures, etc., which make up about 40-60
percent of total investment assets, moreover by available-
for-sale investments such as equity securities and unit
trusts, accounting for approximately 40-50 percent of
total investment assets.

Operating Performance

s19ln

sneldiveuusBnaunniteUs:Aunesontousials snels
Akl dounvuwanilseniuadnuluussnsou s1elfon
nsadnuans wanls (ViAnu) 9INRUadnUVIRNUIINNsUSUYa
AgAsssy a:snelidu Inalut 2561 U 2560 11U 2559 USEN«
s19lAsoUINIAU 2,426.3 41uun 2,186.3 a1uunn lla: 2,058.4
duunn mudiau Anidudnsanasiaulmiwuiusosa: 11.0 ia:
$ova: 6.2 MUEIAU BIN1SIWUTUVOISIElFSOULIINNISITL
Vuveuibuus:nunesuanshinuln9Nnisvenefovedssiv
Js:nuganluds:ina Inedisnea:i3unndiAcysad

snevuUs:91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

Income

The Company’s income is mainly derived from earned
premium, commission income and profits from investment
of its associated companies, net investment income, profits
(losses) from investment, fair value gain (losses) as well as
other incomes. In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s total
income was recorded at THB 2,426.3 million, THB 2,186.3
million and THB 2,058.4 million respectively, representing
a growth rate of 11.0 percent and 6.2 percentre spectively.
A rise in the Company’s total income derives from net
insurance premiums owing to the growth in total revenue
and the expansion of domestic insurance business which
will be described as follows:



iUsUs:AuNesontoidusials

isUs:Aunusonieidusels Ao 10uUs:Aunentoldu
s1e16%uAuoruRINIDeUs:AUNYRoSUNIKUAKRNGDITY
Js:Aungdrgainnasionds:Aungsio na:usudsinoudisou
10eUs:Aunengalutodusiels

Tul 2561 U 2560 n1a:U 2559 usGnaisnelfonity
Js=nunentiodusield Inidu 2,347.5 d9uun 2,096.5 d1u
U1N N1a: 1,965.8 dMUUINAIWEIAU ARIJUINSINISIAUTAIWU
Vu $ova: 12.0 na:Sowa: 6.7 MUEIAU

TudouveuileUs:Aunurosu nisiAuInDanARANUD
91NNIsVeEAovaussiaus:AUBInTuls:iInAlnusouRIAUln
|vTiU\‘7ur]nU Inudnsinasiivlniods (CAGR) vouUs:inAlng
s:ndWU 2555 — U 2561 ogfisova: 8.2 Tuvru:AdnsINIs
iAulniods (CAGR) Tugouideonuvedusindoghsosa: 13.1
duwalfusen TasuidoUs:AungsosSuImUTUINUSENUS:AU
BIMAdYYNBUIRYINU

IDuUs:NunuSuveIUs:inAlng
s:n919U 2555 — U 2561 (HLio®g: aauuin)

Net premium written in Thailand
During 2012-2018 (THB Million)

Earned Premium

Earned premium is the amounted of total premiums
calculated from gross reinsurance premium written less
reinsurance premium ceded and change in unearned
premium reserves.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s income had
gain from earned premium of THB 2,347.5 million, THB 2,096.5
million and THB 1,965.8 million respectively, representing a
growth rate of 12.0 percent and 6.7 percent respectively.

In terms of net reinsurance premium written, the
growth was primarily caused by the expansion of domestic
life insurance market which increased annually. Life
insurance market of Thailand’s CAGR between years
2012-2018 was at 8.2 percent while the Company’s CAGR
of the same period was approximately 13.1 percent,
resulting in increased gross written premiums from life
insurance companies.

108Us:AURYSUVEIUSENT
s=rowU 2555 — U 2561 (HUoy: a1uunn)
THREL’s Net premium written
During 2012-2018 (THB Million)

CAGR: 8.2% 627,387
600,303
568,002
536,839
499,495

441,372

:isw i
2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2561
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

CAGR: 13.1%

2,400
2,157
1,975
1,851
1,624
1,388

1,145
2555 2556 2557 2558 2559 2560 2561
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Au: dnuiupnunssuNTsMAUIia:auIasuNIsUs:NoUssAoUs:AUNE laaunALUs:AUEIATNg

Source: OIC and the Thai Life Assurance Association

uon9INl GudannaulINNIsImUTUVoIUs:AUTIA
TuuszINNSouWIUIRUSBNCTASOUARAUNA:WAIUNAUUSEN
Js:Augandududnisiaulnoguiddedianylugoy 7-8 U
Awuun BurinlFusenlfsudounyinassuus:nAuiesanuin
N9N1SSUUS:AUAYADIVUATIAL

Another contributing factor was growth in
non-conventional reinsurance, which the Company
has innovated and developed in partnership with a life
insurance company, which it has grown remarkably in
the past 7-8 years, resulting in a higher market share
when compared with the conventional reinsurance.
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iUaUs:Aunesontodusols

Earned Premium

aluuan  Sowa:
Amount Percent

aluuan  Sowa:
Amount Percent

ajwuun  Sowva:
Amount Percent

msUs=AUBanUs:INNAVIAL Conventional Reinsurance

nasUs=NUBINUS:INNSOUWEJUT Non-conventional Reinsurance

SOU Total

s1elAvINNISaINuUans

snelfioInnisasnuans AesteldnlfsuvNNIsadnulu
Aunsweirinug soufiumstrfigiuiiu BuUs:nousios aenite Ruduwa
nls9nnisvagdundwegadnu inlsvannuainnisUsuyann
gRsssuU llazdouluvwanlsonRuadnuluusensou idusiu

TuU 2561 U 2560 l1a:U 2559 usBn«s1wIAINNISaINU
ansininu 74.1 &1uun 82.4 auun a: 86.7 &1uun MY
asu Anldudsnsinisiaulnanadsova: 10.0 1a:50wa: 5.0 MW
asu Inusrelionnisainuanssaunatonnidusnsiwanauiinu
MNNsadnuIninuSoua: 3.8 Sova: 4.6 la:5ova: 5.6 MUANU

snelAvnNniIsasnugns:wundsiuniuania=nisasnulu
ina:U u dmsimenidoannsiansni ndaruduwane:Ifsu
nnisasnurnannswelunananannswe 10usiu Inelul 2561
snelfvnnisadnuansanaviianirnraninnaNusengludgou
Idswarils91nuasnuluusEnsouusBnkiuRvielUidoUniou
la:gvianuonMsUsuyargRsssuiiuainulunannsweiiiodn

S18N1S

Items

dnswanauiinuaNFuainu’'($oea:) Investment Yield (percent)

Ruadnu”@uuin) Investment “(THB Million)

Ar9SUNYIWUIAL:

1,306.8 55.7 1,149.4 54.8 1,185.3 60.3
1,040.7 44.3 947.1 45.2 780.5 39.7
2,347.5 100.0 2,096.5 100.0 1,965.8 100.0

Net Investment Income

Net investment income is income derived from
investments in assets, including loans. It consists of interest,
dividend, gain on sales of investments, fair value gains and
losses, share of profit from investment in an associate, and
so on.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company generated net
investment income of THB 74.1 million, THB 82.4 million and
THB 86.7 million, respectively, decreased 10.0 percent and
increased 5.0 percent respectively. The rates of return on
investment were 3.8 percent, 4.6 percent and 5.6 percent,
respectively.

Net investment income will vary according to
investment situation each year; for example, interest
rate from debt securities or dividends from securities
investmentinthe stock market, etc. In 2018, the Company’s
revenues from investment decreased due to the fact
that have no share of profit from investments in an
associate which was sold previous year and fair value
loss in investment in trading securities.

2561 2560 2559

2018 2017 2016
3.8 4.6 5.3
1,952.9 1,987.4 1,596.8

A 3nSWANaUINUIINIRUAINUAILDNUDIN WasIUVaIsI8liA9INNIsaInugns Mls (Vinnu) 91NNIsVIgEUNSwWeadnu douliwaniilseniiuainuluusensou iazmlsvaanuain

n1sUSuyaAgRsssy KsAogIuadnu (10as)

Investment Yield: Divide the summary of net investment income, gain (losses) on investments, share of profit from investment in an associate, and fair value gain (losses)

by the average investment assets.

/2 Juasnuus:NoURIURUEAIA:SIUNISIRYUININUER h']uaar]um“ioﬁﬂ ﬁua\]nuufiovw |Guaur]ur‘iv:ﬁavuasuﬁ'mum ﬁuaaquﬁow RUlEREV na:Ruainuluussnsou
Investment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, trading investments, available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity investments, general investments, loans,

and investments in an associated.

91nNrUIEInAUs:NauIUNISITUdMSUUFUEASUR 31
§uonAu 2561 a: 2560 TAUN1sIMUNEoUIIUATITUIIUDDN
10u 2 dou Us:nousios wandurius:AugInUs:INNAvIAU na:
WANAUrUS:AUTIAUSINNSOUWRIUN 9T

s1evuUs=9U 2561
usun TnesUs:Auddn 911m (UH1BU)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 classified business lines as
conventional and non-conventional reinsurance as follows:



n1suUs:NuBIn
Us:innadinu

S19N1S
Items

Conventional

(THB Million)

iWeUs=AunuRtodusiels
Earned Premiums
Alg91uTunisSuUs:=nune
Underwriting expenses

nls9nnissSuds:nunesio
Profit from underwriting

n1sUs:NUBIM n1suUs:NuBIM

n1sUs:NuBIM

Uszinnsouwsuun | Uszinnaviau | Uszinnsauwisuun
(@uun) (@uunn) (@uunn) (@uunn)
Non-Conventional | Conventional | Non-Conventional
Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance
(THB Million) (THB Million) (THB Million)
1,306.8 1,040.7 1,149.4 947 .1
1,071.4 956.5 872.0 692.8
235.3 84.2 277.4 254.3
18.0 8.1 24.1 26.9

dnsnilseannassuds:nunesio (Sova:)
Underwriting profit margin (percent)

InaunmusengiionsinalsenniasSuds:=NunemnoIn
nsUs=AUEAAUs:INNSoUWRIUNGIUSBNTUNUANIATUID UGN
IdUBIIA:SOUAUUSENUS:AUTI M3 UINOARAUIA:WAIUINSUSSSL
UszinnlruRA1ndne:idunsdiounisvednaingindinisus:au
FanUs:INNAVIAU isiegNlsinulut 2561 USENd TonsIninls
1nnasSuds:AungmaaNNIsUs:AUZINUS:INNSIUWIUA
§aaa 8.1 USumoanavidail§suiisunuionifeonuvaadnou
AINnAusewa: 26.9 1todaNIiudrsodUs: nunuaﬂhsuaryry'l
Us:=nungs:g:e101a:Araulnunainuanuds: nuavmwnlwuvu

AlE91e

Normally, the Company earned underwriting profit
from non-conventional reinsurance and developing new
and highly demanded policies as well as devising innovative
marketing plan while expanding distribution channels
appro priate for the Company’s target customers more than
the conventional reinsurance. However, in 2018, the
underwriting profit margin from non-conventional
reinsurance was recorded at 8.1 percent, decreased by
26.9 percent compared to the same period of the
previous year due to the fact that an increasing of long
term insurance policy reserves and claim incurred for
health product.

Expenses

AlE9renanveadusEnanuaidu 2 doulsin 1. Adulky
nainu na: 2. A1ls219lunissuds:=nuny

AEulrUNAIINU

ANaUTKUNAINU Us:nougios AEUlkunaInuRifiaiu
uﬁUmsms naona:gvlulagas:tAnugionUs:nunusio
IovmosnsdintionUs:Aunensu§ulos Us:augUming
n§o1FuEan IuwaUs:lusintunsusssuius:Augan Gy
loUs:AunensIliongAsunUAnsUsssUiinun néoAsu
godioannnsusssininuald AnfosArdulrunainusu
Auannasionus:nungso soufivdisavArdulnunainu
nIuIsSNIsnwArURAIansUs:AUNY TngWa1stuU191NAN
Us:urrunishdnanvedAraulrunainuiAtngn9:91en
Jla'lds :fqursluournn é'msTuswn'lsnmuarylﬁur‘flﬁm
Yunasnoundo ru Suus:idu n\m'mswmsn:nuarylaun
usunglasusiguuna:galuTasusiodnu AVl souiiunls
28R 1AV UINNISTANISATFUTHUNAINULUA DY

Sie

Cl.

Two major expense categories for the Company are
1) claim expenses and 2) underwriting expenses.

Claims Expenses

Claims expenses consist of claims incurred, whether
paid or unpaid to the reinsured in case of the insured’s
becoming ill, having an accident or passing away, and
benefits under a life insurance policy payable upon the
insured reaching the age specified in the policy or upon
completion of a period of time specified in the policy,
deducted by claims recovered from reinsurance. These
also include actuarial claim liability reserve, which is
derived from the best possible estimate of claims expected
to be paid to the insured in the future for both the reported
and the unreported losses incurred before or on the
estimation date, and include loss adjustment expenses.
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Tud 2561 U 2560 na:U 2559 usEnaidAdulrunainuia:
Algg19Tun1sIAnIsAFulnunAINUINIAU 1,370.5 da1uuln
915.3 dUU1N lla: 952.9 &1UUN MUERU MIKTU 3 YRt
usEndmsadouAlIaulrunainu (Loss Ratio) INNNuSesa: 60.6
Sooa: 44.4 1a:Sova: 48.9 mMUAIAU USENYEIUISNUSHISIANIS
TslnuidonWwansrunnenusEngausSunUIFENTE 1a:n1sUs:uru
n1sdrsavAAUlHUNAINUANLISNISNWATUAFANENSUS:AUNY 11K
0190uNNsindANEUTHUNAINUUNSIBRTUENRAIUALTLTHAIAR
ule itiovenAntEIemnanovuegnunsRInANUEioUs:AURe

odnisiniuA1dulnunainu:dwasonisAIUIU
AUKGanls (Profit Commission) ua:nanasall dnsadou
A1dulrnunAInu (Loss Ratio) AMUaru9INAAUlnUNAINUIA:
AlEIelun1sInnasArulrunaInu IVSsuIRsuAuIGoUs:Au
fesuntoldusels Inednsndourtdulrunainuiurdiuaed
Us:nouniglunisinus:ansnawvaunissuds=Auiovaustn i
138n319MS1doUsIl Ko “Combined Ratio” No:Ifosunusioll

AEa1lunisSuds:nuns

AE91elunisSulds:nuny Us:nousos ArUKGY AT
grelunissuls:Aunudu la:Antggnelunisantugiu
AUKGR

nRlnanouIdaTEuIaNUU=NSUs:NoUSSAIVY
usEdnaidunasnadryryads=nunemonuusends:Audin
n19lA&ryryrUs:NuNuro:NanIs19n1sUNYZdUUS:NOUADY
(1) 109Us:AuNusosy (2) ANEIreRwIRnIa Tain AUikGe
Fromuvonnadiudrynya na: (3) AFUIKUNAINUINYAIIADIY
suainsionsusssiiludryryaUs:Aunesoduy auduAtinta
Judssuidaiou douandngainnisSudszNuNemonIuaryry
Us=iunesoAdaimkbanuseonidu 2 dou AoAruintonsiou
FeliiInusEnUs:AUE3nIbodeuliusanag nazAUinGanils
(Profit Commission)&uriuneii douluunnlsernwanissuus:nu
ﬁsJr‘iué@nqﬁoudwiﬁu%ms:ﬁuﬁ:‘mgjﬁryryﬁ Inodoununilse:
JansIWuTUKEoanatnIuWanilseINN1SSUUSAUNY KINIUA
Suds=nuneinisdngmdulrunainugs doundinilsenwanis
suUs:uneludryryrdue 2:0dnsnanadkdolud Mudidulumau
NoulvvevdryryrUs:Ausnivsolsazadu

snevuUs:91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded
claims expenses at THB 1,370.5 million, THB 915.3 million
and THB 952.9 million respectively, representing a loss ratio
of 60.6 percent, 44.4 percent and 48.9 percent respectively.
Nevertheless, the Company can manage and handle claim and
loss adjustment to some extent as well as capable of estimating
premium reserves classified business lines as conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. However, in some cases, such
expenses may be uncontrollable since they depend largely on
risks faced by the insured.

Nevertheless, claim expense will directly affect the
profit commission which will be discussed later on. Loss
ratio will be calculated from compensation and expenditures
in handling with such compensation, compared to earned
premiums. The loss ratio will be employed as one of the
instruments in measuring the Company’s efficiency in the
reinsurance business, called “the combined ratio” which will
be explained in details later.

Underwriting Expenses

Underwriting expenses include commission expenses,
other underwriting expenses, and operating expenses.

Commission expenses

As mentioned earlier, the Company’s core business
is to provide reinsurance services for life insurance companies.
Under the reinsurance contract, account items consist of
(1) reinsurance premium (2) deductible expenses such as
commission expenses as agreed upon in the contract and
(8) claim payable based on the liability per policy under such
reinsurance contract. Therefore, the commission is
comparable to a discount payable from reinsurance under
the reinsurance contract. Commission is divided into 2 parts,
commission payable to the life insurance company when
transferring a transaction to the Company and profit
commission which relies mainly on profit sharing from
quality of such transaction the Company has to pay to
the life insurance company. If the Company has to pay a
large amount of claims for such transaction, the profit
commission payable to the Company will decline as a result
or not be paid at all. Nonetheless, the profit commission
will vary based on each reinsurance contract’s terms and
conditions.



Tud 2561 U 2560 11a:U 2559 usSBNYUANUNIKGIINNU
548.6 §7UUN 593.4 7UUN l1a: 620.2 S2UUN MUEIAU Ba
Andudnsadouruninieansininusosa: 24.1 Sova: 28.6 l1a:
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dnsndoununinivansAtuonuanAtUIniainsels
AvUIkGe 1USsuIReunuituUs:Aunesontodusiels Tny
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AlgInslunsSuUs:Auiedu

AlEI18lunssuls:Auneduds:Nousioy [Iuaunu
d10ny1uAruzNssUNsAIAUIa:ad1asuNi1sUs:Nous s
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Tul 2561 U 2560 na:U 2559 usdnaidAldanalunis
SuUs:AUAYBUINIAU 25.2 §1UUIN 24.2 d9UUN la: 21.2
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Sova: 14.2 mwannu

AmlEg1ulunisaiiuviu

Alg918Tun1sAItugIuds:nounoy ANTEIrewaNIU
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Tul 2561 U 2560 na:U 2559 usendidAnidanalu
N1sAMTUINUINAAU 85.4 d1uunn 75.7 d1uu1n na: 58.2
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d1msuld 2560 ATsaTunIsANTUINURIWUTUTT9dunan
21nATE18AIRBOVaIRUUAAAINS lazAUSNUIIE:USNNS
auinalulagansauins

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded
commission expenses at THB 548.6 million, THB 593.4 million
and THB 620.2 million respectively, representing net commission
expenses ratio of 24.1 percent, 28.6 percent and 31.7 percent
respectively. In 2018, commission expenses have a lower ratio
which mainly due to decreasing in underwriting result, resulting
in a decreasing in profit commission and also higher in claim
incurred. In 2017, a decreasing in commission ratio was the
result of the proportion of premium for renewal premiums
which has a lower rate of commission ratio than the first
year’s premium. In 2016, the Company acquired new project
in non-conventional reinsurance business which provided
commissions on the first year’s premium at a higher rate
compared to renewal premiums.

Net commission ratio will be calculated from
commission expenses less commission income, compared
to earned premium. Net commission ratio is regarded as
one instrument in measuring the Company’s efficiency in the
reinsurance business, called the combined ratio which
will be discussed later on.

Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses consist of contribution
the Office of Insurance Commission, employee’s expenses
which are relate for underwriting and other underwriting
expenses as agreed on in the reinsurance contract.

In 2018, 2017, and 2016, the Company recorded
other underwriting expenses of THB 25.2 million, THB 24.2
million and THB 21.2 million respectively, accounting for a
growth rate of 4.4 percent and 14.2 percent respectively.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprise of personnel expenses,
premise expenses, taxable expenses, and other operating
expenses.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded total
operating expenses at THB 85.4 million, THB 75.7 million
and THB 58.2 million respectively, accounting for a growth
rate of 12.8 percent and 30.1 percent respectively. In 2018,
an increase in operating expenses resulted from an increase
in personnel expenses. In 2017, an increasing in operating
expenses mainly resulted from personnel expenses and
information technology consulting service fee.
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9ms1dousoU (Combined Ratio)

dnsndousouidudnsidountivilnuagniwsrang
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2. onsndouAnuindaans
3. dmsadounAlEgnasSulds:=nunea:AEgenutudiu
AudunNdnsndousourndn$osa: 100 IEAISSSNT
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na:Us=nugvnwiwuuniu dmsull 2560 Combined Ratio N

anaditiovanusengidonsidounrdulhunainuna:ansidou
AUInbdagnsnanay

MSWIERNIONS1E0USOU Table illustrating the combined ratio

Underwriting Expenses and Operating Expenses Ratio

The ratio of underwriting expenses and operating
expenses are one of the instrument employed in measuring
the Company’s efficiency in reinsurance business which is
called “combined ratio”. Such ratio is calculated from other
underwriting expenses plus operating expenses in comparison
with net written premiums, underwriting expenses and other
operating expenses. In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the ratio of
underwriting and operating expenses was equivalent to 4.7
percent, 4.7 percent and 4.0 percent respectively. The
Company has established a policy to control such expenses
not to exceed 5 percent of net written premiums and not
higher than the average operating expenses of the life
insurance industry.

Combined Ratio

Combined ratio is a commonly used ratio in measuring
the efficiency of insurance. Combined ratio consists of the
following:

1. Loss ratio
2. Net commission ratio
3. Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

Consequently, if the combined ratio is lower than 100
percent, meaning that the Company has profits from its
reinsurance business. The Company’s combined ratio in 2018,
2017 and 2016 were 89.4 percent, 77.7 percent and 84.6
percent respectively. In 2018, the Company experienced an
increasing in combined ratio due to to higher loss ratio in group
life and health product. In 2017, a decline in combined ratio
was a result of a decreasing in loss ratio and net commission
expenses ratio.

(HUOEJ saaa
(Unit: percent)

$19NS 2561 2560 2559
Items 2018 2017 2016

ansadounaulrunaiinu
Loss ratio

dnsrdoununnliogns

Net commissions ratio
amsndoumldanasuds=nunana:Algarentudiu
Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

dns1dausou
Combined ratio

snevuUs:91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

60.6 44.4 48.9
241 28.6 31.7

4.7 4.7 4.0
89.4 7.7 84.6
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Net Profit

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded a net
profit at THB 253.5 million, THB 435.7 million and THB
321.7 million respectively, representing a net profit margin
of 10.4 percent, 19.9 percent and 15.6 percent respectively.
A declined of profit margin in 2018 was due to an increase
in the Company’s claims incurred and commission
expenses. In 2017, an increase of profit margin was due to
an increase in the Company’s gross premium written and
decreasing in claim incurred and commission expenses.

Return on Equity

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded return
on equity of 17.0 percent, 30.5 percent and 24.8 percent,
respectively.

Financial Position

Funswe
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Assets

The Company’s core assets are composed of cash
and cash equivalents, accrued investment income, premium
receivables, reinsurance assets, reinsurance receivables,
investments in securities, and premises equipment.

As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s
total assets were recorded at THB 2,357.9 million, THB
2,397.1million and THB 2,052.5 million respectively,
decreasing by 1.6 percent and growing by 16.8 percent
respectively.

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance Receivables consists of amounts
deposited on reinsurance and amount due from reinsurers.

Amounts Deposited on reinsurance are premium
reserves collected by an insurance company (a reinsured)
from a reinsurer as security in case the reinsurer encounters
financial difficulties and is unable to perform obligations
under the insurance contract. Such reserves will be returned
by the reinsured in the following year or upon an expiry of
the contract.

As at the end 0f 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s
reinsurance receivables amounted to THB 195.5 million,
THB 212.2 million and THB 273.1 million, representing
8.3 percent, 8.9 percent and 13.3 percent of total assets
respectively. Details are described below:

anhundryryads=nunesio

2561 2560 2559
2018 2017 2016

Reinsurance Receivables

RuoNIdNNIsUs=NUNErMod Amounts deposited on reinsurance 62.0 54.0 56.3
NUANSUINNISUS:NUNE/AD Amounts dues from reinsurers 133.5 158.2 216.8
SO Total 195.5 212.2 273.1
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As at the and of 2018 and 2017, the decline in
the Company’s reinsurance assets was attributed to a
decline in amounts due from the reinsurance due to its
higher efficiency in credit management.

Investment Assets

Investment assets are composed of cash and cash
equivalents, trading investments, available-for-sale investments,
held-to-maturity investments, general investments, loans
and investment in associated company, details of which are
as follows:

2561 2560 2559
2018 2017 2016

awuun | Sewa: | dwuuan | Sewa: |dwuuan | Sewva:
Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent
55.1 2.8 212.1 10.7 181.9 11.4
78.5 4.0 6.2 0.3 73.3 4.6
243.4 12.5 241.7 12.2 207.9 13.0
699.9 35.8 466.8 23.5 5121 32.1
546.4 28.0 768.7 38.7 468.3 29.3
180.0 9.2 76.1 3.8 25.0 1.6
130.0 6.7 195.0 9.8 103.0 6.5
2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1
1.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.3 0.0
16.1 0.8 18.6 0.9 22.9 1.4
1,952.9 100.0 1,987.4 100.0 1,596.8 100.0

Trading investments

Trading investments refer to investment performed by
the Company with the intention to sell them in the near future
in which the Company has to invest such registered shares in
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company
had total trading investments of THB 78.5 million, THB 6.2
million and THB 73.3 million respectively, representing
3.8 percent, 0.3 percent and 3.6 percent of its total assets
respectively.

Nonetheless, trading investments in 2018, 2017 and
2016 accounted for 4.0 percent, 0.3 percent and 4.6 percent
of investment assets respectively.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments refer to investments
made by the Company and intended to be sold in the future,
comprising of equity securities and unit trusts.
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As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s
available- for-sale investments amounted to THB 943.3 million,
THB 708.5 million and THB 719.9 million respectively,
representing 40.0 percent, 29.6 percent and 35.1 percent
of total assets respectively. A proportion of equity securities
to unit trusts in the available-for-sale investments were
reported at 25 percent to 35 percent and 65 percent to 75
percent respectively.

However, available-for-sale investments in 2018, 2017
and 2016 accounted for 48.3 percent, 35.7 percent and 45.1
percent of investment assets respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are investments made
by the Company and intended to be held until maturity,
comprising of government and state enterprise securities,
debentures, and deposits at banks.

As atthe end 0f 2018, 2017 and 2016, held-to-maturity
investments amounted to THB 856.4 million, THB 1,039.8
million and THB 596.3 million, respectively, representing
36.3 percent, 43.4 percent and 29.1 percent of total assets,
respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments accounted for 43.9
percent, 52.3 percent and 37.4 percent of investment assets
in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Premises and equipment

As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, premises and
equipment-net of the Company amounted to THB 55.2
million, THB 46.3 million and THB 42.6 million respectively,
representing 2.3 percent, 1.9 percent and 2.1 percent of
total assets respectively. In 2018 and 2017, Premise and
equipment-net was increased as a result of the office
renovation.

S19N1S 2561 2560 2559
Particulars 2018 2017 2016

Afu Land

91A1S Building

inSounnisdna:indoulddtininu Furniture, Fixture and equipment

AOUWIINDS Computers
g7uUwWKU: Motor Vehicles
SO — &n§ Total — Net

17.6 17.6 17.6
32.2 23.9 22.8
3.8 2.6 1.7
1.6 1.9 0.2
- 0.3 0.3
55.2 46.3 42.6
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Liabilities

As at the end of 2018, 2017, and 2016, the Company
had total liabilities of THB 919.0 million, THB 853.6 million
and THB 739.5 million, respectively, increased by 7.7 percent
and 15.4 percent, respectively.The chiefly attributed changes
in total liabilities were increased from insurance contract
liabilities which the main items are as follows:

Amounts Due to Reinsurers

As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, amounts due to
reinsurers totaled THB 184.6 million, THB 181.9 million and
THB 184.4 million, respectively, representing 7.8 percent,
7.6 percent and 9.0 percent of total liabilities and equity,
respectively.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are composed of
long-term insurance policy reserves refer to reserves for
long-term reinsurance agreements, loss reserves and
outstanding claims and premium reserves

Long term insurance policy reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy
reserves, calculated using an actuarial method in
accordance with the OIC notifications. The main
assumptions applied relate to lapse or surrender rate,
selling and administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity,
discount rate and non-guaranteed dividend payment rate.
Long term insurance policy reserves refer to reserves for
long-term reinsurance agreements. At every final date of
the reporting period, there will be comparison between value
of gross premium valuation reserves and unearned
premium reserves for policies that still remain in force. If
value of gross premium valuation reserves is higher than
unearned premium reserves, such difference will be
recognized and the gross premium insurance reserves
will be presented in the financial statements.

As atthe end 0f 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company have
long term insurance policy reserves of THB 406.8 million, THB
321.3 million and THB 285.4 million respectively, representing 17.3
percent, 13.4 percent and 13.9 percent of total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity respectively. As for 2018 and 2017, an
increase in long term insurance policy reserves was a result of
Gross Premium Valuation’s calculation higher than Unearned
Premium Reserve’s calculation.
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Loss Reserves

Loss reserves refer to provisions for claims for losses
incurred but not yet agreed upon or reported. Provisions for
claims shall conform to the law governing reserve calculation.

Asattheendof2018,2017 and 2016, the Company’s loss
reserves equaled THB 21.7 million, THB 34.9 million and THB
49.7 millionrespectively,accounting for 0.9 percent, 1.5 percent
and 2.4 percent of total liabilities and owners’ equity
respectively. In 2018 and 2017, a decrease in loss reserves
resulted from a decline in incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR).

Premium Reserves

Premium reserves refer to unearned premiums of
active policies for short-term reinsurance agreements, with
the reserving method in line with the OIC notification. At every
final date of the reporting period, there will be a comparison
between value of premium reserves and value of unexpired
risk reserves. If value of unexpired risk reserves is higher than
premium reserves, such difference will be recognized and
the unexpired risk reserves will be presented in the financial
statements. The unexpired risk reserves, consistent with the
actuarial method, are provided for any possible future claims
arising from the insurance that remains in force.

As at the end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company
had premium reserves of THB 255.4 million, THB 222.1 million
and THB 182.1 million, respectively, representing 10.8 percent,
9.3 percent and 8.9 percent of total liabilities and shareholders’
equity, respectively. In 2018 and 2017, an increase in premium
reserves was due to an increase in net reinsurance premium
of group life and health insurance.

Asset Management Ability
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Amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium
receivables, commission income receivables, claim
receivables and various other items receivable from
reinsurers, excluding reinsurance premium receivable,
and are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts.
The Company records allowance for doubtful accounts
for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to
uncollectible, taking into account collection experience
and the status of reinsurers.
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As atthe end of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had
outstanding debts from reinsurance which was equivalent
to THB 133.5 million, THB 158.2 million and THB 216.8 million,
respectively,which were accounted for 5.7 percent, 6.6
percent, 10.6 percent of the total asset respectively. In 2018
and 2017, the amounts due from reinsurers declined since
the Company was able to manage debt collection more
effectively.

Nevertheless, 95 percent of the amounts due from
reinsurers are not yet due. Only less than 5 percent exceeds
the payment due date as indicated in No.8 of notes in the
financial statement.

In 2016 the Company had recognized THB 8.7 million
allowances for impairment of available for sale investments
which was considered as expenses in profit and loss
statement due to significant decline of investment value
in equity fund. In 2017, the Company had reversed an
allowance for impairment Available-for-sale investment and
recognized as income in the statements of income.

Liquidity and Capital Adequacy
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Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities is reinsurance
receivables and investment income less commission
expenses, operating expenditures and corporate income
tax. In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had cash flow
provided from operating activities of THB 156.5 million,
294.0 million and THB 418.0 million respectively. A cash
flow from operating activities in 2018 was the result of a
decline in reinsurance premium, whereas in 2017 a growth
in reinsurance premium but spent more in investment in
securities.

Cash flow from investment activities

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company reported cash
flow for investing activities of THB 13.5 million, THB 23.9
million and THB 10.0 million respectively. The Company’s
cash flow from investing activities resulted from the office
renovation and in 2017, the Company’s cash flow from
investing activities resulted from of an investmentin the
systems of reinsurance development in order to support
business expansion.

Cash flow from financing activities

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s cash flow
employed in financing activities amounted to THB 300.0
million, THB 240.0 million and THB 300.0 million respectively.
The only cash flow from financing activities was dividend
payment paid to the Company’s shareholders.



Insvasiuaunu

Capital Structure

uSEngldNIsIARIIKEAVIIUNUIINNISHEU KSaliKay
IFunuueNIUNISIIU ||mom\ﬂsnmuusunquamsqaounu
aumoaouvouwnahu (D/E Ratio) ru dud 2561 IN1AU 0.6
N1 $9ARINIRIKTUSENUS:NUAYMD Na:nl FUINArYryn
Us=nudeiJuraninidu

Jedenoneidwasrionisatiuviunsoegauznasisulu
ouIAR

The Company does not acquire other capital sources
from loaning or have any other sources out of financial budget.
Nevertheless, the Company’s D/E ratio at the end of 2018 was
0.6 times and debts caused mainly by due to reinsurers and
insurance contract liabilities.

Factors with Possible Impacts on Future
Operation and Financial Position
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Economic Volatility

Economic fluctuation could be a threat to consumers’
purchasing power. Particularly in tough economic times,
consumers will become more stringent in their spending,
including their decision on buying insurance. Some of them
choose to take out insurance only when they could save
enough money. Besides this, interest rate is another factor
influencing consumers’ insurance buying decision, which is
made based on comparison with yields from other forms of
financial instruments. Interest rate also has an effect on the
rate of return receivable by the Company from investments,
which will further affect our operating performance.

Domestic Reinsurance Business Expansion by Foreign
Reinsurers

Factors include the expansion of international
reinsurance companies in Thailand (not in a form the joint
venture), cutting-edge technology and ongoing product
innovation and development have made the reinsurance
with life insurance companies more difficult. However,
major life insurance companies in Thailand are still close
and in good relationship with the Company, as well as the
Company had an expertise in the life insurance business
of Thailand as well, led to The Company’s growth steadily.
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Financial Information

Unit: THB Thousand)

OPERATIONS
Gross Written Premiums

Net Written Premiums
Earned Premium
Underwriting Profit’

Net investment income

Profit before Tax

Net Profit

Financial Status
Investment Assets

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Paid-up Capital

Capital Funds (Shareholders’ Equity)
Book Value per share (Baht)
Dividend per Share (Baht)
Financial Ratio (Percent)
Loss Ratio’

Expenses Ratio’

Combined Ratio

Return on Equity

Investment Yield

Earnings per Share (Baht)

2,400,298
2,380,760
2,347,462
234,102
74,110
310,022

253,467

1,952,881
2,357,869
918,948
600,000
1,438,921
2.40

0.35

60.6
28.8
89.4
17.0

3.8

0.42

2,157,428
2,136,580
2,096,545
455,964
82,355
542,233

435,684

1,987,421
2,397,065
853,601
600,000
1,543,464
2.57

0.50

44.4
33.3
e
30.5

4.6

0.73

1,975,176
1,950,078
1,965,811
299,753
86,682
390,000

321,748

1,596,792
2,052,532
739,517
600,000
1,313,015
2.19

0.40

48.9
35.7
84.6
24.8

5.3

0.54

1,850,785
1,828,084
1,833,458
423,065
52,424
478,113

388,673

1,526,145
2,025,325
742,862
600,000
1,282,464
2.14

0.50

44.0
32.1
76.1
31.4

3.6

0.65

1,623,774
1,606,600
1,582,962
331,274
115,612
449,188

371,717

1,483,505
1,978,544
788,832
600,000
1,189,712
1.98

0.45

40.8
38.3
79.0
32.6

8.2

0.62

1,387,856
1,373,504
1,399,753
412,793
58,406
473,685

382,998

1,336,066
1,784,390
692,804
600,000
1,091,586
1.82

0.45

37.3
31.9
69.2
41.5

4.8

0.71

1,144,948
1,127,988
1,040,660
232,954
52,449
286,680

220,798

1,038,978
1,386,433
632,109
500,000
754,324
1.51

0.42

36.2
41.0
77.3
28.2

5.4

0.44

Description:

Since 2013, the Company has prepared financial statements disclosing the investments in associated company by using

the equity method which is in accordance with TAS 28 Investment in Associated Company (revised 2009)

*2012 were restated according to the change in accounting policy as above.

Note:

1. Net of other operating expenses and allowance for doubtful debt (if any)
2. Loss incurred expressed as a percentage of earned premiums deduct life policy reserve increase (decrease) from prior year

3. Expenses Ratio expressed as a Commission Ratio plus Underwriting and Operating expenses Ratio

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



S19JIUAIIISURATIUVIIANIZNSSUNISUSUTNADOSI1gdIUNIINISINU

Report on the Board of Directors’ Responsibility towards the Financial Statements
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial
statement of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited.
Such financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Thai Accounting Standard. Appropriate accounting policies
are cautiously utilized. Sufficient important information is
disclosed in the footnotes of the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained
an effective internal control system. They also have ensured
that appropriate procedures are being utilized to evaluate
the adequacy of internal controls and risk management, and
monitored the effectiveness of its compliance. In this regard,
the Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committees
who are non-management members of the Company as
regulators in this matter. The opinion of the Audit Committee
in this subject is included in the Audit Committee Report listed
in the annual report.

Furthermore, it is the opinion of the Board of Directors
that the Company’s internal control system is overall
satisfactory and capable of creating confidence in the
credibility of the financial statements of Thaire Life Assurance
Public Company Limited.

A

(Mr. Suchin Wanglee)
Chairman

(Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson)
Director and President
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Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee is composed of three
independent directors: Mr. Kopr Kritayakirana as Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Mr. Apirak Thaipatanagul, and
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon. All members of the Audit
Committee are knowledgeable and experienced in
reviewing the reliability of financial statements required
by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee has duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board of Directors, which include
reviewing the correctness and adequacy of the
Company’s financial reporting and ensuring the
effectivenessof internal control system, risk management
system and corporate governance process and the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring
and ensuring that any transactions that may have
a conflict of interest are conducted in accordance
with regulations and provide maximum benefit to
the Company, as well as selecting and nominating
an independent auditor for the Company.

In 2018, the Audit Committee completed their duties
duties under the scope of responsibilities assigned by the
Board of Directors and in line with the Audit Committee
Charter. Four meetings were held in the year and were
attended by all committee members. The Management,
independent auditor and internal auditors, representatives
were also invited to join the meetings on the agenda items
which they were concerned. The main duties performed by
the Audit Committee in 2018 can be summarized as follows:

1. Approved quarterly financial statements and reviewed
annual financial statements of the Company prior to
disclosure to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

2. Nominated and recommended an appointment of
auditor and fixing of auditor’s remuneration, with EY
Office Limited being nominated and appointed as
auditor of the Company for another year (for the year 2018).
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3. Attended two joint meetings with the auditor, one of

which was organized without the attendance of the
Management to consider the guideline and scope of
auditing and review the audit plan, results and
recommendations to ensure that the audit of financial
statements was carried out properly and completely in
accordance with the auditing standards.

. Oversaw internal audit, approved the annual internal audit

plan based on the Company’s material risks, reviewed
the audit reports to ensure that the audit was carried out
properly and completely in accordance with the internal
auditing standards, and followed up on the recommended
corrective actions to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the internal control system.

. Reviewed the report on compliance with relevant laws and

regulations on a quarterly basis.

. Reviewed the report on related party transactions on a

quarterly basis.

. Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk

management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with the
global standard, obtained the audit report on the
enterprise wide risk management process from
Internal Audit Department at least annually, and
provided recommendation for the effectiveness
of the risk management process.

. Arranged for the annual self-assessment of the Audit

Committee as a whole and discussed the assessment
results at the Audit Committee meeting.

. Arranged for the annual evaluation of internal control

adequacy and proposed the evaluation results to the
Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee’s opinions are as follows: -

1. Based on (1) a review of the Company’s significant

accounting policy, (2) an enquiry about important
details of financial position and performance, (3) a re-
view of the report on evaluation of internal control
adequacy, and (4) an independent meeting with the
auditor to discuss about observations on the financial
reporting process and reliability, the Audit Committee has
not found any ground for doubting that the Company’s
financial statements presents information which contradicts
material fact and, hence, is confident that the Company’s
financial statements is reliable, accurate and complete in
accordance with the financial reporting standards.
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2. The Company’s internal control system, risk management

system, operational control of management team, and
monitoring system are effective and adequate.

. The Company gives importance to compliance with the

law on securities and exchange, regulations of the Stock
Exchange, and other laws relevant to the Company’s
business.

. The appointed auditor of the Company has experience

in auditing several insurance companies and has a
well-recognized broad local and global network, thus
enabling the auditing standard of the Company to meet
international level. Moreover, the auditor and all persons
designated to certify the financial statements are the
auditors approved by the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, are independent, and do not
have any relationship or any transaction that may
cause conflict of interest with the Company, thereby
ensuring that an audit will be conducted in an efficient and
transparent manner.

. All related party transactions or transactions that may cause

conflict of interest were done in conformity with the laws
and regulations of the Stock Exchange and were reasonable
with the maximum benefit to the Company. There was not
any other indication or remark that implied any irregularity.

. The Audit Committee has the number of members,

composition and qualification suitable for an efficient
discharge of duties under the Audit Committee Charter.
The Audit Committee has performed their duties in
accordance with the scope of responsibilities correctly
and completely in all respects with good collaboration
and support from all concerned parties.

On Behalf of the Audit Committee

(Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position, in which the equity
method is applied, as at 31 December 2018, and the related statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows, in which the equity method is
applied, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and also have audited the separate financial statements of Thaire

Life Assurance Public Company for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2018,
its financial performance and cash flows, for the year then ended in accordance with Thai

Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my

opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.
Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.
Reinsurance premium written

The Company’s core revenue is reinsurance premium written, which amounted to Baht 2,400
million, representing 99 percent of the Company’s total revenues. The Company has entered into
reinsurance contracts with customers, who are life insurance companies, for both facultative and
treaty reinsurance contracts. Conditions under those contracts vary depending upon types of
insurance, ratios of premium ceded, insured periods, etc. In addition, recognition of revenue on
such reinsurance contracts shall also meet the definition of insurance contracts under Thai
Financial Reporting Standards. Therefore, the Company’s management is required to use
judgement in consideration and review its product classification. Hence, | therefore focused on

examining that the reinsurance premium written is recognised correctly as actually incurred.

| assessed and tested, on a sampling basis, the Company’s internal controls relevant to revenue
recognition from each type of reinsurance contract, assessed the method and assumptions used
for product classification testing, involving our expert to provide independent assistance with
these assessments, through comparison to historical data, industry data and analysis of the
related actuarial model. Moreover, on a sampling basis, | tested the data used for product
classification testing and examined, on a sampling basis, the amount of inward reinsurance
premium against the statements received from reinsurers that occurred during the year and near
the period-end. | also performed analytical procedures on reinsurance premium written,
disaggregated by reinsurance type and tested, on a sampling basis, significant adjustments

made by journal vouchers.
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Liability adequacy test for long-term insurance policy reserves

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
long-term insurance policy reserves amounting to Baht 407 million, representing 44 percent of
total liabilities, which were set aside for inforce policies as at 31 December 2018 with reference to
the Unearned Premium Reserve method. The Company tests the adequacy of the reserve by
comparing it to the amount of reserves determined using the Gross Premium Valuation method,
and if that assessment shows that the carrying amount of reserves is inadequate, the Company
will recognise the amount of the shortfall as an expense and the gross premium valuation reserve
is presented in the financial statements. The Gross Premium Valuation method involves the use
of assumptions regarding matters such as mortality rate, discounted rate, lapse or surrender rate,
and selling and administrative expense ratio. Changes in such assumptions will affect the amount
of long-term insurance policy reserves. The Company’s management is required to exercise high
level of considerable judgement in selecting these assumptions. | therefore focused on the

adequacy of long-term insurance policy reserves.

| assessed the method and key assumptions used in determining long-term insurance policy
reserves, involved our expert to assist with independent analysis and comparison of the methods
and assumptions used to historical data and industry data, and analysis of the actuarial model
used in calculating reserves under the Gross Premium Valuation method. | also tested, on a
sampling basis, data used in the liabilities adequacy test, and | performed analytical procedures

on movements of long-term insurance policy reserves.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial

statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in

this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

(Lasss Lo

Narissara Chaisuwan
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4812

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 February 2019
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Financial Statements

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Reinsurance assets
Reinsurance receivables
Investment assets
Investments in securities - net
Loans
Investments in associates
Premises and equipment - net
Intangible assets - net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Deferred commission expenses
Others
Total assets
Liabilities and owners' equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
Due to reinsurers
Income tax payable
Employee benefit obligations
Other liabilities
Accrued expenses
Deferred commission income
Others
Total liabilities
Owners' equity
Share capital

Registerred, issued and paid-up

600,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each

Share premium

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated

Other component of owners' equity

Total owners' equity

Total liabilities and owners' equity

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

6 55,107,499 212,087,690 55,107,499 212,087,690
10,979,404 9,242,150 10,979,404 9,242,150
7 2,890,523 4,015,200 2,890,523 4,015,200
8 195,504,325 212,172,855 195,504,325 212,172,855
9 1,880,320,416 1,756,626,673 1,880,320,416 1,756,626,673
10 1,350,532 120,379 1,350,532 120,379
11.1 16,102,055 18,586,214 21,684,234 21,684,234
12 55,212,073 46,319,442 55,212,073 46,319,442
13 37,834,960 40,278,981 37,834,960 40,278,981
14.1 30,797,125 28,150,584 30,797,125 28,150,584
70,819,695 65,652,194 70,819,695 65,652,194
950,292 3,812,535 950,292 3,812,535
2,357,868,899 2,397,064,897 2,363,451,078 2,400,162,917
15 683,877,504 578,361,292 683,877,504 578,361,292
16 184,571,501 181,944,707 184,571,501 181,944,707
33,572,395 71,439,987 33,572,395 71,439,987
17 10,871,877 9,087,919 10,871,877 9,087,919
2,587,759 2,529,686 2,587,759 2,529,686
43,358 60,249 43,358 60,249
3,423,973 10,176,891 3,423,973 10,176,891
918,948,367 853,600,731 918,948,367 853,600,731

18
600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825
19 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
714,249,360 761,494,365 718,202,902 763,441,126
(14,491,653) 42,806,976 (12,863,016) 43,958,235

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,438,920,532

1,543,464,166

1,444,502,711

1,546,562,186

2,357,868,899

2,397,064,897

2,363,451,078

2,400,162,917




Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statement of income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased
from prior year

Earned premium

Commission income

Share of profit (loss) from investments in associates,
accounted for under the equity method

Net investment revenue

Gains on investments

Fair value gains (losses)

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
from prior year

Gross benefits and claims

Less: claims recovered from reinsurers

Commission expenses

Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Total expenses

Profits before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Profits for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Profits for the year

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
2,400,297,911 2,157,427,777 2,400,297,911 2,157,427,777
(19,538,148) (20,847,584) (19,538,148) (20,847,584)
2,380,759,763 2,136,580,193 2,380,759,763 2,136,580,193
(33,297,362) (40,035,591) (33,297,362) (40,035,591)
2,347,462,401 2,096,544,602 2,347,462,401 2,096,544,602

2,929,349 3,525,473 2,929,349 3,525,473

11.3 (2,008,781) 6,159,496 - -
61,446,366 42,104,670 61,446,366 47,144,670

22,584,817 31,064,466 22,584,817 51,977,630

(7,914,359) 2,126,582 (7,914,359) 2,126,582

1,809,535 3,913,847 1,809,535 3,913,847

2,426,311,328 2,186,339,136 2,428,318,109 2,205,232,804
86,590,549 35,530,506 86,590,549 35,530,506
1,374,252,802 919,004,077 1,374,252,802 919,004,077
(3,791,816) (3,745,510) (3,791,816) (3,745,510)

548,594,785 593,430,549 548,594,785 593,430,549

25,224,319 24,163,209 25,224,319 24,163,209

21 85,419,003 75,723,075 85,419,003 75,723,075
2,116,289,642 1,644,105,906 2,116,289,642 1,644,105,906
310,021,686 542,233,230 312,028,467 561,126,898

14.2 (56,555,171) (106,548,984) (56,555,171) (106,548,984)
253,466,515 435,684,246 255,473,296 454,577,914

24

0.42 0.73 0.43 0.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Profits for the year

Other comprehensive income
Iltems to be recognised in statements of
income in subsequent period:
Share of other comprehensive income from associates
- Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements in foreign currency
- Gains on revaluation
of available-for-sale investments
Gains (losses) on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments
Add (less): Income tax expenses
Iltems to be recognised in statements of income
in subsequent periods - net of income taxes
Iltems not to be recognised in statements of
income in subsequent period:
Share of other comprehensive income from
an associate - actuarial losses
Actuarial losses
Add: Income tax revenues
Items not to be recognised in statements of income
in subsequent periods - net of income taxes

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
253,466,515 435,684,246 255,473,296 454,577,914
(477,378) (1,121,566) - -

- 41,280 - .
(71,026,564) 49,396,811 (71,026,564) 49,396,811
14,205,313 (9,879,362) 14,205,313 (9,879,362)
(57,298,629) 38,437,163 (56,821,251) 39,517,449
- (44,467) - -
(892,212) (4,534,958) (892,212) (4,534,958)
178,442 906,992 178,442 906,992
(713,770) (3,672,433) (713,770) (3,627,966)
(58,012,399) 34,764,730 (57,535,021) 35,889,483
195,454,116 470,448,976 197,938,275 490,467,397

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash received from reinsurance

Interest income

Dividend income

Other investment income

Other income

Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Income tax expenses

Investments in securities

Loans

Purchase of investments in an associate

Sale of investments in an associate

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Disposals of equipment

Purchases of equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2018 2017 2018 2017

465,497,252 678,967,700 465,497,252 678,967,700
15,748,141 20,668,970 15,748,141 20,668,970
44,492,631 36,866,421 44,492,631 36,866,421
22,053,157 31,355,440 22,053,157 31,355,440
590,623 3,900,281 590,623 3,900,281
(25,321,542) (24,191,079) (25,321,542) (24,191,079)
(83,510,407) (61,636,723) (83,510,407) (61,636,723)
(82,685,549) (70,458,728) (82,685,549) (70,458,728)
(199,100,166) (359,922,917) (199,100,166) (359,922,917)
(1,230,153) 172,512 (1,230,153) 172,512
- (21,684,234) - (21,684,234)

- 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
156,533,087 294,037,643 156,533,987 294,037,643
1,715,120 14,990 1,715,120 14,990
(12,902,822) (6,213,459) (12,902,822) (6,213,459)
(2,326,476) (17,663,629) (2,326,476) (17,663,629)

(13,514,178)

(23,862,098)

(13,514,178)

(23,862,098)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(240,000,000)

(156,980,191) 30,175,545 (156,980,191) 30,175,545
212,087,690 181,912,145 212,087,690 181,912,145
55,107,499 212,087,690 55,107,499 212,087,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Corporate information

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company,
incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand since 9 October 2013. Its major shareholder is Thai Reinsurance Public Company
Limited, a public company incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the major shareholder
held 11.10% and 15.53%, respectively, of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of life reinsurance. The
registered office of the Company is located at No. 48/15 Soi Ratchadapisek 20,
Ratchadapisek Road, Samsennok Sub-district, Huaykwang District, Bangkok.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance
with Thai accounting practices related to insurance and the accounting and reporting
guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC”), and in accordance
with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification of the Office of Insurance
Commission (“OIC”) regarding criteria, procedures, conditions and terms for preparation and
submission of financial statements and operating performance reports of life insurance
companies B.E. 2559 dated 4 March 2016, which has become effective as from 1 January
2016 onwards.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in Note to the financial statements regarding a summary of significant

accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such

financial statements in Thai language.
The financial statements in which the equity method is applied

The Company prepares the financial statements, in which equity method is applied, which

has presented investment in an associate under the equity method.
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3.2

Separate financial statements

The Company prepares the separate financial statements, which has presented investment

in an associate under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations (revised 2017) which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2018. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes and
clarifications directed towards disclosures in the notes to financial statements. The adoption
of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the

Company’s financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after 1 January 2019

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the number of revised and new financial
reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2018) which are effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. These financial reporting standards were aimed at
alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of
the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting

guidance for users of the standards.

The management of the Company believe that most of the revised financial reporting
standards will not have any significant impact on the financial statements when they are
initially applied. However, the new standard involves changes to key principles, as

summarised below.
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 15 supersedes the following accounting standards together with related Interpretations.

TAS 11 (revised 2017) Construction contracts

TAS 18 (revised 2017) Revenue

TSIC 31 (revised 2017) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
TFRIC 13 (revised 2017) Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC 15 (revised 2017) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

TFRIC 18 (revised 2017) Transfers of Assets from Customers
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3.3

Entities are to apply this standard to all contracts with customers unless those contracts fall
within the scope of other standards. The standard establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers, with revenue being recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when

applying each step of the model.

The management of the Company believe that this standard will not have any significant

impact on the financial statements when it is initially applied.
TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance contracts

This standard provides an option to the qualifying insurers under such standard to use a
temporary exemption from adoption of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures and to adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial
instruments and disclosures applicable to insurance business (when issued) instead for the
financial reporting period beginning before 1 January 2022 or before the effective date of

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (when issued).

The management of the Company is currently determining an option which may impact on

the financial statements in the year when it is adopted.

Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments that will become

effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2020

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a set of TFRSs related
to financial instruments, which consists of five accounting standards and interpretations, as

follows:

Financial reporting standards:
TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Accounting standard:

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
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These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the classification
of financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost (taking into
account the type of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual cash flows and the
Company’s business model), calculation of impairment using the expected credit loss
method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations regarding the presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments. When the TFRSs related to financial instruments are
effective, some accounting standards, interpretations and guidance which are currently
effective will be cancelled.

The management of the Company is currently evaluating the impact of these standards to
the financial statements in the year when they are adopted, and also currently determining
an option as allowed by TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance Contracts.

4. Significant accounting policies
4.1 Revenue recognition
a. Reinsurance Premium written

Reinsurance premium written consists of reinsurance premium less premium of
canceled policies and premiums refunded to policyholders. Reinsurance premium is
recognised as revenue when the reinsurer submits the reinsurance application or the
statement of accounts and the Company confirms the coverage under the reinsurance
contracts and is adjusted by unearned premium reserves.

b. Commission income

Commission income are recorded as deferred revenue and will be gradually
recognised as revenue on a monthly basis proportionately to the ceded premium.

C. Investment revenues
Interest on investments

Interest is recognised as revenue on an accrual basis based on the effective interest
rate.

Dividends on investments

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is
established.

d. Gains (losses) on investments

Gains (losses) on investments are recognised as revenues or expenses on the
transaction dates.
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4.2 Expenses recognition

Reinsurance premium ceded

Reinsurance premium ceded is recognised as expense when the insurance risk is

transferred to another reinsurer.
Gross claims

Claims consist of claims and losses adjustment expenses of reinsurance for both
reported claim and not reported claim, and stated the amounts of the claims, related

expenses, and loss adjustments of current and prior year incurred during the year.

Claims of reinsurance are recognised upon the receipt of the claims advice from the
reinsured, based on the claims notified by the reinsured and estimates made by the
Company’s management. The maximum value of claims estimated is not exceeding

the sum-insured under the relevant policy.

Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised as a deduction item against gross
claims when claims are recorded under the conditions in the relevant reinsurance

contracts.
Commission expenses

Commissions of reinsurance are recorded as deferred expenses and will be gradually

recognised as expenses on a monthly basis proportionately of earned premium.
Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses are other expenses relating to reinsurance both directly
and indirectly, including various insurance-related contributions, which are recognised

as expenses on accrual basis.
Operating expenses

Operating expenses are these operating expenses not related to underwriting and

claims, which are recognised as expenses on accrual basis.
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4.3 Product classification

The Company classifies inward reinsurance contracts and outward reinsurance contracts
based on the nature of the insurance contracts. Insurance contracts are those contracts
where the insurer has accepted a significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. To determine whether a
significant insurance risk has been accepted, the insurer compares the amount of benefits
payable if an insured event occurs with the amount of benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. If the above condition is not met, the Company classifies the insurance
contract as an investment contract. Investment contracts are the contracts that have the
legal form of insurance contracts and transfer financial risk to the insurer, but not significant

insurance risk. Financial risks are as interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or price risk.

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of the significance of the
insurance risk at an inception of contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract
has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime. If any contract is previously classified as an investment contract at
an inception of contract, it may, however, be reclassified to be an insurance contract later if

the level of the insurance risk increases significantly.
4.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at bank, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
4.5 Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets consist of long-term insurance policy reserves refundable from

reinsurers and unearned premium reserves, less allowance for doubtful accounts (if any).

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers are estimated, proportionally based on the
reinsurance terms of long-term insurance policy reserves and unearned premium reserves

in accordance with the insurance reserve calculation laws.

The Company set up a provision for impairment when it has objective evidence, as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets, that the
Company may not receive payment from reinsurers and these amounts, which are effected

from an event, can be measured reliably.
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4.6 Reinsurance receivables and due to reinsurers
a. Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables are stated at amounts deposited on reinsurance and

amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium receivables, commission income
receivables, claim receivables and various other items receivable from reinsurers, and
are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records allowance for
doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to uncollectibles,
taking into account collection experience and the status of reinsurers as at the end of
the reporting periods.

b. Due to reinsurers

Due to reinsurers are stated at amounts due to reinsurers and other amounts due to

reinsurers which consist of other reinsurance payable to reinsurers, excluding claims.

The Company presents net of reinsurance to the same entity (reinsurance receivables or

due to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are met.

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of

financial position, and

(2) The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements

of financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.
4.7 Investment assets
a. Investments in securities

(1) Trading investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these

investments are recorded in statement of income.

(2) Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these investments are recorded in statements of comprehensive income, and

will be recorded in statement of income when the investments are sold.

(3) Held-to-maturity investments are presented at amortised cost. The
premium/discount on the investments is amortised/accreted by the effective
interest rate method with the amortised/accreted amount presented as an

adjustment to the interest income.

(4) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which are classified as general

investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).
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The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last
working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value
of debt securities is determined based on yield rates or prices quoted by the Thai
Bond Market Association. The fair value of investment units is determined from their

net asset value.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such
investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the
date of reclassification are recorded in statements of income or recorded as
revaluation surplus or deficit on available-for-sale investment in other components of

owners’ equity, depending on the type of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
cost of the investments is recognised in statements of income. The weighted average

method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

The Company records purchases and sales of investments in equity securities on
trade dates and records purchases and sales of investments in debt securities on

settlement dates.
Loans

Loans are stated at net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for the estimated loss that may be incurred in collection of loans. Increase (decrease)

in allowance for doubtful accounts is recognised as expenses in statement of income.
Investment in an associate

Investment in an associate, as presented in the financial statements in which the
equity method is applied, is recorded initially at cost and is subsequently adjusted to
reflect the proportionate share of the associate’s net income or loss and deducted by

dividend income.

Investment in an associate, as presented in the separate financial statements, is
stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any). Loss on impairment is recorded

as an expense in statement of income.
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4.10

Premises and equipment and depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years
Office equipment and furniture - 5Syears
Computers - 3years
Motor vehicles - 5Syears

Depreciation is recognised as expense in statement of income. No depreciation is provided
on land.

An item of property, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal of an asset is included in statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for
impairment (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over their economic
useful lives and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. The amortisation
expense is charged to statement of income. No amortisation is provided on computer
program under development.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, which are computer softwares, have an estimated
economic useful life of 10 years.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect
of investments, premises and equipment and intangible assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
as expenses in statement of income when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the
carrying amount.
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In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of
the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised immediately in statement of income.

4.11 Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities consist of long term insurance policy reserves, loss reserves,
claims payable and premium reserves.

a. Long term insurance policy reserves

At the end of the reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of gross
premium valuation reserves with unearned premium reserves, and if gross premium
valuation reserves are higher than unearned premium reserves, the Company will
recognise such difference and gross premium valuation reserves are presented in the
financial statements.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)
Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as direct insurance, that transfer insurance
risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.

(2) Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves, calculated using an
actuarial method in accordance with the OIC notifications. The main
assumptions applied relate to lapse or surrender rate, selling and administrative
expenses, mortality, morbidity, discount rate and non-guaranteed dividend

payment rate.
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Loss reserves

Loss reserves are provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on
the claims notified by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s
management. The maximum value of estimated claim will not exceed the sum-insured
under the relevant policy.

Loss reserves are calculated using an actuarial method based on the best estimate of
claims expected to be paid to the insured in respect of losses incurred before or as at
the end of the reporting period whether or not the claims are reported to the Company,
including loss adjustment expenses. Differences of the then-calculated loss reserves
and the loss reserves already recognised in the financial statements is claims incurred
but not yet reported (IBNR).

Premium reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy reserves. At the end of the
reporting period, the Company compares the amount of unexpired risk reserves with
that of unearned premium reserves, and if unexpired risk reserves are higher than
unearned premium reserves, the Company will recognise such difference and
unexpired risk reserves are presented in the financial statements.

(1)  Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)

Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three
hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as direct insurance, that transfer insurance
risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.

(2) Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are the reserves for the future claims that may be
incurred in respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserves are set aside
using an actuarial method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected
be incurred during the remaining coverage period, based on historical claim
data.
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4.12 Employee benefit obligation
a. Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in
a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses
when incurred.

b.  Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payment it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats this severance
payment obligation as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income and recorded directly to
retained earnings.

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

4.14 Long-term leases

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Company as a leasee are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are presented as
long-term liabilities, while the interest element is charged to statement of income over the
lease periods. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
the lesser periods and the useful lives of the leased assets.

Leases of assets, which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Company, as the leasee, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in statement of income on a straight line basis
over the lease terms. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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4.16

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in statement of income.
Income taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and
deferred income taxes.

a. Current income taxes

Current income taxes are provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid
to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax
legislation.

b. Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,
using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences
while it recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At each reporting period, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or a part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Company records deferred taxes directly to equity if the taxes relate to items that
are recorded directly to equity.

4.17 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the
Company.

They also include associated companies, and individuals or enterprises which directly or
indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning
and direction of the Company’s operations.
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4.18 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case when there is no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using a
valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured

at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categories of inputs to be used in fair value measurements as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:
5.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers, the
management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things,
past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Impairment on reinsurance assets

In determining impairment on reinsurance assets, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates loss on impairment of each reinsurers based on conditions in
contract and events occurred that the Company may not receive entire amount under the

term of contract.
Allowance for impairment on investments in equity securities

The Company treats available-for-sale investments and general investments as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement of the management.
Premises and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the buildings and equipment and to

review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review premises and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding

forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible assets and amortisation

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset
or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of

estimated future taxable profits.
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5.7 Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are calculated using the actuarial method based on the
current assumptions or assumptions determined on the policy inception dates, which reflect
the best estimates at that times. The main assumptions used are policy surrender or lapse
rates, selling and administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity, longevity, discount rates,
non-guaranteed dividend rates and so on. However, the use of different assumptions could
affect the amount of life policy reserves and adjustments to the life policy reserves may

therefore be required in the future.
5.8 Loss reserves

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and
outstanding claims taking into account two factors. These are the claims incurred and
reported, and the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), the losses on which are
estimated using international standard actuarial techniques. The major assumptions used
under these techniques consist of historical data, including the development of claims
estimates, paid, average costs per claim and claim numbers etc. Nevertheless, such

estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and actual results could differ.
5.9 Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are calculated using an actuarial technique, based on the best
estimate of the claims and relevant expenses expected to be paid over the remaining terms
of the insurance. Estimating such reserves requires the management to exercise judgment,

with reference to historical data and the best estimates available at the time.
5.10 Obligation under the defined benefit plan

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
5.11 Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement.
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5.12

5.13

Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management
is required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or
liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and

arrangements.
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises
judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets, and include consideration of credit risk (the Company
and its counterparty), liquidity risk, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value and

disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at

31 December

2018 2017
Cash 8,783 1,034
Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 44,821,548 69,033,204
Deposits at other financial institutions 10,277,168 43,791,232
Short-term investments in money market
mutual fund - 99,262,220
Total cash and cash equivalents 55,107,499 212,087,690

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, saving deposits, and deposits at other financial

institutions carried interests between 0.1 and 1.0 percent per annum.
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8.

Reinsurance assets
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2018 2017
Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers
Long-term insurance policy reserves 2,883,108 4,005,634
Unearned premium reserves 7,415 9,566
Total reinsurance assets 2,890,523 4,015,200
Reinsurance receivables
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2018 2017
Amounts deposited on reinsurance 62,033,064 53,976,701
Amounts due from reinsurers 133,471,261 158,196,154
195,504,325 212,172,855

Total reinsurance receivables

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers, classified by

overdue periods of principal, are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2018 2017
Not yet due 128,521,206 157,402,355
Overdue not longer than 12 months 4,740,264 793,799
Over 1 year to 2 years 209,791 -
Total amounts due from reinsurers 133,471,261 158,196,154
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9. Investments in securities

9.1 Classified by types of investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at 31 December
2018 2017
Cost/ Cost/
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value

Trading investments
Equity securities 86,439,441 78,514,664 6,223,658 6,213,240
Less: Unrealised losses (7,924,777) - (10,418) -
Trading investments - net 78,514,664 78,514,664 6,213,240 6,213,240
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities 959,411,077 943,332,306 653,587,368 708,535,161
Add (less): Unrealised gain (loss) (16,078,771) - 54,947,793 -
Available-for-sale investments - net 943,332,306 943,332,306 708,535,161 708,535,161
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise

securities 546,367,877 768,672,536
Private enterprise debt securities 179,999,849 76,100,016
Deposits at financial institutions which

mature over 3 months 130,000,000 195,000,000
Total held-to-maturity investments 856,367,726 1,039,772,552
General investments
Equity securities 2,105,720 2,105,720
Total general investments 2,105,720 2,105,720
Investments in securities - net 1,880,320,416 1,756,626,673

In the first quarter of 2017, the Company redeemed the government securities that were
classified as held-to-maturity investments, with an amortised cost of Baht 40.6 million and a
face value of Baht 40.0 million. These securities were to mature in the year 2021. However,
the Company’s management had reviewed whether the classification of the remaining
investments in debt instruments as held-to-maturity is appropriate and concluded that the

Company still intends and is able to hold these debt investments to maturity.
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9.2

9.3

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company has reviewed the appropriateness of the
existing classification of its investments in securities and reclassified investments in
marketable securities with fair values at transfer date totaling Baht 75.4 million from trading
investments to available-for-sale investments because the Company intends to hold these
securities as long-term investments in order to earn dividends and does not intend to sell
them in the near term in order to generate profits from changes in securities prices. The
reclassifications resulted in fair value gains of Baht 2.1 million, which were recorded in

statement of income.
Remaining period of debt securities

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, Investments in debt securities have the following
remaining periods to maturity.

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements as at 31 December

2018 2017
Period to maturity Period to maturity
Within Within
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 411,084,862 69,940,372 65,342,643 546,367,877 528,325,652 154,969,360 85,377,524 768,672,536
Private enterprises debt securities 119,999,849 60,000,000 - 179,999,849 36,128,817 39,971,199 - 76,100,016
Deposits at financial institutions
with an original maturity period
longer than 3 months 130,000,000 - - 130,000,000 195,000,000 - - 195,000,000

Total held-to-maturity investments 661,084,711 129,940,372 65,342,643 856,367,726 759,454,469 194,940,559 85,377,524  1,039,772,552

Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-sale investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
For the years ended 31 December For the years ended 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale

investments - net of income taxes

- beginning of the year 43,928,542 4,369,813 43,958,235 4,440,786
Gains (losses) on revaluation during the year (45,837,502) 37,591,463 (45,837,502) 37,539,863
(Gains) losses transferred to be recognised

in statements of income (25,189,062) 11,856,948 (25,189,062) 11,856,948
Total (71,026,564) 49,448,411 (71,026,564) 49,396,811
Add (less): Income taxes 14,205,313 (9,889,682) 14,205,313 (9,879,362)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the

year - net of income taxes (56,821,251) 39,558,729 (56,821,251) 39,517,449
Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-

sale investments - net of income taxes

- end of the year (12,892,709) 43,928,542 (12,863,016) 43,958,235

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL



9.4 Investments subject to restriction

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company placed some investments as a security with

the Registrar and had some investments placed to guarantee for electricity consumption as

described in Notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements.

10. Loans

The ending balances of loans are loans provided to employees in accordance with the

Company’s employee welfare plan at the interest rate of not lower than 1.00% and not higher

than MLR-3% per annum. The MLR is reference to that announced by commercial banks,

depending on types of loans granted. The whole amounts of the outstanding balances were

classified as not yet due and no interest was receivable as of the end of the reporting period.

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements as at

31 December

2018 2017
Mortgage loans 1,350,532 -
Personal guarantee loans - 120,379
Total loans 1 ,350,532 120,379
11. Investment in an associate
11.1 Details of an associate
Company’s Country of Issued and paid-up share capital Shareholding percentage held by
name Nature of business incorporation as at 31 December the Company as at 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht) (%) (%)
TKI Life Life insurance Lao 66,118 66,118 32.50 32.50
Insurance
Company
Limited

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements

Company’s name in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Investment value under equity method Investment value under cost method as
as at 31 December at 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited 16,102 18,586 21,684 21,684
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11.2 Financial information of the associate

Summarised information about financial position

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

31 December

2018 2017
Total assets 50,607 58,884
Total liabilities (1,062) (1,696)
Net assets 49,545 57,188
Shareholding percentage (%) 32.50 32.50
Carrying amount of the associates based on equity method 16,102 18,586

Summarised information of statements of comprehensive income

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
EMCS Thai Co.,
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited Ltd

For the years

ended 31
For the year ended 31 December December
2018 2017 2017
Revenue 4,012 674 109,292
Profits (losses) for the year (6,175) (6,081) 40,680
Other comprehensive loss for the year (1,469) (3,451) (16)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (7,644) (9,532) 40,664

(1) Profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 was calculated based on profit from 1 January 2017 until the date

of sold the investments in an associate.

On 22 September 2017, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders passed a
resolution to approve the sale of all 1,200,000 shares of EMCS Thai Company Limited held
by the Company, equivalent to 20 percent of the total shares of EMCS Thai Company
Limited, at a price of Baht 50 per share, or a total of Baht 60 million to Thai Reinsurance

Public Company Limited.

On 6 November 2017, the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC) granted approval to
Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited to purchase the shares of EMCS Thai Company
Limited from the Company. The Company received payment for the shares on 16
November 2017.
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11.3 Share of profit (loss) and other comprehensive loss and dividend income

During the years, the Company recognised shares of profit (loss) and other comprehensive
loss from investment in an associate in the financial statements, in which the equity method
is applied, and recognised dividends received from the associate in the separate financial
statements as below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Share of other comprehensive

Share of profit (loss) from loss from investment in an
investment in associate for the associate for the years ended Dividends received for the
Associate years ended 31 December 31 December years ended 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd. (") - 8,136 - (3) - 5,040
TKI Life Insurance

Company Limited (2,007) (1,976) (477) (1,122) - -
(2,007) 6,160 (477) (1,125) - 5,040

(1) Profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 was calculated based on profit from 1 January 2017 until the date of

sold the investments in an associate.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded investments in associates under
the equity method (in the financial statements in which the equity method is applied) based
on the financial information, as prepared by the associates’ management. However, the
Company obtained the 2017 financial statements of EMCS Thai Co., Ltd., which were
audited by the associate’s auditor under report dated 16 March 2018, showed the amounts
that are not significantly different from the financial information prepared by the associate’s

management used equity-accounting in that year.
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12. Premises and equipment

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

Furniture,
fixture and Motor Construction
Land Buildings equipment Computers vehicles in progress Total

Cost
As at 1 January 2017 17,640,000 32,113,083 5,030,932 887,879 3,008,606 - 58,680,500
Additions - 1,565,029 1,546,755 1,944,595 - 1,157,080 6,213,459
Disposals - - (405,229) (181,433) - - (586,662)
As at 31 December 2017 17,640,000 33,678,112 6,172,458 2,651,041 3,008,606 1,157,080 64,307,297
Additions - 1,714,593 2,270,742 554,806 - 8,362,681 12,902,822
Transfer in (out) - 1,157,080 - - - (1,157,080) -
Disposals - - (2,501,666) (63,294) (3,008,606) - (5,573,566)
As at 31 December 2018 17,640,000 36,549,785 5,941,534 3,142,553 - 8,362,681 71,636,553
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2017 - 9,304,628 3,349,069 704,454 2,704,456 - 16,062,607
Depreciation for the year - 1,613,992 573,229 269,115 54,150 - 2,510,486
Depreciation on disposals - - (405,191) (180,047) - - (585,238)
As at 31 December 2017 - 10,918,620 3,517,107 793,522 2,758,606 - 17,987,855
Depreciation for the year - 1,776,312 819,255 831,527 - - 3,427,094
Depreciation on disposals - - (2,173,223) (58,640)  (2,758,606) - (4,990,469)
As at 31 December 2018 - 12,694,932 2,163,139 1,566,409 - - 16,424,480
Net book value
31 December 2017 17,640,000 22,759,492 2,655,351 1,857,519 250,000 1,157,080 46,319,442
31 December 2018 17,640,000 23,854,853 3,778,395 1,576,144 - 8,362,681 55,212,073
Depreciation for the year
2017 2,510,486
2018 3,427,094

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but
are still in use. The original cost before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets
amounted to approximately Baht 1.3 million and Baht 2.7million, respectively.
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13. Intangible assets

Cost

1 January 2017

Additions

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2017
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2018
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2017
Amortisation during the year
31 December 2017
Amortisation during the year
Amortisation on disposals
31 December 2018

Net book value

31 December 2017

31 December 2018
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(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

Computer
Computer software under
software development Total
1,013,095 23,880,980 24,894,075
5,886,474 11,777,155 17,663,629
35,658,135 (35,658,135) -
42,557,704 - 42,557,704
2,326,476 - 2,326,476
(472,940) - (472,940)
44,411,240 - 44,411,240
266,812 - 266,812
2,011,911 - 2,011,911
2,278,723 - 2,278,723
4,440,864 - 4,440,864
(143,307) - (143,307)
6,576,280 - 6,576,280
40,278,981 - 40,278,981
37,834,960 - 37,834,960




14.

14.1

14.2

Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements Changes in deferred
in which the equity method is applied tax assets and liabilities are
and Separate financial statements recognised for the year ended
as at 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017

Deferred tax assets arose from:
Loss reserves 4,341 6,990 (2,649) (2,940)
Commission payable on reinsurance 34,123 42,403 (8,280) 9,522
Differences between premium/discount on debt

securities recognised at effective interest

rates and interest actually incurred (156) (2086) 50 (235)
Unrealised (gains) losses on available-for-sale

investments 3,216 (10,990) 14,206 (9,880)
Net deferred commission (14,155) (13,118) (1,037) 635
Others 3,428 3,072 356 (1,231)
Deferred tax assets 30,797 28,151
Total changes 2,646 (4,129)
Changes recognised in:

- Statements of income (11,737) 4,843

- Statements of comprehensive income 14,383 (8,972)

2,646 (4,129)

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are made up as
follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity
method is applied and

Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
Current income taxes:
Interim corporate income tax charge (44,818) (111,392)
Deferred income taxes:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (11,737) 4,843
Income tax expenses reported in the statements of income (56,555) (106,549)
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Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profits for the

year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

Financial statements
in which the equity method
is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2018 2017 2018 2017

Accounting profits before income tax expenses 310,022 542,233 312,028 561,127
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Income taxes at the applicable tax rate (62,004) (108,447) (62,406) (112,225)
Tax effects of:

Non-taxable revenues 5,649 2,889 5,649 6,667

Non-tax deductible expenses (18) (1,406) (18) (1,406)

Additional tax-deductible expenses allowed 292 386 292 386

Others (474) 29 (72) 29
Total 5,449 1,898 5,851 5,676
Income tax expenses reported in statements of

income (56,555) (106,549) (56,555) (106,549)

15. Insurance contract liabilities
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long term insurance policy reserves 406,751,589 (2,883,108) 403,868,481
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 343,915 - 343,915

Claims incurred but not yet reported 21,358,494 - 21,358,494
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 255,423,506 (7,415) 255,416,091
Total 683,877,504 (2,890,523) 680,986,981
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15.1

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2017

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long term insurance policy reserves 321,283,566 (4,005,634) 317,277,932
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 4,340,244 4,340,244

Claims incurred but not yet reported 30,609,187 30,609,187
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 222,128,295 (9,566) 222,118,729
Total 578,361,292 (4,015,200) 574,346,092
Long term insurance policy reserves

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

Beginning balances

Reserves increased from new policies
and enforced policies

Insurance policy reserves decreased from
benefit paid for lapse, surrender and others

Assumptions changes

Ending balances

2018 2017
321,283,566 285,412,354
143,083,523 114,177,401
(41,212,054) (9,996,013)
(16,403,446) (68,310,176)
406,751,589 321,283,566
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15.2 Loss reserves

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

Beginning balances 34,949,431 49,650,247
Claims incurred for the year 979,028,274 590,931,566
Changes in loss reserve 56,925,383 79,219,351
Changes in assumptions for calculating loss
reserves (66,185,055) (93,888,416)
Claims paid during the year (983,015,624) (590,963,317)
Endmg balances 21 ,702,409 34,949,431
15.3 Claim development tables
a. Gross claims table
(Unit: Baht)
Prior to
Underwriting year/Reporting year 2011 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Outstanding claim provision:
- as at underwriting year /
Reporting year 131,578,954 177,388,453 226,113,053 288,608,228 294,603,119 358,551,964 363,689,673 621,131,521
- Next one year 204,403,156 301,936,463 339,691,796 426,244,997 390,862,969 476,858,625 685,189,024
- Next two years 206,853,930 298,878,147 343,030,869 429,289,768 392,782,278 476,702,303
- Next three years 209,473,930 299,764,147 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278
- Next four years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630
- Next five years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304
- Next six years 209,473,930 299,768,519
- Next seven years 209,473,930
Cumulative claim estimates 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278 476,702,303 685,189,024 621,131,521
Cumulative payments to date (209,473,930)  (299,768,519)  (349,070,304)  (429,520,630)  (392,782,278)  (476,702,303)  (685,189,024)  (599,429,112)
Total loss reserves ‘ 21,702,409 21,702,409
b. Net claim table
(Unit: Baht)
Prior to
Underwriting year/Reporting year 2011 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Outstanding claim provision:
- as at underwriting year /
Reporting year 131,578,954 177,388,453 226,113,053 288,608,228 294,603,119 358,551,964 363,689,673 621,131,521
- Next one year 204,403,156 301,936,463 339,691,796 426,244,997 390,862,969 476,858,625 685,189,024
- Next two years 206,853,930 298,878,147 343,030,869 429,289,768 392,782,278 476,702,303
- Next three years 209,473,930 299,764,147 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278
- Next four years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630
- Next five years 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304
- Next six years 209,473,930 299,768,519
- Next seven years 209,473,930
Cumulative claim estimates 209,473,930 299,768,519 349,070,304 429,520,630 392,782,278 476,702,303 685,189,024 621,131,521
Cumulative payments to date (209,473,930)  (299,768,519)  (349,070,304)  (429,520,630)  (392,782,278)  (476,702,303)  (685,189,024)  (599,429,112)
- 21,702,409 21,702,409

Total loss reserves
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15.4 Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in the calculation of long-term insurance policy reserves under

gross premium valuation method for liabilities adequacy test are determined as follows:

a. Mortality rate

The Company uses the Thai mortality table as a basis and adjusts it based on the

Company’s experience.

b. Lapse rates

The Company determines the assumptions based on actual historical lapse rates of the

Company.

c. Discount rate

The Company used zero coupon government bond yield curve as a baseline, adjusted

for the credit spread between these and A-rated corporate debt securities with 5 years to

maturity in order to expiate the illiquidity risk premium.

Key actuarial assumptions in IBNR calculation is the ultimate loss ratio, The ultimate loss

ratio is calculated by dividing estimated ultimate losses by estimated ultimate premiums.

15.5 Unearned premium reserves

Beginning balances

Premium written for the year
Premium earned during the year

Ending balances

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
222,128,295 182,092,051
1,322,323,819 940,110,057
(1,289,028,608) (900,073,813)
255,423,506 222,128,295
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16. Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2018 2017
Amounts due to reinsurers 184,571,501 181,944,707
Total due to reinsurers 184,571,501 181,944,707

17. Employee benefit obligations

The movements employee benefit obligations for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017 were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017

Defined benefit obligation at beginning

of the year 9,087,919 4,197,790
Included in statements of income:

Current service costs 765,915 233,864

Interest costs 125,831 121,307
Included in statements of comprehensive income:

Actuarial (gains) losses due to

- Demographic assumptions changes (135,863) (2,348,029)

- Financial assumptions changes (351,014) 887,533

- Experience adjustments 1,379,089 5,995,454

Total actuarial losses 892,212 4,534,958
Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 10,871,877 9,087,919

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company expected that no long-term employee

benefits payable during the next year.
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As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the weighted average durations of the liabilities for

long-term employee benefit were approximately 10.0 years and 8.0 years, respectively.
The significant assumptions used in calculation of the defined benefit plan were
summarised below.

(Unit: % per annum)

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
Discount rate 2.6 2.3
Salary incremental rate 6.5 6.5
Staff turnover rates 10.0 - 22.5 11.5-20.0

The impact from sensitivity analysis on significant assumptions that affect employee benefit

obligations as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are summarised below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit

Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit

Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2018 decrease 31 December 2018
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (592,373) 1.0 697,563
Salary increasing rate 1.0 837,411 1.0 (732,019)
Staff turnover rate 10.00 (499,082) 10.0(M 577,397

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit

Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit

Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2017 decrease 31 December 2017
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (402,968) 1.0 472,449
Salary increasing rate 1.0 592,528 1.0 (522,878)
Staff turnover rate 10.0(M (375,745) 10.0(M 443,900

™M 10% of actual staff turnover rate.
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On 13 December 2018, The National Legislative Assembly passed a resolution
approving the draft of a new Labour Protection Act, which is in the process being
published in the Royal Gazette. The new Labour Protection Act stipulates additional legal
severance pay rates for employees who have worked for an uninterrupted period of
twenty years or more. Such employees are entitled to receive compensation at a rate of
not less than that of the last 400 days. This change is considered a post-employment
benefits plan amendment and the Company has additional liabilities for long-term
employee benefits of Baht 1.4 million. The Company will reflect the effect of the change
by recognising past services costs as expenses in the income statement of the period in

which the law is effective.
18. Share capital

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company’s has the registered, issued and paid-up

share capital consists of about 600 million shares with par value of Baht 1 per share.

19. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered

capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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20. Segment information
20.1 Operating segment information reporting

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to make
decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The

Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as President.

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its
products and services and have two reportable segments are “conventional products” and
“non-conventional products”. Segments are differentiated based on the design of the
product, and specifically whether they are a traditional product line available in the current
market or a new type of product in expectation of market demand and the Company can

continuously service.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker has reviewed the operating results of the operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions and assessing performance.
Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and on a basis
consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements.
However, in the part of assets and liabilities, segment performance is measured based on
the same basis applied to the financial statements whereby operating segments were not

separately measured.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with

that for third party transactions.
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Operating segment information for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 can be

classified by type of products as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Conventional Non-conventional

Underwriting revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased

from prior year

Earned premium

Underwriting expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
(decreased) from prior year

Net benefits and claims

Commissions and brokerages expenses - net

Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting expenses

Profit from underwriting

Operating expenses

Profit from operations

Share of loss from investments in associates

Net investment revenue

Other revenue

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

snevuUs:91U 2561
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products

products

Total

1,351,339,445
(18,585,235)

1,048,958,466
(952,913)

2,400,297,911
(19,538,148)

1,332,754,210

(25,988,933)

1,048,005,553

(7,308,429)

2,380,759,763

(33,297,362)

1,306,765,277

1,040,697,124

2,347,462,401

(6,362,832) 92,953,381 86,590,549
733,374,470 637,086,516 1,370,460,986
330,223,226 215,442,210 545,665,436

14,200,994 11,023,325 25,224,319

1,071,435,858 956,505,432 2,027,941,290
235,329,419 84,191,692 319,521,111

(85,419,003)

234,102,108
(2,006,781)

76,116,824

1,809,535

310,021,686
(56,555,171)

253,466,515




20.2

Underwriting revenues
Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased from

prior year
Earned premium
Underwriting expenses
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
(decreased) from prior year
Net benefits and claims
Commissions and brokerages expenses - net
Other underwriting expenses
Total underwriting expenses
Profit from underwriting
Operating expenses
Profit from operations
Share of profit from investments in associates
Net investment revenue
Other income
Profit before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Geographic information

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Conventional Non-conventional
products products Total
1,201,262,081 956,165,696 2,157,427,777
(19,744,872) (1,102,712) (20,847,584)
1,181,517,209 955,062,984 2,136,580,193
(32,061,230) (7,974,361) (40,035,591)
1,149,455,979 947,088,623 2,096,544,602
(32,365,354) 67,895,860 35,530,506
494,304,850 420,953,717 915,258,567
396,705,320 193,199,756 589,905,076
13,454,145 10,709,064 24,163,209
872,098,961 692,758,397 1,564,857,358
277,357,018 254,330,226 531,687,244

(75,723,075)

455,964,169
6,159,496
76,195,718
3,913,847

542,233,230
(106,548,984)

435,684,246

The Company operates in Thailand only. As a result, all the revenues and assets as

reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable

segment.
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20.3 Major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had net reinsurance
premium written from the most 3 major life insurance companies in each year totaling Baht

1,452 million and Baht 1,418 million, respectively.

21. Operating expenses

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
Personnel expenses 41,533,002 29,074,509
Premises and equipment expenses 17,894,686 20,890,990
Taxes and duties 200,961 196,288
Other operating expenses 25,790,354 25,561,288
Total operating expenses 85,419,003 75,723,075
22. Expenses by nature
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased 86,590,549 35,530,506
Net benefits and claims 1,368,268,133 913,664,672
Commission expenses 548,594,785 593,430,549
Other underwriting expenses 6,077,734 4,680,753
Personnel expenses 61,606,758 52,600,071
Premises and equipment expenses 17,894,686 20,890,990
Other expenses 27,256,997 27,171,180
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23.

24.

25.

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is contributed to by both the employees
and the Company on a monthly basis, at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’
basic salaries, based on the length of employment. The fund is managed by Krungsri Fund
Management Company Limited and will be paid to employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. During the years 2018 and 2017, the Company contributed

Baht 3.4 million and Bath 2.4 million, respectively, to the fund.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other
comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the years.
Dividends paid

Dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 consisted of the

following:
Dividend per
Approved by Total dividend share
(Million Baht) (Baht)
Annual dividend from 2017 net income  Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 25 April 2018 180.0 0.30
Interim dividend for 2018 Board of Director meeting
on 21 August 2018 120.0 0.20
Total dividend paid during 2018 300.0 0.50
Annual dividend from 2016 net income  Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 21 April 2017 120.0 0.20
Interim dividend for 2017 Board of Director meeting
on 30 August 2017 120.0 0.20
Total dividend paid during 2017 240.0 0.40
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26. Related party transactions
26.1 Nature of relationship

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The relationship between the Company and its related parties are summarised below:

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited An associate whereby the Company holds 32.5% of
such company shares
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd. (™ An associate whereby the Company holds 20.00% of

such company’s shares

Thai Reinsurance Plc. Related by way of shareholding

Bangkok Life Assurance Plc. Related by way of having common directors and shareholding
The Navakij Insurance Plc. Related by way of having common directors and shareholding
Thaire Services Co., Ltd. Related by way of having common directors and shareholder
Thai Life Insurance Plc. Related by way of having common directors

Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd. Related by way of having common shareholder

() This entity had been considered an associate until the date of sold the investment in an associate (6 November 2017) and

ceased to be a related company due to no having common directors.
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26.2 Significant related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had significant
business transactions with its related parties. Such transactions, which have been
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business

between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

2018 2017 Pricing policy
Transaction with associates
Revenues
Dividend income(" - 5,040 As declared
Service revenues 276 1,060 Contract rates
Transactions with related parties
Revenues
Reinsurance premium written 480,317 427,814  Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Commission income 662 684  Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Claims refundable 860 727  Normal commercial terms for underwriting
Service revenues 208 1,995 Contract rate
Expenses
Reinsurance premium ceded 2,436 2,232 Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Claim expenses 301,493 232,359  Normal commercial terms for underwriting
Commission expenses 118,331 103,705 Normal commercial terms for reinsurance
Service fee expenses®@ 8,915 17,964  Contract rate
Owner’s equity
Dividend paid 49,761 41,912  As declared

(M Including in “Net investment income” in statements of income

@ Including in “Operating expenses” in statements of income
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26.3 Outstanding balances

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had the outstanding balances with its

related parties as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December

2018 2017

Related parties

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers(" 694 796
Amounts due from reinsurers® 17,765 34,566
Amounts deposited on reinsurance® 753 3,254
Deferred commissions expenses 17,508 12,703
Loss reserves® 4,326 18,886
Amounts due to reinsurers® 16,735 19,020
Deferred commissions income 10 12
Accrued expenses® - 67

(™ Including in “Reinsurance assets” in statements of financial position

@ Including in “Reinsurance receivables” in statements of financial position

@) Including in “Insurance contract liabilities” in statements of financial position
@) Including in “Due to reinsurers” in statements of financial position

®) Including in “Other liabilities” in statements of financial position

26.4 Directors’ and key management’s remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had salaries, bonuses,
meeting allowances and post-employment benefits incurred in respect of its directors and

key management personnel as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2017
Short-term benefits 34,654 23,647
Post employment benefits 2,960 5,627
Total 37,614 29,274
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27.

28.

29.

29.1

Assets placed and reserved with the Registrar

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had the following assets placed and
reserved with the Registrar of the Office of Insurance Commission in accordance with the

Life Insurance Act.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2018 2017
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Assets placed
Government bonds 21.0 20.8 21.0 21.1
Assets reserved as insurance reserves
Government and state enterprise bonds 214.0 215.3 179.0 182.7

Other assets subject to restrictions

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had pledged the following assets as
collateral.
(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2018 2017

Guarantee for electricity consumption

Government bonds 0.1 0.1
Commitments
Operating lease commitments

The Company entered into a lease agreement in respect of the lease of vehicle. The term of
the agreement is 5 years. As at 31 December 2018, the Company had future minimum
lease payments required under such non-cancellable operating lease contract was as

follows.
(Unit: Million Baht)
Payable 31 December 2018
Within 1 year 0.8
Over 1 year and not over 5 years 24
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29.2

29.3

30.

30.1

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had outstanding capital commitments
contracted for building renovation amounting to Baht 0.9 million and Baht 1.0 million,
respectively.

Service commitments

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had outstanding service commitments
and future minimum service fees amounting to Baht 1.2 million and Baht 4.2 million,
respectively.

Risks and risk management
Life insurance risk

Life Insurance risks arising from the conduct of reinsurance activities are managed as
follows:

a. Product design and development and pricing

The Company has established a Product Development Committee to consider
significant issues that would affect the Company’s financial position. Furthermore, after
new products are launched the Company monitors underwriting results, such as
deviations between premium pricing assumptions and actual experience, so that they
can be used to improve the products.

b. Underwriting of reinsurance

The Company modifies its underwriting guidelines to keep them up to date, based on
technical knowledge and statistical information. Moreover, training is conducted to
engender staff’'s application of knowledge and discipline when making underwriting
decisions and reviews of whether underwriting practices correspond to the guidelines
are performed to ensure that the risk retention is consistent with the Company’s
identified risk limits.

c. Claim management

The Company has established a standardised claims management process and claims
management guidelines are consistently updated, with due consideration given to risk
management. Moreover, the Company arranges training to impart knowledge to staff,
and working practices are reviewed to ensure they are in accordance with the
guidelines.
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d. Retrocession

An excess of loss retrocession program has been implemented as a risk management
tool. The Company buys retrocession coverage for excess of loss in order to limit the
maximum loss per event and regularly performs adequacy tests of reinsurance
protection in the event of major loss events. In addition, the Company has a policy to

retrocede its business only to retrocessionaires that have credit ratings of at least “A-.”
e. Reserve estimates

The Company’s loss reserves are examined and certified by independent actuarial
fellows. Moreover, the Company periodically analyses and montiors deviations between
the reserve calculation assumptions and actual experience to ensure reserves

adequately cover the Company’s obligations.
f. Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsurance concentration risk is the risk arising from a concentration of business
written within a particular type of contracts. Reinsurance contracts can be divided into
short-term and long-term, which have different obligations. Long-term reinsurance
contract obliges the Company to provide ongoing coverage without changing premiums
or benefits or canceling the contract whereas short-term contract obliges the Company
on a yearly basis and enables the Company to adjust reinsurance conditions when

renewal is made.

Hence, in order to prevent any volatility to the Company’s financial position, the
Company has the policy to balance the portfolio mix of long-term and short-term
contracts. The proportion of insurance liabilities from long-term and short-term contracts

in as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows;

(Unit: Percent)

31December
2018 2017
Long-term reinsurance contracts 59 56
Short-term reinsurance contracts 41 44
Total 100 100
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g. Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed to analyse the risk that insurance contract liabilities will

increase or decrease as a result of changes in the assumptions used in calculating,

gross and net reserves, profits before taxes, and owner’s equity. The risk may occur

because the frequency of claims, value of claims, or loss adjustment expenses may not

be as expected.

(1) Sensitivity analysis on long-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, impacts from changes in assumptions on

long-term insurance policy reserves are shown below:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2018
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
long-term policy  long-term policy (decrease) in Increase

Change in reserves before reserves after profits before (decrease) in

Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Mortality rate +5 % 36,547,056 36,547,056 (36,547,056) (29,237,645)
Mortality rate 5% (37,226,912) (37,226,912) 37,226,912 29,781,530
Lapse rate +5 % (4,307,122) (4,307,122) 4,307,122 3,445,698
Lapse rate 5% 4,414,260 4,414,260 (4,414,260) (3,531,408)
Discount rate +5 % (7,002,988) (7,002,988) 7,002,988 5,602,390
Discount rate -5 % 7,170,581 7,170,581 (7,170,581) (5,736,465)

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2017
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
long-term policy  long-term policy (decrease) in Increase

Change in reserves before reserves after profits before (decrease) in

Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Mortality rate +5 % 46,848,066 46,848,066 (46,848,066) (37,478,453)
Mortality rate -5 % (48,021,688) (48,021,688) 48,021,688 38,417,350
Lapse rate +5 % (3,894,028) (3,894,028) 3,894,028 3,115,222
Lapse rate -5 % 3,966,072 3,966,072 (3,966,072) (3,172,858)
Discount rate +5 % (8,433,651) (8,433,651) 8,433,651 (6,746,921)
Discount rate -5 % 8,783,112 8,783,112 (8,783,112) (7,026,490)
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(2) Sensitivity analysis on short-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, impacts from changes in assumptions on loss

reserves are shown below:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2018
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
loss reserves loss reserves (decrease) in Increase

Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Ultimate loss ratio +5 % 36,187,012 36,187,012 (36,187,012) (28,949,610)
Ultimate loss ratio -5 % (6,619,270) (6,619,270) 6,619,270 5,295,416
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2017
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
loss reserves loss reserves (decrease) in Increase
Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
Assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
Ultimate loss ratio +5 % 40,629,866 40,629,866 (40,629,866) (32,503,893)
Ultimate loss ratio -5 % (13,650,128) (13,650,128) 13,650,128 10,920,102

30.2 Financial risks

a. Creditrisk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to reinsurance receivables

and investments in debt securities. The Company manages the risk by regularly

evaluating credit quality of its retrocessionaires and issuers of securities and assessing

the ability to pay debt as it comes due, through periodical analysis and monitoring of

their financial positions. The Company has a strict policy to retrocede its business to

foreign retrocessionaires and buy securities from issuers that have credit ratings of at

least A-. Therefore, the Company does not expect to incur material financial losses. The

maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of reinsurance

receivables and investments in debt securities as presented in the statement of financial

position.
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b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and

securities prices may have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company

had no significant financial assets denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is

therefore confined only to interest rate risk and equity position risk.

(1) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks

and investments in debt securities.

The Company has managed interest rate risk by closely monitoring interest rate

movement and incorporating it into investment allocation decision making.

Significant assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in

the table below, with those assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the

maturity date.

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Equity securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Loans
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
Reinsurance receivables
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
- loss reserves

Due to reinsurers

sn8vuUs:=91U 2561

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
- - - 55,098 9 55,107 0.10 - 1.00
411,085 69,940 - 65,343 - 546,368 1.69
120,000 60,000 - - - 180,000 2.06
- - - - 1,023,953 1,023,953 -
130,000 - - - - 130,000 1.80
- - - 1,351 - 1,351 3.25
- - - - 2,883 2,883 -
- - - - 195,504 195,504 -
- - - - 406,752 406,752 -
- - - - 21,702 21,702 -
- - - - 184,572 184,572 -
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Equity securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Loans
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
Reinsurance receivables
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
- loss reserves

Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2017

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
- - - 212,087 1 212,088 0.10-1.00
528,326 154,969 20,000 65,378 - 768,673 1.32
36,129 39,971 - - - 76,100 1.65
- - - - 716,854 716,854 -
195,000 - - - - 195,000 1.49
120 - - - - 120 3.50
- - - - 4,006 4,006 -
- - - - 212,173 212,173 -
- - - - 321,284 321,284 -
- - - - 34,949 34,949 -
- - - - 181,945 181,945 -

(2) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that change in the market prices of securities

result in fluctuations in revenues and in the value of assets.

will

The Company manages the price risk by continually analyzing and monitoring

changes in any factors that might lead to adverse movement in the market price of

the invested securities. The Company has adopted a prudent investment policy and

avoids speculative investments that would jeopardize its capital. The Company

invests in high quality securities that are expected to generate reasonable and

consistent returns.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has risk from its investments in

securities of which the price will change with reference to market conditions.
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c.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its financial assets

and/or procure sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting

in the occurrence of a financial loss.

The Company manages its liquidity position through prudent investment decisions, cash

flow matching of assets and liabilities, and diversification of assets and liabilities to

ensure that adequate cash is available when needed. Moreover, the Company sets its

liquidity position at a higher than that required by the Office of Insurance Commission.

Counting from the financial position date, the periods to maturity of assets and liabilities

held as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55,098,716 - - - 8,783 55,107,499
Investments in securities 1,021,846,970 661,084,711 129,940,372 65,342,643 2,105,720 1,880,320,416
Loans - 320,885 1,029,647 - - 1,350,532
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 195,294,534 209,791 - - 195,504,325
Liabilities under

insurance contracts
Due to reinsurers - 183,958,754 612,747 - - 184,571,501

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2017

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 212,086,656 - - - 1,034 212,087,690
Investments in securities 714,748,401 759,454,469 194,940,559 85,377,524 2,105,720 1,756,626,673
Loans - 120,379 - - - 120,379
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 212,172,855 - - - 212,172,855
Liabilities under

insurance contracts
Due to reinsurers - 181,944,707 - - - 181,944,707
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31.

Reinsurance contracts generate annually net reinsurance premium after underwriting
expense throughout term of contracts. Time to maturity of liability from reinsurance
contract as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 are shown below:

(Unit: Percent)

Time to Maturity 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
1 year 16.8 14.0
1 year to 5 years 36.0 33.9
Over 5 years 47.2 521
Total 100.0 100.0

Fair value of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had the following financial assets that
were measured at fair value, and had financial assets and liabilities that were measured at

cost but has to disclose fair value, using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2018
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value
Assets measured at fair value
Trading investments 78,514,664 - - 78,514,664 78,514,664
Available-for-sale investments 584,809,424 358,522,882 - 943,332,306 943,332,306
Assets for which fair value are
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 55,107,499 - - 55,107,499 55,107,499
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities - 549,282,590 - 549,282,590 546,367,877
Private enterprise debt securities - 180,282,632 - 180,282,632 179,999,849
Deposits at financial institutions - 130,000,000 - 130,000,000 130,000,000
Other investments - - 3,929,274 3,929,274 2,105,720
Loans - - 1,350,532 1,350,532 1,350,532
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31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value
Assets measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in money market fund - 99,262,220 - 99,262,220 99,262,220
Trading investments 6,213,240 - - 6,213,240 6,213,240
Available-for-sale investments 518,402,696 190,132,465 - 708,535,161 708,535,161
Assets for which fair value are
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash, saving, current accounts
and deposits at other financial
institutions 112,825,470 - - 112,825,470 112,825,470
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities - 775,465,347 - 775,465,347 768,672,536
Private enterprise debt securities - 76,765,431 - 76,765,431 76,100,016
Deposits at bank - 195,000,000 - 195,000,000 195,000,000
Other investments - - 5,089,525 5,089,525 2,105,720
Loans - - 120,379 120,379 120,379

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets presents according

statements.

to Note 4.18 to financial

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, fair value of financial assets was not significant

difference from their book value.

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of financial

instruments are as follows:

(@) Financial assets and liabilities having short-term maturity periods as cash and cash

equivalents, and deposits at banks with an original maturity period within 1 year are

presented at fair values, which approximate their carrying amounts in the statement of

financial position.

(b) Investments in debts securities are presented at fair values based on market prices or

prices determined using the yield curve as announced by the Thai Bond Market

Association.
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32.

33.

34.

(c) Investments in equity securities are presented at fair values is based on market prices.
In case of non-marketable equity securities, the fair values are determined
approximately using the price to book value ratio, except for investment units, which
are not listed securities, their fair values are the net asset value per unit as announced

by the fund manager.

(d) Loans are presented at fair value, which are estimated by discounting expected future

cash flow by the current market interest rate.
During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management for life insurance companies

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that it has
ability to continue its business as a going concern and to maintain risk-based capital in

accordance with the requirements of the Office of the insurance Commission.
Events after the reporting period

On 20 February 2019, the Board of Directors’ Meeting passed a resolution to be proposed
for approval of dividends in respect of the second half-year operating results of 2018 at
Baht 0.15 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Baht 90 million by the Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders to be held in April 2019.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 20 February 2019.
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General Information

voyansluvawusen General Information

Housun usun TnesUs:Nuddn 91MA (UK1sU) Company Name Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Avdatineulnny 1avi 48/15 BouSsAAILN 20 Head Office Location 48/15 Rajchadapisek Soi 20,
NUUSBANAILN IvodaIuIduUDN Rajchadapisek Road, Samsennok,
IVAKO8VI NSIINWUKIUAS 10310 Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310
InsfAwri 0-2666-9000 Phone: 0-2666-9000
Ins&ans 0-2277-6227 Fax: 0-2277-6227

Us:innssno AndussNaUs=NunYmo Nature of Business Provision of reinsurance

AIuNIsUs=AUBIMNNUS:INN
lavn:zidguusen 0107554000241

13ulss www.thairelife.co.th

KuaJry91uou 600 &MURU yaAAns
15 Aua: 1 uan sou 600 aruunn

NUIAN:IUYU 90N
9MHUgIazEIS:1AD

voyanoluveulAunnanusen fieRuAvNASosa: 10
Vuly

(Life insurance business)

Registered Number 0107554000241

Website www.thairelife.co.th

Registered Capital,
Issued and Paid-up

600 million ordinary shares of THB 1
each, Total THB 600 million

Legal Entities in which the Company holds shares
more than 10 percent

#ousun TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

Afvdtinuaulnng  Level 4, Zone A office Unit, The Iconic,
Unit 11, Phonxay Road,

Phonxay Village, Saysettha District,
Vientiane Capital

01000 Lao PDR.

InsAwn 856-21417707

Insans 856-21417705

Js:nnssno AtdussiaNsUs=AUBInNNUS:INN

lavn:10guustn 305013561-9-00

13ulss www.tki-insurance.com

Kuandryd1uou 8 duiu yaAnnsild
Aua: 2,000 fiu SOU 16,000 awunu Kso
Us:=u1ru 66 a1uun

nuann:Idgu oon
9nurgNazEIs:1ao

dndounisioAulne Sova: 32.5

ussen

snevuUs:91U 2561
usEn Inesus:AudIM 9111A (WKL)

Company Name  TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

Head Office
Location

Level 4, Zone A office Unit,

The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road,
Phonxay Village, Saysettha District,
Vientiane Capital

01000 Lao PDR.

Phone: 856-21417707

Fax: 856-21417705

Nature of Business Provision of insurance
(Life insurance business)

Registered Number 305013561-9-00

Website www.tki-insurance.com

Registered Capital, 8 million ordinary shares of LAK 2,000
Issued and Paid-up each, Total LAK 16,000 million or
approximately THB 66 million

Percentage Owned 32.5 percent



voyanoluvouunnadudy

Other References

ulen:10gu
nannswe

uSun Audsudnnannswe (Us:inflne)
910A

natanannSwelrkaus:inAlng

1avi 93 NUUSEANAILN IIVOVAUIIAY
IVRRAUIAY NSIINWY 10400

InsAwr 0-2009-9388

Ins&ans 0-2009-9476

uN&a19nuSAsT lsegossu
tjaoulny@suaunyn 1avh 4812
USEn d10nanu 9919 910

1avi 193/136-137 91A1SIaNSEAN
U 33 NUUSBANAILN IIVOUAABIINY
IVAAAVING NSIINW 10110
InsFAwn 0-2264-9090

Ins&ans 0-2264-0789-90

Share Registrar
/Transfer Agent

Auditor

Thailand Securities Depository Co.,

Ltd.
The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Building, 93 Ratchadaphisek Road,
Dindaeng, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400
Phone: 0-2009-9388

Fax: 0-2009-9476

Ms. Narissara Chaisuwan

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
No.4812

EY Office Limited 193/136-137 Lake
Ratchada Office Complex FI 33,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

Phone: 0-2264-9090

Fax: 0-2264-0789-90
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www.thairelife.co.th

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
48/15 Soi Rajchadapisek 20, Rajchadapisek Road
Samsennok, Huaykwang

Bangkok 10310

Tel. 0-2666-9000

Fax. 0-2277-6227



